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Financial Summary

SUMMARY OF RESULTS

HE12H831ALEE
Year ended 31 December
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
AREFRT AREBFRT AREBFTT AREBTRT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Wz Revenue 28,257,432  25230,613 22,761,822 22,019,737 21,772,240
EF Gross profit 8,187,917 8,218,910 8,065,931 7,918,290 7,288,599
PRSI AR F Profit before income tax 1,730,829 2,141,842 2,326,459 1,971,360 1,639,774
FriSiip > Income tax expense (508,672) (641,127 (700,756) (605,148) (510,070)
FERF Profit for the year 1,222,157 1,500,715 1,625,703 1,366,212 1,029,704
PiN/NETL Profit attributable to
FEA the equity holders of
(@ F the Company 1,222,157 1,500,715 1,625,703 1,366,212 1,029,704
RE Dividends 1,466,588 1,800,859 1,625,703 1,366,212 1,029,704
ARES AEED AEED AEIES ANEES
RMB cents RMB cents RMB cents RMB cents RMB cents
BREREF Basic earnings per Share 28.30 34.74 37.64 31.63 23.84
®128318
As at 31 December
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
ARSTrx AB¥ETT ABETT ARETT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
MEE Total assets 21,784,355 22,065,346 22,104,371 21,757,042 21,732,558
=R Total liabilities 8,603,002 8,300,045 8,217,838 8,124,112 8,510,251
w4838 Total equity 13,181,353 13,765,301 13,886,533 13,632,930 13,222,307
BEK Cash and
IREHEY cash equivalents 108,519 285,573 486,300 1,056,780 1,563,945
RENEE Net current assets/
(BBE) %% (liabilities) 494,708 (319,284)  (1,504,978) (623,190) (439,236)

H— 1 EPEZEIRA R AT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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The world and China faced a difficult trial in 2022 given the
unprecedented challenges brought by the pandemic. Amidst such
uncertainties, Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together as the “Group”, “our Group”, “we”, “our”
or “us”) continued to focus on investing in future, creating value,
managing risk and increasing resilience, through which we have
entered a new phase of growth. Since 2019, the Group’s revenue
has been growing at a compound annual growth rate of 8.7%, in
which the compound annual growth rate of the beverages and food
reached 8.8% and 9.0% respectively. The demand for safe, tasty,
healthy and quality food and beverages from China’s 1.4 billion
population remains tremendous with plenty of room for development.
In addition to the growing middle class, which is driving the demand
for better quality and healthier products, the public’s pursuit for
personalization, convenience and value in consumption is also
conducive to the sustainable growth of the Group’s revenue.

The year of 2022 also marked the 30th anniversary of the Group’s
entry into the Mainland China market, with revenue reaching a new
record of RMB28,257.4 million, representing an increase of 12.0%
over last year. The Group’s 30,000+ employees have exhibited their
strong entrepreneurship to work together to create new ways of
attracting customers, and manage to maintain a stable operation
and seek growth opportunities in the midst of challenges. In addition,
the Group has been careful in testing and managing risks in new
markets. Innovation remains an imperative driver of the Group’s
continuous growth.

The Group continued to focus on its operation and formulate core
operation policies to build a flexible supply chain, concentrate on
brand building and freshness control. We also expanded our online
and offline channels to get a deeper understanding of consumers
and build an adhesive ecosystem to further enhance penetration.
With the aim to satisfy consumers’ needs, the Group will make
continuous efforts to build a long-term competitive barrier of brands
through the building of brand power, and to carry out product
innovation driven by consumer demand insight and centering
on consumer scenarios and contacts. The Group adheres to
the corporate vision of “Honesty and Diligence; Innovation and
Excellence (4 B 2018 ~ 8 # K )" and upholds the principle of
“Value Marketing (1B {& & #4)”. With a focus on operation, we are
dedicated to creating brand value, pursuing steady development and
striving for progressive advancement by “Healthy Practice ({# & #
{E)”, with an aim to evolve into an enterprise boasting “Integrity (&
#)”, “Brand (fi#)” and “Taste (FaF)".

Annual Report 2022 3R
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Chairman’s Statement

FEARE B FINAL DIVIDEND

ERAEB2022 FHEBENRIT ZE5%E Based on the Group’s overall performance in 2022, and having

BbR s BB s URBALHE > K2 accounted for, including but not limited to, the Group’s surplus,

AEEx (E5) g (Ex9)) BMNARQASE]  overal financial condition and capital expenditures, the board (the

BRATZBERREASDEZEIREHE2022 “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company will propose to

F12B31ALFEERBREKRESKRARE  declare afinal cash dividend of RMB33.95 cents per share (amounting

33.95%9) (HstIREARME#X1,466.6 BB IT) °©  to a total dividend of approximately RMB1,466.6 million) for the
year ended 31 December 2022 at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

EEX Lo Chih-Hsien
FE Chairman
2023FE3H8H 8 March 2023

6 R EEE A R/A T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢  Annual Report 2022 3R
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Management Discussion & Analysis

RBIRIB DR

FREE A REME (TH ) 2022 5B P9 4 E 48
{E(GDP) B LB R 3.0% » HE HE mET E 4848
[B EE T B%0.2% o [ ¥ 48 3 &R 18 B9 #h 45 BUS
RERENMEANBEREZEELEEER
FR B BT 3 BRF A B AME B B s BUER 0 R
FEEENEE MREMHBLOIERRER
LHE BRAEBHETSERENEET
MBES FAREEAERNWE BT
ERFTWMELZELES - PEIRHERERER
ZE > BEERAABIRATE  BRNEKRER
IREGRENTERER BREIRERR
BARNE  TBEEXEEZR ERLUEEBNEA
TR EERL HHKKEIREBFE 2023
EhEKEEREBRRERRE EHERH
WK B EZE HERERGE BRE
HEZRTSEHEHRE -

RYEHRESE > hEER T ST RRBENR

BRIt BTG SHEE > ARHEEE
MRERE > ESREEUETZREIIE - &%
B AHE s RENYR > BEERENTHERR
MREERA  RAHBHEREENSE
BHEMSD TEBRERELTERARE @
BN R ELER ©

H—¥EPEIEEER/A T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

ANALYSIS ON ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT

In 2022, the gross domestic product (“GDP”) of the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC” or “China”) recorded a year-on-year
increase of 3.0% and total retail sales of consumer goods declined
by 0.2% year-on-year. In the face of multiple difficulties, including a
complex and grim geopolitical and economic environment and the
recurrent pandemic in China, the PRC government has adjusted
and optimized its pandemic prevention policies in a timely manner,
reducing the impact on production and daily lives with a view to
promoting market recovery and protecting people’s livelihoods
and consumption. Although the overall consumer market remains
weak under the impact of the pandemic, the food and beverage
industry, as a basic necessity for people’s livelihoods, has
maintained its recovery momentum. The PRC has proposed a dual
circulation strategy to build a new development pattern in which
the domestic circulation is the mainstay, and the domestic and
international circulation are mutually reinforcing, with the domestic
circulation focusing on expanding domestic demand and improving
the industrial system, so as to form a growth model driven by
consumption and promote economic rebalancing. In 2023, China
is expected to witness a stable economic growth, with focuses on
expanding domestic demand, promoting a smooth industrial and
supply chain cycle, and gradually returning consumer spending to
normal level.

In terms of sourcing raw materials, we also faced the toughest
situation in years. Thanks to the close cooperation of our teams, the
Group managed to adjust its supply chain in a complex, uncertain
and fast-changing environment. In the long run, such agility needs
to be extended to R&D, sourcing, planning, manufacturing and
logistics. We need to be more sensitive to market demand and
respond faster to dynamic forecast, which shall serve as a crucial
component of daily supply chain operations, as well as to have a
deeper understanding of commaodity volatility and risk.

*  Annual Report 2022 £k 7
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Management Discussion & Analysis
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H— 1 EPEZEIRA R AT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

During the lockdown period, new consumption channels such as
020, community e-commerce and community group purchase
have brought new marketing opportunities. The complex and
changing external environment has led consumers to reflect on their
real needs and desire for a healthier life in their daily purchasing
decisions. With the optimization of pandemic prevention and control
policies, consumers’ lifestyle and their views on consumption have
also changed, whereby demands for healthy, nutritious and quality
products increased. As the market changes increasingly accelerate,
the use of omnichannel is more important than ever. The Group
upholds a value-based marketing strategy and actively responds
to changes in consumer trends to meet their diversified needs in
different scenarios.

PROSPECT

The Group always makes decisions and investments in light of our
long-term goals, continuously implements effective incentives to
strike a balance among short-, medium- and long-term strategies.
The Group will continue to focus on its operation and, under the
guidance of our operating direction of being “quick, stable and fresh
(1% ~ %8 ~ )", we will achieve our business objectives swiftly and
steadlily, striving for better operating results.

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

The Group pursues sustainable growth with a people-oriented
approach by actively responding to the national strategy of
“promoting green development for the harmonious coexistence
between humanity and nature”, taking into account the latest
development of various global environmental issues and undertaking
its social responsibility to protect the environment; we have clear
medium and long-term emission reduction goals for wastewater,
energy, water, greenhouse gases, hazardous and non-hazardous
waste; our investment in energy conservation and carbon reduction
increased significantly in 2022 as compared with 2021.

The Group follows the goal and strategy of “sustainable development
(sk #82 R)”, and while pursuing performance growth, the Group
always fulfills its social responsibilities. With respect to the Group’s
policies, measures, actions and achievements in corporate social
responsibility (“CSR”) for the year ended 31 December 2022, please
refer to the CSR Report published by the Group. The online edition
of the CSR Report is available for view or download on the website of
HKEX news (http://www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company’s website
(http://www.uni-president.com.cn).

*  Annual Report 2022 3R
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Management Discussion & Analysis
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H—¥EPEIEEER/A T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2022, the Group continued to focus on its operation by improving
brand building and insisting on the value marketing strategy.
Committed to “Healthy Practice ({#FE % 1E)”, we strengthened
freshness control over our products, accumulated brand assets
to enhance product strengths and optimised product mix. With
nimble and flexible organisational and operating capabilities to
cope with challenges brought by the pandemic, we achieved
record-high revenue in sound operation. We maintained our sharp
edges and style with deeper interpretation of our brands’ core
messages, thereby bringing us back to the essence of market. From
the perspective of consumer demand, we proactively expanded
consumption scenarios in line with consumer trends.

The Group recorded revenue of RMB28,257.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022, representing an increase of 12.0% as
compared with that of last year. Performances of the Group’s core
businesses is as follows:

Food Business

With an aim to satisfy the needs of consumers, the Group strived to
diversify consumption scenarios by providing products to be enjoyed
by consumers in different occasions, while staying focused on brand
value to enhance the brand loyalty. We also kept refining the process
techniques and innovating new tastes to enhance product strengths
and cater for the diverse needs of consumers. The Group recorded
a revenue of RMB11,009.4 million in 2022 from the food business,
representing an increase of 15.6% as compared with that of last
year.

Instant Noodles Business

There have been frequent outbreaks of the pandemic across the
PRC in 2022. As the situation remains severe, home consumption
has become the mainstream consumption scene, and instant
noodles have become a must-have item for consumers. The
Group’s instant noodle business is committed to cater for the
public’s needs with ever-evolving products and continuous quality
optimisation. Good value for money is also maintained to create
perfect consumption experience for consumers. We remained
committed to the popular plan by greatly enhancing product strength
and optimising consumer experience to convey the brand concept
of “make good noodles with our heart (B /CMBEF2E)” to consumers.
Meanwhile, in terms of product innovation, we created unique value
in response to the personalised and diversified needs of consumers.
The Group recorded a revenue of RMB10,619.6 million in 2022 from
the instant noodles business, representing an increase of 17.9% as
compared with that of last year.

*  Annual Report 2022 £k 9
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“Soup Daren (7 ## A)” has been highly
recognized by the market and customers for
its revenue growth for 14 consecutive years. It
recorded a nearly double-digit growth in revenue
in 2022 > maintaining the leading position as
No.1 brand in the nourishing soup noodles
market. In terms of products, we launched “Big
Cup (KA based on consumers’ feedback
to meet the demand of consumers “who are not
full after finishing two cups”. Also, a mixian (round
rice noodle) product in nourishing soup has been
launched in the fourth quarter of 2022 to enrich
the choices for consumers who prefer both non-
fried and mixian items and expand the brand’s
target groups. In terms of communication, “Soup
Daren (7% ¥ A)” is committed to developing
into a nationally-recognised brand. In 2022,
we became the official partner of the Chinese
National Women’s Football Team, enhancing
brand image and consumer loyalty and helping
the brand expand to the downstream market.

As the pioneer of ready-to-eat tomato delicacies, “The King
of Tomato (#1 £)” keeps exploring the very flavour of tomato,
continuously enriching the brand with new elements and
empowering the brand, so as to meet the flavour standard of “One
Xinjiang Tomato (—fEMEZFE )", In 2022, we launched a new
product “Tomato Bolognese Instant Pasta (#i £ B 10 & i A%
B LK BEEE)” on top of its existing “Tomato Egg Noodles (fin £ #
ZE#H)” and “Tomato Beef Noodles (il £ 2= W £H)”, which was a
proactive endeavour in developing the tomato noodles market and
adding vitality to the brand with the well-received new product.
The development of “The King of Tomato (#i £)” gadgets and
the launch of “The King of Tomato’s Home (i £ B9 %)” mini
application have created a platform where consumers who are fond
of “The King of Tomato (fi12£)” can mest with one another, further
revitalising the IP and helping the brand to create

> a unique identification symbol and stand out
2 from homogeneous competition. In the second
ot R half of the year, “The King of Tomato (fi1 £)”
' St has enhanced its investment in brand building,
and through its cooperation with talk shows, it

has thoroughly promoted the brand value as

REHE
FIEHE
18 1 79 [0

10

G—1 EREIERAFRAF Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

demonstrated by the tagline “Xinjiang Tomato is
a Treasure and You Can’t go wrong with a bowl
of The King of Tomato (8 HHMESEE K

*  Annual Report 2022 3R
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MEEEAT) and received positive feedback from consumers. The
proportion of annual revenue of “The King of
Tomato (A12)” has increased manyfold for two
consecutive years.

“Uni-President Lao Tan Pickled Cabbage and
Beef Noodles (4 — & 18 4 A%H)” invited
1,000 consumers to visit the factory with the
theme of “Dare to Promise 100% Fermentation
by Lao Tan (BX 7&K 55 100% & £ B 8 )" to
witness the authentic Lao Tan’s fermentation
process of pickled cabbage. Two central
media of the PRC, CCTV.COM and Xinhua
Financial, as well as other authoritative media such as television
stations based in provinces and cities across the country, also
visited various factories of pickled cabbage of the Group to witness
the fully traceable and country-wide safety system of “one pool, one
certificate; one pickling jar, one number; one packet, one code (— il
—&8 ~ —18—5% - —8—H5)". We conveyed the Group’s food safety
concept and sense of social responsibility as a food company to the
public. The Group participated in the drafting of the group standard
of “Technical Specifications for Production Quality Safety Control and
Management of Lao Tan Pickled Cabbage”. Such standard, which
defines the authentic Lao Tan Pickled Cabbage, has been approved
and published by the expert review committee of the Institute of
Food Science and Technology of the PRC. Some 30 media outlets,
including Xinhua Financial, testified the Group’s determination as the
pioneer of Lao Tan Pickled Cabbage Instant Noodles to contribute
to the well-regulated development of the industry. A series of open
and transparent initiatives has gained
consumer recognition and consolidated
the leading position of the Uni-President
LLao Tan products.

“Teng Jiao (B%15)” adheres to the
branding of products with a continued
focus on our rattan pepper-flavoured
products and continuous product
enhancement to strengthen the fresh
and spicy flavour characteristics and
address the brand’s core appeal of “the
feeling of electric shock (BEE RN E)".
The product packaging is characterised
by a hip-hop style that features the thrill of electric shock through
the rhythm and jumping of hip-hop sought after by young people,
making it easier for Generation Z to perceive and accept the brand’s
appeal of “the feeling of electric shock (FBEBAIRLE)”.

*  Annual Report 2022 £k ,] ’]
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With “Craving Meat? Imperial Big Meal’s For You (180ZH » i#E K
#)” as the core appeal, “Imperial Big Meal (2 A% )" well-creates
its product to provide consumers with “The High-end Private
Kitchen (&= I fA B )” experience
- % % while bringing a sense of culture and
Z < ritual. In terms of communication, we
ng‘"l utilized the omnimedia matrix including
Weibo, Douyin, Bilibili to start the
accumulation of brand assets, with a view to
building the Chinese fashionable brand style of “Imperial Big Meal (7@
ERE)

Other products

“Kai Xiao Zao (/) #t)” always aims to promote Chinese cuisines
with the vision of becoming the social kitchen for Chinese people.
As for products, after the launch of self-heating claypot rice bowls,
the instant wonton of “Kai Xiao Zao (F8/)\}t)” was well-received by
users. Through the self-innovation of the wonton forming equipment,
it made a breakthrough in the industry by getting rid of hand-making
wonton, which in turn realized technological innovation for automated
processing. It ranked first in terms of sales volume of instant wonton
in 2022. “Kai Xiao Zao — Small Wonton in Chicken Soup (B8 /)Nt
%55 /\8E #1)” won a two-star award from the International Taste
Institute in Brussels, Belgium. In terms of communication, the
cooperation with Mr. Xiao Zhan has facilitated the rapid development
of “Kai Xiao Zao (B/)\ )", bringing a strong boost to the brand.
2023 witnessed the fourth year of such mutual cooperation.

Looking ahead to 2023, as the PRC makes significant adjustments
to its COVID-19 prevention and control policies, consumer demand
will be changed and confront new challenges and opportunities.
National products that are good value for the money will remain
popular among consumers, while health, safety and taste will
continue to be the main themes of innovative development in the
food industry. The Group adheres to a consumer-oriented approach,
staying true to its original aspirations without compromising its
quality, thereby delivering the brand ideology of “making good
noodles with our heart (FB/CMEF%E)” to and showing appeal among
consumers through its products. At the same time, the Group will
capitalize on its own advantages of continuous innovation to meet
the needs of consumers in terms of customisation, diversity and
healthiness, with a view to providing consumers with delicacies with
good-looking and high quality which are better than ever in terms of
safety, nutrition and healthiness. The Group’s food business will take
the new round of development opportunities in the instant noodles
industry and stay dedicated to integrating healthy food ingredients

*  Annual Report 2022 3R
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H— D EPEIZIEE R AT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

into the national tastes, integrating new food technology into its
production, and promoting the profound Chinese cuisine culture,
with an aim to become a food technology advocate, a knowledge
officer for consumers, and ultimately a trusted partner for consumers.

Beverages Business

Consumer need is the core of the beverages business of the
Group. By focusing on freshness control of products, adhering
to value marketing, focusing on brand building and accumulating
brand assets, we actively expanded consumption channels and
consumption scenarios. The annual revenue of our beverages
business amounted to RMB16,405.4 million in 2022, representing a
year-on-year increase of 11.3%. The business performance of our
major beverages in 2022 is as follows:

Tea Drinks

Revenue from tea drinks amounted to RMB6,956.8 million in
2022, representing a year-on-year increase of 10.9%. The revenue
grew steadily and achieved double-digit increase for two consecutive
years. Adhering to value marketing, the tea drinks business further
accumulated brand assets through marketing campaigns. In the
meantime, in response to the new consumption trends, the Group
actively diversified its product specification and enhanced input on
new e-commerce channels such as social e-commerce, community
group purchases, B2C, private domain traffic
operations and 020, so as to satisfy consumers’
experiential and consumption needs in different
scenarios, including family gathering and exquisite drinks
for one.

In 2022, “Uni Green Tea (#t — &% %%)” continued
to build a brand recognised by young people
across the nation. In the first half of the year, we
collaborated with “May Fourth Youth Day (R P9 &
FE1)” to carry out an activity named “Go For It,
Young People! (A5 S MNH)", where we joined
hand with people from different fields, including
players of China women’s national basketball team,
awardees of the Touching China campaign/SF
Express couriers and the new generation of young
talk show comedians, to demonstrate the fighting
spirit of our era and set an impactful example for
the new generations. In the second half of the year,
we crossed-over with national brands, working
with Jingdong Logistics to co-create contents and

*  Annual Report 2022 3R
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carry out the promotion campaigns themed “Starting the Engine for
Health (%2 B2 A 2)” and “Send coolness to delivery riders (2 /)\
SHAERINER)”. Through the new format of live-streaming our brand
on TikTok, we have created UGC topics and triggered voluntary
spreads, thereby linking up the online and offline scenarios in an all-
round manner. By initiating heart-touching charity events, we have
reached out to youngsters in China comprehensively and deeply,
passing on the brand’s green and healthy lifestyle and positivity, as
well as deepening the brand’s social responsibility. In the past three
years, revenue from “Uni Green Tea (4 —#4%%%)” has been growing
at a compound rate of high single-digit. In 2023, we will continue to
foster “Uni Green Tea (4 —4%%%)” into a major national brand.

In 2022, “Uni Ice Tea (#&— 7K4L%%)” continued to
cultivate new generations. With our insight on the
group preferences of Generation Z, we have created
a young image for the brand through “ACG (Z X Jt)”
collaboration. In the first half of the year, we crossed-
over with two S+ ranking Chinese comics with the help
of Tencent Animation Channel (Bl &) 2 481&), an
online traffic platform, where we zeroed-in on the young
group aged 14 to 22 years old, using multi-faceted
interactions and customized products themed with
such Chinese comics to attract consumer purchase. In
the second half of the year, we selected Bilibili (1% 1 1
I8), a platform popular among Generation Z, to initiate
a deep cooperation, expanding the brand’s exposure
through variety show sponsorships and co-creation
of UGC youth content, so as to enhance its influence.
In 2023, “Uni Ice Tea (4t — K AT £%)” will upgrade its
products in response to new trends, highlighting our
use of real lemons to formulate marketing campaigns
with a focus on the theme of lemon’s refreshing aroma,
in order to increase consumers’ purchase frequency
and love of the product. In 2022, revenue from “Uni Ice Tea (4t— 7k
41 5%)” achieved a double-digit growth over last year.

In 2022, “Uni Plum Green Tea (#t— & 184k 4%)” carried out a brand
reposition and quickly captured consumers’ hearts with its unique
selling point of “Grade A plums (A &R EfZ ARIE)” and differentiated
image featuring Chinese traditions. With such reposition, the brand
recorded a high double-digit growth in revenue as compared to last
year, and become one of the key drivers of our tea drinks business.
Focusing on Generation Z, the brand has leveraged on the traditional
culture to create two boundary-breaking marketing campaigns:
“Seeking for Plum in the Panorama of Rivers and Mountains (F 27T
LLIZ2#852)” and “Traditional Chinese Graduation (Bl /E £ 2 Z)". The
campaigns were launched in time with a Chinese historical drama,

15
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which helped us to raise brand awareness
quickly and successfully establish the
brand’s differentiated image of “Plum
Green Tea with Chinese Taste (185 455K o
FREE )", In 2023, the brand will be able
to enhance its penetration and continue
to capturing consumers’ attention by
highlighting “Grade A plums (A %k % X
RLHE)” in its promotion. In the past three
years, revenue from “Uni Plum Green Tea
(#— B 184EZ%)” has been growing at an
exponential compounded annual rate.

L
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The brand of “Classmate Xiaoming (/% [5] 2)” caters for the
aesthetic value of Generation Z students with personalized mixed
features. We present the brand image and occupy the niche market
with a close focus on the collective identity of “Classmate ([&]
)", Meanwhile, on top of traditional video communication, we
collaborated with internet celebrities to co-create “viral videos” to
represent the brand story, realizing
category branding more quickly,
and thus achieving the category
recognition of “Classmate Xiaoming
(hEFEE).

In response to the rising health
awareness and to capitalize on
consumers’ pursuit for tasty sugar-
free tea and quality life, in 2022, “Chai
Li Won (2 E)” joined hands with
the heir of Wuyishan Dahongpao (i
ZE I K4 #8), an intangible cultural
heritage, and Impression Dahongpao
(ED&R K4 #), a cultural IP, to
create a seasonal limited product
named “Qinggan Dahongpao (&
HAAL#8)”. We have collaborated with tea plantations and invited
consumers to trace the source of our product on Wuyishan (i 28
LL1), presenting them with the brand’s dedication to making good tea
and a chance to experience the product’s freshly-brew-like taste.
At the same time, through the launch of “Cloud Tea Program (£ &
#L)”, a DTC platform application, and live-streaming source tracking
in tea plantations, we have fully capitalized on the synergy between
online and offline contents, giving consumers a direct and all-round
representation of the production process of our “good tea”, as well
as to enhance their tea-related knowledge and let them know more
tea anecdotes, and through which, we have built an authoritative

R EEE A R/A T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢  Annual Report 2022 3R
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and professional image for
the brand. In 2023, “Chai Li
Won (FXZ=E)” wil continue
to focus on the product
strength, leveraging on
the traditional tea-making
process and the natural
scarcity of tea production
areas/tea anecdotes to
enhance its stylish image
of “good tea like it’s freshly
brewed”.
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In 2022, the tea drinks business actively diversified into various
consumer scenarios and achieved rapid growth in the household
and dining scenarios. People’s health awareness has been rising
in the post-pandemic era. In 2023, the Group will respond to the
needs of target consumers and iteratively upgrade its products to
strengthen their health benefits, giving consumers better reasons to
buy our products and hence driving our sales growth. Meanwhile,
the Group will actively tap into the sugar-free market to meet
consumers’ different needs for tea beverages. Looking ahead to
20283, consumption will grow persistently with gradual rebound. With
rational purchase and emotional needs becoming the fundamental
drivers of consumption, heart-touching, value-driven and trust
reinforcement are crucial for brands to win the hearts of consumers.

Juice

In 2022, the aggregated revenue from the juice business of the
Group amounted to RMB3,004.5 million, representing an increase
of 35.4% over last year, which contributed 18.3% to the Beverage’s
revenue, a 6-year high. Always adhering to the ideal of providing
tasty and healthy juice to consumers, the juice business continued
to optimize the benefits of juice and enrich its flavors.
Meanwhile, we concentrated our business strategy on
diversifying specifications and scenarios to cater for the
mass taste, satisfying consumers’ demand for healthy
| juice at different place and time by deepening the
operation of food and beverage channel, accelerating the
expansion of home scenario, and actively participating in
the gift set market.

With the core value of “More Vitamin C, More Fiber, More
Beauty (Z# ~ £C%Z )", “Uni Orangeate (41 — &
18 %)” continued to reinforce its benefit of being rich in
dietary fiber by highlighting the visual image of “fiber (#)”

*  Annual Report 2022 £3R
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on the product packaging, which, combined with diversified media
promotion, have drawn consumers’ attention to orange juice with
more “fiber (#)”. In terms of channels, we further developed the
food and beverage channel to consolidate Orangeate’s image of
being the “go-to beverage”. Meanwhile, we seized the opportunity
of family consumption and, in response to the needs of today’s
household consumers, promoted the product’s benefits with the
identity of “Vitamin C-rich household products (= &
VCR A EM)". In the past three years, revenue from
“Uni Orangeate (#t—#%18 % )" has been growing at a
compounded annual rate of double-digit.

Revolving around the theme of the perfect sweet-
sour experience, in 2022,“Uni Guo Yang Kumquat
Lemon Beverage (# — R & & 15 1E1%)” continued
to reinforce its product image of “Becoming More
Outstanding with Sweet and Sourness (F& & & &H
8 W i1)”. For promotion, it conveyed the brand
message of “Outstanding with Sweet and Sourness
(BEEH H11)” through a special bottle design crossed-
over with “Heaven Official’s Blessing (X B 83 18)”,
a popular comic IP, catering to the zeitgeist of the
new white-collars and urban blue-collars, who are passionate to
life, highly motivated and eager to “becoming more outstanding”. In
terms of channels, the product aimed for a rapid market occupation
by capturing sales opportunities in a wide range of scenarios. At the
same time, we launched a sensational promotion campaign targeting
young consumers, in which we presented the brand’s sweet and
sour, moistening and refreshing features and conveys its message of
“Becoming More Qutstanding with Sweet and Sourness (% % £ & &
Hi fiI)” through immersive scenario marketing. In the past three years,
revenue from “Uni Guo Yang Kumquat Lemon Beverage (#i—8 %%
FE1245)” has been growing at an exponential compounded annual rate.

“Haizhiyan (78 2 5 )” continued to penetrate the sweating scenario
by persistently expanding its point-of-sale (POS) in terms of channels
and, on the promotion front, keep
appealing to consumers with its core
message: “Drink Haizhiyan after sweating
(RFIBE 2 S)”, so as to reinforce the
brand’s association with “Ocean” and
accentuate the benefit that “Mediterranean
Sea salt and refreshing juice can rapidly
rehydrates and replenishes electrolyte loss
from the body (/& B MNERRET
REHESERMRANKD ~ BRE)".

R EEE A R/A T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢  Annual Report 2022 3R
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With the key appeal of “Moisten and Soothe Your Heart (— ;8
0V BR)”, “Uni Crystal Sugar Pear Drink (4 — 7k #8 & 24)” continued
to promote its core value of “Moist (&)’ among young consumers
in 2022, resulting in increased young consumers. We focused on
key cities and continued to increase investment, seizing the sales
opportunities in every scenario to give consumers the best ice-
cold experience with full efforts in creating a chilling experience.
We continued to capitalize on household consumption scenario by
promoting community group purchases and seizing the chances to
make sales on 020 platforms.

Centering on its core value of “Vitality is awakened by the freshness
and sweetness of fully-ripened fruits (SEPVEEH » TTREER)”, “Vitality
Awakening (7T 5 & B2)” selected fully-ripened fruit from premium
production regions around the globe, and completely replicated
the freshness and sweetness of fully-ripened fruits. We promoted
the positive spirit of aiming for the best and conveyed the brand
identity of “Full of vitality and awakening new power (7T & i i
BEEFT S1E8)”. We continued to focus on cultivating 100% juice
market in key first-tier cities by developing the contemporary system
and e-commerce platforms. At the same time, we rode the trend
to expand family scenario and online platforms such as 020 and
groceries delivery services and actively created new growth drivers
for the juice business in response to the demand for consumer
upgrading.

“Uni Tomato Juice (#t—3%&7n71)” makes use of the product benefit
of having lycopene to continuously create scenarios for a high-
quality life characterized by “Double Vitality & Health (7&77 & & EE &1
f&)”. Through the extensive development of e-commerce and TV
shopping platforms and multiple scenarios to attract purchases, we
continued to cultivate target consumers’ knowledge of lycopene and
their drinking habit.

“A-Ha” uses its core value of “Carbonated drink with Vitamin C (&
75N #EAE 2R Q) as the key promotion theme. It focused on the food
and beverage channel to cultivate consumers and expand brand
awareness on a continuous basis.

In 2023, the Group’s juice business will continue to capitalize on the
changes in consumption demand and market trend. We will insist
on the core value of our juice products’ health benefits, continue to
invest more resources in the restaurant, family and gift set scenarios,
seize the definite opportunity from the “Mass Taste to Traditions

19
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(B4 A O0K)” and turn it into our major product, thereby rapidly
expanding the market share of our juice business on a continuous
basis.

Milk Tea

In 2022, the Group’s milk tea business generated revenue of
RMB6,005.4 million, representing an increase of 4.6% over last
year. The Group continued to maintain a healthy operating system,
conduct proper freshness control and pay attention to the basics,
through which we have made “Uni Assam Milk Tea (4t — [l & 48 475
%%)” a solid market leader.

As the leading brand in the category, “Uni Assam Milk Tea (#t—FBalfiE
4B52%)” continued to implement the business strategy of “Deepening
and Strengthening (& 58)”, exploring new opportunities in
the drinking scenario, and striving to boost consumers’ mood
with smooth and tasty milk tea at any time and anywhere. Large
packaged products continued to focus on the scenario of Chinese
New Year celebration and sharing through the theme promotion of
“Drink Something new for a better New Year (iBIE4E - IBZEHTER)”.
As for the exquisite products, we have expanded into the scenarios
of household leisure, outdoor sharing and winter hot drinks to
enhance the structural product layout and bring consumers a better
product experience. We also joined hands with the national app
“MoWeather (££EF X %)” and, using the traditional “solar terms” as a
leverage, interacted with consumers in a
high frequency on the brand’s identity of
“Good Mood (#f /102 18)”, strengthening
the association between such theme
and Assam while continuously enhancing
consumers’ impression on the brand.
In the past five years, revenue from Uni
Assam Milk Tea (#—FIFEEYIZL)" has
been growing at a compounded annual
rate of double-digit.

Coffee

In 2022, our coffee business focused on brand repositioning and
clarified the status of A-Ha (3£ 14) as a “National Coffee Flavored
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Beverage (B EEMIMELKENRL)”. The brand adopts a new message of
“A-Ha! Getting Started with Vitality! (FP — T > 5571 H &)” and is
committed to providing a source of vitality for young urbanites such
as blue-collar workers and new white-collar workers, helping them
to face new beginnings with full energy. On the promotion front, we
have used enchanting TV commercials in our marketing campaign
to effectively enhance the brand’s recognition. As for the operational
front, we have gained a strong foothold in the cities it based in and
gradually enlarged the market share.

In 2023, with the deepened development of China’s coffee market
in China and the start of the post-pandemic era, our coffee
business will firmly cultivate the sub-segment of “Coffee Flavored
Beverage”. In addition to our on-going strategy of focusing on
“A-Ha lced Coffee (3 m& 7K MIMEE)”, we will endeavor to enlarge our
product mix in accordance with consumer trend, providing the new
generation of consumers with rich and diverse options in taste. In
terms of promotion, focusing on the theme of “Vitality (& 737)”, we
are committed to enlarge our customer base through marketing
campaign with higher interactive level and conversion rate. For
channels, we will continue to focus on key cities while actively
cultivating potential markets, so as to improve brand penetration and
find the new driver for brand growth.

Bottled Water

As the COVID-19 pandemic was being normalized in 2022,
consumers’ concern for health and safety has further increased,
with more and more consumers willing to choose mineral water
with higher quality. Adopting a brand message of “ALKAQUA,
simple appearance with unusual properties (E#EE R > T
B)", “ALKAQUA (&
)’ uses premium
mineral water from deep
underground sources
that contains remarkable
metasilicic acid content,
presenting its health
and safety quality
in an exceptionally
rational manner. The
brand also cooperated
with Shanghai’s top-
rated radio program to
convey the product’s
exceptional health
and safety quality
to consumers through program interaction. With the evolution of
consumers’ purchasing pattern, sales from online and family-size
package become a major focus. “ALKAQUA (E5%5)” has seized the
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trend to increase the number of large packaged and multi-packaged
products available on various e-commerce platforms, and made
appropriate promotional efforts to turn it into a new source of growth.

In 2023, we will further build up the brand image of “ALKAQUA (&
52)” through its premium standard, making it a representative of
mid-to high-end mineral water with safe and health quality. At the
same time, we will convey to consumers a brand message that are
more in line with their authentic views and communicate deeply with
consumers, so as to pass on the brand’s positivity and optimism.

Bottle Can Drinks

The development of multiple channels has
led to an ever-changing consumer demand
for ready-to-drink beverages. In order to
diversify beverage products, the Group has
continuously developed a series of high-
end bottle can drinks. With the Cantonese
dessert “Mango & Pomelo Sweet Soup (1%
¥ H §&)” as the first flavour, “Keep Sweet
(1EE H )" leave consumers’ palates
with a long-lingering aftertaste through the
inherent technology of aluminum cans and
selection of ingredients. Also, in 2022, we
continued to further develop the regional
market with “Sweetening your life a bit (45
RBY 4 5E —BE1E)” as the main axis of the
brand, and effectively enhanced the brand
scale and market visibility in the region
through online short videos and other
means of communication. During the winter
of this year, we have launched the “Red
Bean Coconut Milk (ATZ#E2)” as a winter-
exclusive product, in which northeastern red
beans and sunshine oat groats are selected to combine traditional
red bean paste with Hainan coconut milk, giving the classic dessert
an innovative taste and targeting the recently popular cereal drinks
to meet consumer demand. The product received positive feedback
from consumers after its launch, while in the future, we will continue
to further develop the dessert and beverage business with insights
into consumers’ needs.
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E-COMMERCE

There are 1 billion Internet users in the PRC, and the national
online retail sales in 2022 reached approximately RMB12 trillion,
representing 27% of the total retail sales of consumer goods in
China. This trend will be driven by improved consumer satisfaction
and a desire for convenience and
efficiency. The Group will establish
effective marketing strategies based on
consumer behavior patterns, including
purchase frequency and consumer
decision-making chains, etc.

In 2022, the Group explored three
new business models for its online
business, under which, it is dedicated
to conducting business by capitalizing
on social traffic, opening flagship
stores and live-streaming rooms on
e-commerce platforms for interest
circles, and engaging parties ranging
from direct store fans to cooperating
KOLs/KQOCs, to provide consumers with
convenient and safe shopping options
while creating new marketing channels
for the Group’s brands. In response to
the new changes in traffic, our private
e-commerce platform has developed
“Uni Happy Planet (4 — IR 44 2 3X)", a
shopping application that covers various
functions from brand reputation to
brand efficiency conversion. During the
pandemic, we received orders through
community/corporate group purchase. Our constant optimization
has made the whole group purchase process more systematic,
demonstrating the entrepreneurial spirit of our team.

“That Street That Lane (8% B8&)” is committed to recreating
authentic street food to consumers, enlivening the city with traditional
cuisines. The signature product “Lanzhou Beef Noodles (B I 4 &
¥l)” continued to achieve stable growth. The brand continued to
explore into new fields and launched “Leshan Spicy Bobo Chicken
(%% 4T S e85 5K )" in March 2022 to tap into the braised dishes
business segment, which consecutively ranked the first in the
Tmall cold hot pot category since its launch and was awarded the
QOutstanding Innovative Product for the Instant Food Industry in the
PRC in 2021-2022.
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RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

In 2022, the third year since the outbreak of the COVID-19, people’s
perception towards the pandemic has shifted from the initial fear
of the virus to concern over work and life disturbance, which could
be evidenced in every facet of life, causing new generations of
consumers to change their spending and shopping behaviors. The
Group’s business research institute has been well aware of these
new consumption scenarios and opportunities, and adhered to the
concept of “be comfortable and happy to eat (IZ8% 0 > IZ135H0)”
by focusing on the optimization of featured products for livelihood
while continuing to develop a variety of new products that were in
line with the trend, contributing to a new record high of revenue for
2022.

On the other hand, the Group’s business research institute continued
to build protection for its core technologies. In 2022, 28 patents
were granted and 23 new patent applications have been filed. As
of December 2022, the cumulative number of patents granted has
reached 148.

Insights into Consumer Treads

Throughout the war against the pandemic, food and beverage
manufacturers have been launching new products with health
features that are well-known by the publics, a trend which is
becoming increasingly clear.

In the area of beverages, beverages with health benefits and
functional ingredients such as coconut and lime are gaining
popularity and changing the competitive landscape of plant-based
and frozen juice. Given the trend, the Group’s business research
institute is rapidly developing innovative products in this category.
Our “coconut and oat milk tea under Pure and Noble Milk Tea (77 55
FLZSAEMIRERYEE) is made from dual plant base of raw coconut
and oat with strong flavour black tea, which is cholesterol-free, of
pure coconut flavour, rich tea flavour and natural wheat taste. The
“Fruit Trio Calamansi Juice (RE &= & £ 1) is a refrigerated
product that meets the post-pandemic consumer demand for a
functional product that is rich in VC, with a refreshing taste and

*  Annual Report 2022 3R
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clean label, which echoes with the current pursuit by consumers for
healthy and non-additive ingredients. With the prevalence of sugar-
free beverages, “sugar reduction” has also become a key word
that cannot be ignored. Milk tea has been the first target of sugar
reduction, and “Uni Assam Milk Tea (4 —FAIFERTLZE)” has quickly
responded to consumer demand by optimizing the amount of sugar
added to its recipe for Fried Green Milk Tea (BIZ%#/34%) and Rock
Salt Cheese (& B8 = =) to achieve a taste effect of reduced sugar
but same sweetness, conquering the taste buds of more young
consumers.

In the area of food products, under the impact of the pandemic, food
products for livelihood such as instant food and prepared food that
are suitable for home scenarios are becoming increasingly popular
among consumers, and their substitution effect on take-out and
regular meals is beginning to emerge. Inspired by Chinese cuisine,
the Group’s business research institute is rapidly launching a variety
of food products for everyday lives that use natural ingredients and
new-generation seasoning technology to restore the natural flavour
to the greatest extent. We adopted the “stock cooking techniques (/&
S RHE)” for our “That Street That Lane Leshan Spicy Bobo Chicken
(FR 7 A0 5 %2 L) @ Dk AT SH 88 8k Z)” to provide consumers with the
ultimate convenience of “no water (4~J07K)” and “no heating (-~
#)”, restoring the authentic taste of Leshan traditions. Our “Tomato
Beef Topping (E A4 A T ERETE)” and “Beef Curry Topping
(ME 4 P T B 58)” under the “Kai Xiao Zao (B8 /)\it)” utilize
high pressure aseptic preservation technologyTM without adding
preservatives, giving the taste as if it is made by a restaurant chef
and presenting the essence of traditional Chinese cuisine. Our “hot
and sour mixian in small pot (/N3EE EKAR)” and “mixian with thick
sauce in small pot (Z\EBAEKAR)” under the “Soup Daren ((ZZA)”
are the first non-fried cup products that use finely rounded mixian to
match the popular flavour of small pot mixian in the market, which,
with the support of our unique broth flavouring technique, can be
brewed and served within five minutes and is therefore tasty, burden-
free and with good value for money.
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Creating Barriers for Competition

The prolonged pandemic in 2022 has also led to fierce competition
in the catering and fast-moving consumer goods industry, prompting
traditional brands to launch cross-sector new products and new
entrants to capture market shares fearlessly by rapid iteration, thus
giving rise to increasing market competition. Confronted by various
challenges, the Group’s business research institute insisted on
consumer value innovation through continuous empowerment of
existing featured products for livelihood and development of new
products (categories) to meet the diversified needs of consumers
to the greatest extent, while improving its flavouring technology to
differentiate and personalize tastes, which served as a protection
added to the competitiveness of our products.

On one hand, the Group continued to empower its featured products
for livelihood by iteration and innovation through constantly optimizing
the traditional flavour of “Uni-stewed beef flavoured noodles (4% —
41JE4-A%E)”, where the freshness was enhanced and side dishes
were optimised to bring more perfect experience on consumption.
For the Vine Pepper Beef Noodles (B&#l 4 I %H) under “Teng Jiao
(B&1#3)”, the core ingredients have been continuously improved to
ensure the stable quality of vine pepper and stimulate the taste buds
of young consumers through flavour upgrades. For “Uni Ice Tea
(B —KALZL)”, the stability of tastes during shelf life was ensured
through optimization of production process and enhancement in the
quality of its core ingredients such as tea powder and flavouring,
which highlighted the characteristics of its flavour. The product
colour and flavour of “Uni Green Tea (4 — %% %5)” was further
improved through the establishment of detailed colour standards for
shelf life and process standard. With respect to the “Uni More Juice
Series (#i—% R+ %751)”, we continued to optimise the production
process, allowing consumers to truly experience the stability of taste,
while at the same time launching an 1-liter package with good value
for money and a canned series exclusively for the catering channel to
serve the secondary market.
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On the other hand, the Group actively developed new products
(categories), namely, the “A-Ha raw coconut flavoured latte (38 '&
A= #)”, which caters to the demand of consumers for plant-
based food by using coconut milk and coconut water instead of milk
for coconut-based coffee and is friendly to lactose intolerant people
with its lactose free feature, and the flavour collision with coffee is
excellent enough to provide a pleasant taste while refreshing the
mind; and the “Tomato Bolognese Instant Pasta (#ii1 £ & =, & il A
HZRLKEEEE)”, which aimed at the fast-growing instant pasta market
in recent years, where products are served with the sauce made of
from a Xinjiang tomato and the essence of beef, accompanied by the
ltalian specialty of cheese, basil and parsley, contributing to the fresh
and rich sweet-sour tastes of the chewy noodles.

To ensure our long-term competitiveness, the Group’s business
research institute continued to work on more than 10 core
technology projects in 2022 through internal and external
collaborative innovation and independent innovation, in which, the
lemon project was successfully applied to the “Fruit Trio Calamansi
Juice (REZE B £ 1#571)”, while the beef project was successfully
applied to the optimization of our featured products for livelihood,
namely the “Stewed Beef Flavoured noodles (4L /&4 A 2E)” and
the “Spicy Beef Flavoured noodles (& ¥4 P %H)” and several new
flavours related to lemon or beef were stockpiled at the same time.
Meanwhile, the Group’s business research institute actively promoted
domestic production of core ingredients and the identification of
secondary suppliers. During the pandemic, the Group activated
the reserve recipe and swiftly developed the ingredients of relevant
secondary suppliers. The small percentage substitution and steady
advancement of the domestically produced tea leaves for the “Uni
Assam Milk Tea (4 —FIFEIBYLES)” has ensured the safety of supply
while establishing the technical barrier of tea blending.
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RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT PLANNING
STRATEGY

In the midst of the 2022 pandemic, consumers felt more intuitively
the importance of food as a necessity of life. Based on the “Y+5”
corporate strategic plan, the Group’s business research institute
focused on the continuous optimization of livelihood products
through relentless empowerment of existing classic flavours and the
maintenance of “3Ys”, i.e. stability, continuity and consistency, so
as to make them have better value for money and better meet the
needs of consumers. We have continued to expand consumption
scenarios, such as the development of canned flavours in the post-
pandemic era with higher growth potential in the dining scenario,
and the development of exquisite drinks of 300ml volume and
large packaged beverage products with 1.5 liter or larger volume
for household consumption, as well as new food products such as
affordable bagged noodles and noodle toppings.

The Group will develop new on-trend products (categories),
including the extension of old categories, such as the expansion
of sub-categories under large categories, the exploration of local
fruit flavours, and the development of more regional cuisines; and
the expansion of new products, such as affordable sugar-free tea
and cereal tea, prepared dishes flavoured with healthy ingredients,
tasty and burden-free leisure snacks, sugar-free versions of classic
flavoured soft drinks, and refrigerated beverages that maintain the
ingredients’ freshness.

In 2023, the Group will continue to focus on core technologies and
collaborate with research institutes with advanced technologies in
the industry and the parent company’s business research institute
in Taiwan to innovate and deploy in core technology development
projects such as non-fried, sugar-free, and Three Reduction
and Three Kind of Health (= J8 = {#), i.e. Sugar Reduction, Salt
Reduction, and Oil Reduction (J&#& ~ & B& ~ &l >#) that are in line
with the future trends in a forward-looking manner to enhance the
innovation capability of the Group’s business research institute.
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FOOD SAFETY

We uphold the philosophy of “Three Goods and One Fairness (=
4 — /&), i.e. Good Quality, Good Credit, Good Service and
Fair Price (mBE - ERE ~ IR T ~ B8 2 1E), and with the
mission of producing products that consumers will “be comfortable
and happy to eat (FZ12Z ) ~ 1213 B 1)), we offer safe, healthy
and delicious food to consumers. We have set up the Food Safety
and Quality Committee with our General Manager as its Director,
as the organization of supreme power to design and optimise the
food safety and quality system. The members of the Food Safety
and Quality Committee cover all relevant departments including the
business research institute, procurement resources management
office, the production management group, food safety and
management office, etc. The Committee holds meetings periodically
to discuss food safety management issues. Besides, we have set
up the Food Safety and Management Office as the food safety
management department to establish a food safety assurance
system, formulate and put in place food safety policies, deepen food
safety risk assessment, provide warning and monitoring, etc.

We have established three lines of defense for food safety, namely,
qualification review, field assessment, and food safety testing. By
managing suppliers’ food safety from multiple perspectives, we have
effectively controlled the food safety risk brought by suppliers and
ensured food safety on the supply chain.

We adhere to three controls to ensure quality and prevent abnormity
in quality: quality control of raw materials through incoming
acceptance check, control of production process, and quality control
of finished products. Our products strictly abide by relevant laws and
regulations such as the Food Safety Law of the People’s Republic
of China. Besides, the food safety solutions for all products are
monitored to ensure they comply with laws and regulations and are

Vg/i=Rwan]

“comfortable and happy to eat (IZ18Z2 0 ~ 1215 BE0))”.

The Group’s Food Safety and Management Office has set up a
Food Safety Testing Centre to provide strong support to food
safety risk control. Since 2005, the Centre has passed the annual
China National Accreditation Service for Conformity Assessment
(CNAS accreditation). So far, 174 projects of the Group have been
approved. Meanwhile, the Group has a number of national patents
for utility models and more than 700 perennial independent testing
projects. The Group’s testing capability of food safety projects
include drinks, food, water, additives, grain and oil, and packaging
materials.
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The Group’s plants have established a complete food safety
management system according to ISO 22000, FSSC 22000
and Hazard Analysis Critical Control Point (HACCP). As of 2022,
25 subsidiaries of the Group were accredited with the 1ISO
22000 International Standard Food Safety Management System
Certification, one with the FSSC 22000 certification, and six with the
HACCP certification.

PRODUCTION STRATEGIES

The Group spared no effort in our operation, research and
development and innovation, aiming to meet different customer
needs. In order to balance the supply chain risk brought by the
pandemic and to achieve synergistic effects in transportation cost,
production efficiency and operational support, the Group did not
solely rely on its own production resources. It also outsourced its
production to other professional beverages manufacturers (including
external independent third parties and related-party companies).
A strategic alliance was formed under long-term co-operation
with the external manufacturers, enabling the Group to outsource
production mode to adjust production capacity in addition to the
basic production capacity, providing the Group with production
flexibility. Thus, the Group was able to fully utilise its resources on
core operation and optimise its efficiency.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Year”), the Group
recorded revenue of RMB28,257.4 million, representing an increase
of 12.0% from RMB25,230.6 million for 2021. Revenue from the
food business amounted to RMB11,009.4 million, representing an
increase of 15.6% as compared with the corresponding period of last
year, which accounted for 39.0% of the Group’s total revenue, and
revenue from the beverages business amounted to RMB16,405.4
million, representing an increase of 11.3% as compared with the
corresponding period of last year, which accounted for 58.1% of
the Group’s total revenue. During the Year, gross profit of the Group
decreased from RMB8,218.9 million for the corresponding period
last year to RMB8,187.9 million, representing an decrease of 0.4%
while the gross profit margin decreased by 3.6 percentage points
from 32.6% for the corresponding period last year to 29.0%, which
was mainly due to the effect of the increase in the cost of bulk raw
materials.
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During the Year, the selling and marketing expenses increased
by approximately RMB343.8 million to RMB5,886.6 million (2021:
RMB5,542.8 million) as compared with the corresponding period
of last year. The increase in selling and marketing expenses was
mainly due to the year-on-year increase in the number of sales
representatives and the transportation expense. During the Year,
administrative expenses amounted to RMB1,047.4 million (2021:
RMB1,048.8 million), representing a slight decrease as compared
with the corresponding period of last year.

As a result of the combined effect of the increase in bulk raw material
prices and the increase in transportation costs, operating profit
was RMB1,495.8 million for the Year (2021: RMB1,905.8 million),
representing a decrease of 21.5% as compared to the corresponding
period last year. The share of profits of investments accounted
for using the equity method amounted to RMB26.1 million (2021:
RMB35.0 million) during the Year, such decrease as compared to
the corresponding period last year was mainly due to the share
of loss of joint ventures. Profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company for the Year was RMB1,222.2 million (2021: RMB1,500.7
million), representing a decrease of 18.6% as compared to the
corresponding period last year. Earnings per share during the Year
were RMB28.30 cents (2021: RMB34.74 cents).

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
Cash and Borrowings

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had cash at bank and on
hand of RMB6,654.2 million (31 December 2021: RMB6,078.3
million), among which 99.97% was denominated in Renminbi,
0.01% was denominated in United States dollar and 0.01% was
denominated in Hong Kong dollar. The Group mainly financed its
operation and capital expenditures with internally generated cash
flow. As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s total financial liabilities
amounted to RMB869.5 million (31 December 2021: RMB149.7
million), representing a increase of 480.8% as compared to the
corresponding period last year, which was mainly attributable to the
increase in short-term borrowings and lease liabilities. Our short-
term working capital was relatively sufficient to repay our bank
borrowings. 100% of borrowings of the Group’s total financial
liabilities was denominated in Renminbi. As at 31 December 2022,
all of the Group’s financial liabilities bore floating interest rates. As
at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any secured bank
borrowing (31 December 2021: Nil).

*  Annual Report 2022 £k

31



B E 5 am R 3 th

Management Discussion & Analysis

BB

AEESHEHITBEENEREE » 2022454
12831 B KR2021E12831H ZAEBWNE
AEELERDT

Financing

The Group aims to maintain an appropriate capital structure.
The gearing ratios of the Group as at 31 December 2022 and 31
December 2021 were as follows:

2022 2021
AR®BTRT AR%T
RMB’000 RMB’000
wEs (8EREae® Total borrowings (including lease liabilities) 869,496 149,719
B IRTTRFERE (MsE1) Less: cash at bank and on hand (Note 1) (6,654,208)  (6,078,271)
&34 Net cash (5,784,712)  (5,928,552)
AR Total equity 13,181,353 183,765,301
BEAREBLEE (Y5E2) Gearing ratio (Note 2) (43.89%) (43.07%)
Mzt pR2022F 12831 H RITEFHEIEESLT Notel: As at 31 December 2022, cash at bank and on hand excluded
B e EEEERERTHITNSRER ° the Group’s purchase of financial products issued by commercial
R2022F 12831 H Z"EBFAEAF banks. As at 31 December 2022, the Group had financial assets at
Bt AlEmzemMEES ARE1,0185 fair value through profit or loss of RMB1,018.5 million (31 December
B8t (2021F 128310 AR#E1,715.4 2021: RMB1,715.4 million)
BET) °
fffz52 | BARBEBELEXRIGIS FERLEHSSTE o Note 2:  The gearing ratio is computed as net cash divided by total equity.

BETHERETERILEER RBERAKRER
MEIFR RRRERAESTLE2ZEIE
T o W BREKEIRIENE AR E AL o
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The Group reviewed its gearing ratio on a regular basis. According to
the capital plan for the future, the Group tried to maximize revenue
for its shareholders with capital risk awareness in mind. Capital
structure was constantly adjusted according to changes in the
operational environment.

Cash Flow and Capital Expenditure

As at 31 December 2022, the Group recorded a year-on-year
net decrease in cash and cash equivalents of RMB177.1 million,
comprising net cash inflow from operating activities of RMB1,430.3
million, net cash outflow from investing activities of RMB416.8 million
and net cash outflow from financing activities of RMB1,190.7 million.
The Group’s capital expenditure for the Year was RMB545.9 million
(31 December 2021: RMB437.3 million).
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Analysis of Operating Efficiency

The Group stringently controls and manages the levels of trade
receivables, trade payables and inventories. Sales to most customers
are made on a delivery on payment basis. Trade receivables are
generated from credit sales to credit customers from modern
channels and e-commerce business (including but not limited to food
and groceries stores, stalls and department stores) with credit terms
normally ranging from 60 to 90 days. During the Year, as product
preparation for Chinese New Year has been moved up to December
2022 and the products prepared for e-commerce channels and
modern channels has increased. As a result, net trade receivables
increased by RMB171.4 million to RMB819.9 million (31 December
2021: RMB648.5 million).

The Group’s inventories mainly comprised raw materials, packaging
materials, finished goods and low-value consumables. As at 31
December 2022, the inventories balance increased by RMB130.0
million to RMB2,522.5 million (31 December 2021: RMB2,392.5
million) as compared to the beginning of the Year, which was
attributable to the growth in cost of bulk raw materials and early
preparation of products for the Chinese New Year sales. The
inventories turnover days decreased by two day as compared with
2021. The Group’s trade payables mainly arise from credit purchases
of raw materials and finished goods. During the Year, trade payables
increased by RMB557.0 million to RMB2,675.0 million (31 December
2021: RMB2,118.0 million), which was attributable to the increase in
purchases of finished goods and raw materials required in the early
preparation for increased production and sales during the Chinese
New Year. The following table sets out the major turnover days for
the past two years ended 31 December.

HE12B31ALLEE
Year ended 31 December

2022 2021
FEW B 5 IR B K81 Trade receivables turnover days 9 9
FEREXH Inventory turnover days 44 46
INEERZE RN PR Trade payables turnover days 43 42

FEWE ZEREERUBENELE ZERD
FURFRGFENFIIERNEERE BX
MFERRE -

FERBRASNEFNRFREESGEHRNF
HEFRUIHENRZE » BRUFARE

Trade receivables turnover days were calculated based on the
average of trade receivables balances as at the beginning and the
end of the year divided by revenue multiplied by the number of days
in the year.

Inventory turnover days were calculated based on the average of
inventory balances as at the beginning and the end of the year
divided by cost of sales multiplied by the number of days in the year.
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Trade receivables turnover days were calculated based on the
average of trade payable balances as at the beginning and the end
of the year divided by cost of sales multiplied by the number of days
in the year.

The Group reckoned that trade receivables turnover days, inventory
turnover days and trade payables turnover days in the distribution
channel helped the Group in understanding the efficiency of
inventory liquidity and the sales and cash conversion cycle. Through
reviewing and improving the turnover days, the Group could improve
its revenue, profit and the ability of on-going growth for the sake of
enhancing operational efficiency.

Financial Management

The Group adheres to the principle of financial prudence. It seeks
to control risk variables and moves forward prudently by moderately
adjusting its selling and marketing expenses according to market
conditions, and making appropriate capital expenditures to optimise
and expanding the infrastructure and marketing assets for sales
channels. The Group’s finance department has formulated financial
risk management policies based on the policies and procedures
approved by the Board and guided by the executive Directors.
These policies are reviewed by the Group’s internal audit department
and internal control department regularly. The Group’s financial
policy aims at reducing impacts of interest rate and exchange rate
fluctuations on the Group’s overall financial position, as well as
minimising the Group’s financial risk exposure.

The Group’s finance department provides centralised financial
risk (including interest rate and foreign exchange risk) and cash
flow management, and cost-effective funding for the Group and
its members. During the Year, the Group continued to advance
the progress of financial intellectualization and carried out daily
settlement at all key nodes to provide more accurate services to all
business systems, while significantly improving the efficiency of our
closed-loop corporate governance, reducing costs and increasing
efficiency.
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Treasury Policy

It was the Group’s treasury management policy not to engage in
any highly risky investment or speculative derivative product and
not to invest the working capital in financial products with significant
underlying leverage or risks, including hedge funds or similar
financial products. The Group continued to adopt a conservative
approach to financial risk management during the Year. Most of
the Group’s receipts and payments were denominated in Renminbi
since a majority of its revenue was derived from operations in the
PRC. The Group may use foreign exchange forward contracts,
when appropriate, for risk aversion when it is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from assets or liabilities, such as cash and cash
equivalents and borrowings, which may be denominated in other
currencies.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not hold any significant
investments with a value of 5% or more of the Group’s total assets.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2022.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

The Group did not have any charge on group assets as at 31
December 2022.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

The Group had no material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures during the Year.

FUTURE PLAN FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

The Directors confirmed that as at the date of this report, there was
no plan for any material investment or to acquire capital assets other
than those in the Group’s ordinary business of manufacturing and
sale of beverages and instant noodles.

* Annual Report 2022 £4R

30



B E s am R 3 th

Management Discussion & Analysis

ADEREMEBER

R2022F 12831 H  AEEREEBLAES
33,555 \ o REBMBHFRELE « HEIRIEN
RE)  FEECAEBTMA NGRS BELER
Lo BAMK -EAARE L KREERER
IR AAMS P AESRE » BIFREm0E
A~ AREEHA > BARERETEREIIR
F o BEAIPEREEE ~ Bt EINE MRS
SIBRABEE > TEIRFAGEES > A&EE
Zo0 U B SRR HREE > B @B
AX IEEAAT EWEZEHEST > BR
HREEEERN IR - AEREEH
EMEBEERE AEER USRS RER
HE R REENAERERFRELRS
MANSHRES - BRRSRIBAEEEIE L
MEEBBMEMRZ NG  FEEFEEUR
B E B GTZER o

FEBMETHERKBEREERESHERE B
FE~FrARIRZAES] ~ HiG R LB R A LR
RIFFHER - (FAXERMEBERN—IR
rEBREHEESIUENERBEN  BFF
RIE -t BRERT - TIEBRE2REE
RIS - BEMENRBEEURRLILRMESE -

AEE-HBMETIHEK (BEESE) AAR
430438 87T (20214 : AREE4,030.6H
BJT) °

30

H— 1 EPEZEIRA R AT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 31 December 2022, the total number of employees of the
Group was 33,555. The Group adhered to the policies of focused
and streamlined operation, and organisational structure and staff
structure were improved on a continuous basis to build a stronger
and efficient enterprise. In terms of recruitment, the Group was
streamlining its administration and progressing towards meritocracy.
The Group insisted on building a stable and robust team through
mechanisms including comprehensive training and humane care.
Internal training, regular position transfer, external exchange
and part-time study and other measures enhanced our overall
performance and provided talents for key positions of the Group
steadily. Meanwhile, priorities were given to internal promotion over
external recruitment, and performance appraisal and other measures
were implemented to keep the current management team ambitious
and strong. To achieve the Group’s annual goals, the Group had
performance bonuses and incentive schemes in place to commend
and encourage employees at all levels to make outstanding
contributions to the Group’s business. Performance bonuses were
distributed on the basis of the realised earnings and profits objectives
of individual business units and the Group as a whole, as well as the
performance appraisal of the employees.

The Group’s remuneration policy rewarded our employees and
directors with reference to their performance, qualifications,
demonstrated capabilities, market comparable information and the
performance of the Group. As part of the Group’s remuneration
policy, the Group entered into individual employment contracts
with each of its employees, which covered wages, social security
benefits, workplace safety and hygiene environment, confidentiality
obligations on trade secrets and termination conditions.

During the Year, total staff costs (including directors’ remuneration)
were RMB4,324.3 million (2021: RMB4,030.6 million).
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EFEHRS
Report of the Directors

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Uni-President
China Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) is pleased to present its report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2022 (the “Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Group comprise the manufacturing and sales of
beverages and instant noodles in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”). The principal activities of its subsidiaries as of 31 December
2022 are set out in Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the Year by business
segments is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 97 of the annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of
RMB33.95 cents per share of the Company for the Year (the
“Proposed Final Dividends”), amounting to a total dividend of
approximately RMB1,466.6 million. The Proposed Final Dividends
shall be declared in RMB and paid in Hong Kong dollars. The actual
amount of dividend payable in Hong Kong dollars will be calculated
based on the average central parity rate of RMB against Hong
Kong dollars as published by the People’s Bank of China for the five
business days in Hong Kong immediately preceding the date of the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (the “Annual
General Meeting”).

The Proposed Final Dividend, subject to the approval of shareholders
of the Company (the “Shareholders”) at the Annual General Meeting
to be held on or around Friday, 2 June 2023, will be paid on or
around Wednesday, 28 June 2023 to Shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on Monday, 12
June 2023.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in the investment properties of the Group
during the Year are set out in Note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the Year are set out in Note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the Year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on page 101 of the annual report and Note 27
to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2022, the Company’s distributable reserves
calculated under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands
comprise the share premium, contributed surplus, fair value reserves
and retained earnings totalling RMB7,945,538,000.

FIVE YEARS’ FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 4 of the
annual report.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of the borrowings of the Group are set out in Note 30 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the Year
amounted to RMB16,119,570 (2021: RMB10,526,275).

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the Year and as at the date of
the annual report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien (Chairman)
Mr. Liu Xinhua (President)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui
Mr. Su Tsung-Ming
Ms. Chien Chi-Lin (appointed on 8 March 2023)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chen Sun-Te

Mr. Chen Johnny

Dr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony
Mr. Lo Peter

In accordance with Article 130 of the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles of Association”), each of Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien,
Mr. Liu Xinhua and Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui, will retire by rotation at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting. Each of Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien,
Mr. Liu Xinhua and Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui being eligible, will offer himself
for re-election. Pursuant to Article 114 of the Articles of Association,
Ms. Chien Chi-Lin shall hold office only until the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting and shall then be eligible for re-election at the same
meeting. Ms. Chien Chi-Lin will offer herself for re-election at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

There is no service contract entered into between each of Mr. Lo
Chih-Hsien, Mr. Liu Xinhua, Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui and Ms. Chien Chi-Lin
and the Company which is not determinable by the Company or any
of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 60 to 64 of the
annual report.
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UPDATE OF INFORMATION PURSUANT TO
RULE 13.51(B)

During the Year, other allowances payable to each of (i) Mr. Chen
Sun-Te; (i) Mr. Chen Johnny; (iii) Dr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony; and (iv)
Mr. Lo Peter pursuant to their respective appointment letters have
increased by US$1,000 per annum.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) were as
follows:

Long positions in the shares of the associated corporation

RIEE
Number of shares

#2022

18EUTFL 12A31HZ

EEEEREBMRRZHE BA#z HEEzES ARER wxt BRESHL

Percentage of

shareholding

Interest of as at

Name of corporation and Personal child under Corporate 31 December

name of its relevant shareholder Interest 18 or spouse Interest Total 2022

(BE49)

(Approximate)
m—rERH Uni-President
BRAS Enterprises
Corporation

BERSHE Lo Chin-Hsien 4,059,095 93,402,447 - 97,461,542 1.72%
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the
Directors nor the chief executive of the Company and their respective
associates had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

None of the Company, any of its holding companies, subsidiaries and
fellow subsidiaries was a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors or their respective associates (as defined under the Listing
Rules) to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate at the end
of the Year or at any time during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS AND
SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract or letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years and which
may be renewed upon expiry of their term.

Except for the service contracts or letters of appointment entered
into with the Company, during the Year, no other contracts of
significance, transaction and arrangement to which the Company,
any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was
a party and in which a Director or an entity connected with a Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at the date of the annual report, none of the Directors and
directors of the Company’s subsidiaries, or their respective
associates had interests in businesses, other than being a Director
and/or a director of its subsidiaries and their respective associates,
which competes or is likely to compete either directly or indirectly,
with the businesses of the Company and its subsidiaries as required
to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ OR OTHERS’
INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF THE

COMPANY

As at 31 December 2022, so far as are known to any directors or
chief executive of the Company, the following parties (other than
directors or chief executive of the Company) had interests in the
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be

Bifft ko kept pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.
e/ Ke Long positions/short positions
1?2022
12831BZ
&8 1% AT EBRHE FRRESL
Percentage of
shareholding
Number of as at
ordinary shares of 31 December
Name Capacity the Company 2022
(149)
(Approximate)
m—EXRNDARAS (1) REGAEED 3,126,291,983 (L) 72.38%
Uni-President Enterprises Corporation (Note 1)  Interest of controlled
corporations
Cayman President Holdings Ltd. (Ff#zE 1) EmEAA 3,044,508,000 (L) 70.49%

Cayman President Holdings Ltd. (Note 1)

L
MIsE -

1.
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R AA E)3,126,291,983 B B 14 (TR&171) &
7 > 3,044,508,000 i %1% FH Cayman President
Holdings Ltd. (I Cayman President J) > #t—
rtEROBERQ2E (IF—0F* 2—KE
B2EWB AR A > 22,495,983 i
1% 4 President (BVI) International Investment
Holdings Ltd. (I President (BVI) J » 4 — > 2
BEFEGIIT % Emr — KRB FA
59,288,000 12 f& 17 HEl R BN EB R R E
MNEBV) > #H—hEr —REZE2ERE
ZAE) A - |t RIEF S RBBERG
i — bW R A 9 B K Cayman President
President (BVI) &z 8\ /& (BVI) 35 A Z Fi B B 1%
R o
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Beneficial owner

L denotes a long position in the shares of the Company.

Note:

1. Out of 3,126,291,983 shares of the Company (the "Shares”),
3,044,508,000 Shares were held by Cayman President Holdings Ltd.
(“Cayman President”), which is a direct wholly- owned subsidiary of Uni-
President Enterprises Corporation* (“UPE”), 22,495,983 Shares were
held by President (BVI) International Investment Holdings Ltd. (“President
(BVI)"), which is indirectly-owned as to 69.37% by UPE and 59,288,000
Shares were held by Kai Yu (BVI) Investment Co., Ltd. (“Kai Yu (BVI)"),
which is indirectly wholly-owned by UPE. Accordingly, UPE was
deemed to be interested in all the Shares respectively held by Cayman
President, President (BVI) and Kai Yu (BVI) by virtue of the SFO.

*  Annual Report 2022 3R
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, no other
substantial shareholder or person (other than Directors or chief
executive of the Company) had an interest or short position in the
Shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” of this Report of the Directors, (i) there was no
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance subsisting during
or at the end of the Year in which a Director or an entity connected
with a Director is or was materially interested, either directly or
indirectly; (i) no other contract of significance was entered into by,
and/or subsisted between the Company or any of its subsidiaries
with its controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries during the
Year; and (jii) there is no other contract of significance in relation
to provision of services by the controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries to the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance coverage for
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its
Directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities
and/or actions. During the Year and as at the date of this annual
report, permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 9 of the
Companies (Directors’ Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D of the
Laws of Hong Kong)) was or is being in force for the benefit of the
Directors.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

UPE is the holding company of Cayman President which in turn is
a substantial shareholder of the Company. As Cayman President
is a connected person of the Company and UPE is an associate of
Cayman President, UPE is also a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules.

Details of the continuing connected transactions entered into by,
and/or subsisted between, the Group and UPE, its subsidiaries and
associates (excluding the Group) (for the purpose of this Report of
the Directors, hereinafter referred to as “UPE Group”) during the Year
and which are not being exempted under Rule 14A.73 of the Listing
Rules are set out below:

() 2020 Framework Sales Agreement

On 25 March 2020, the Company entered into a framework
sales agreement (the “2020 Framework Sales Agreement”)
with UPE, pursuant to which the Company agreed to sell or
procure members of the Group to agree to sell, on a non-
exclusive basis, to UPE Group, certain beverages, instant
noodles and bakery products and such other products, as
may be agreed in writing by the Group and UPE Group and/or
their respective members from time to time for a fixed term of
three years from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023 (both
days inclusive). The pricing basis and the other terms of the
sales transactions contemplated under the 2020 Framework
Sales Agreement shall be subject to the terms and conditions
contained therein and determined in the ordinary course of
business on normal commercial terms, negotiated on arm’s
length basis between the parties thereto and determined in
accordance with the internal control procedures of the Group,
which, in principle, shall be no less favourable to the Group
than those offered to independent third parties by the Group in
comparable transactions of the same period. Further details of
the 2020 Framework Sales Agreement were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 25 March 2020.
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2020 Framework Purchase Agreement

On 25 March 2020, the Company entered into a framework
purchase agreement (“2020 Framework Purchase Agreement”)
with UPE, pursuant to which the Company agreed to purchase
or procure members of the Group to agree to purchase, on a
non-exclusive basis, from UPE Group certain raw materials,
packaging materials, finished goods and such other goods
as may be agreed in writing by the Group and UPE Group
and/or their respective members from time to time for a fixed
term of three years from 1 January 2021 to 31 December
2023 (both days inclusive). The pricing basis and the other
terms of the purchase transactions contemplated under the
2020 Framework Purchase Agreement shall be subject to
the terms and conditions contained therein and determined
in the ordinary course of business on normal commercial
terms, negotiated on arm’s length basis between the parties
thereto and determined in accordance with the internal control
procedures of the Group, which, in principle, shall be no less
favourable to the Group than those offered to the Group by
independent third parties in comparable transactions of the
same period. Further details of the 2020 Framework Purchase
Agreement were disclosed in the announcements of the
Company dated 25 March 2020 and 22 May 2020 and the
circular of the Company dated 7 May 2020.
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(iii) 2020 Framework Logistics Service Agreement

On 25 March 2020, the Company entered into a framework
logistics service agreement (the “2020 Framework Logistics
Service Agreement”) with UPE, pursuant to which UPE agreed
to provide or procure members of UPE Group to agree to
provide, on a non-exclusive basis, to the Group transportation
and logistics services (including, but not limited to, storage
services, design of, and the provision of technical support
service to, logistics systems) and such other logistics-related
ancillary and support services as may be agreed in writing by
the Group and UPE Group and/or their respective members
from time to time for a fixed term from 1 January 2021 to 31
December 2023 (both days inclusive). The pricing basis and
the other terms of the transactions contemplated under the
2020 Framework Logistics Service Agreement shall be subject
to the terms and conditions contained therein and determined
in the ordinary course of business on normal commercial
terms, negotiated on arm’s length basis between the parties
thereto and determined in accordance with the internal control
procedures of the Group, which, in principle, shall be no
less favourable to the Group than those offered by suppliers
who are third party independent of the Group in comparable
transactions of the same period. Further details of the 2020
Framework Logistics Service Agreement were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 25 March 2020.
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(iv) 2020 Framework Technical Support Service

Agreement

On 25 March 2020, the Company entered into a framework
technical support service agreement (the “2020 Framework
Technical Support Service Agreement”) with UPE, pursuant to
which the Company agreed to provide and procure members
of the Group to agree to provide, on a non-exclusive basis,
to UPE Group technical support and management services
(including but not limited to the human resources management
services) and such other technical support services as may
be agreed in writing by the Group and UPE Group from time
to time for a fixed term of three years from 1 January 2021 to
31 December 2023 (both days inclusive). The pricing basis
and the other terms of the transactions contemplated under
the 2020 Framework Technical Support Service Agreement
shall be subject to the terms and conditions contained therein
and determined in the ordinary course of business on normal
commercial terms, negotiated on arm’s length basis and
determined in accordance with the internal control procedures
of the Group, which, in principle, shall be no less favourable
to the Group than those offered to independent third parties
by the Group in comparable transactions of the same period.
Further details of the 2020 Framework Technical Support
Service Agreement were disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 25 March 2020.
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The annual cap (the “Annual Cap”) as approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company (for 2020 Framework Purchase
Agreement) or as set by the Company (for 2020 Framework Sales
Agreement, 2020 Framework Logistics Service Agreement and 2020
Framework Technical Support Service Agreement) and the total
actual transaction value in respect of each of the 2020 Framework
Sales Agreement, the 2020 Framework Purchase Agreement,
the 2020 Framework Logistics Service Agreement and the 2020
Framework Technical Support Service Agreement (collectively, the
“2020 CCT Agreements”) for the Year are set out below:

X5 2020 FIFERAER Z10E BRRZEE FELR
Actual
Transaction
Transaction 2020 CCT Agreements Amount Annual Cap
ONE =N (ANREE=®RT)
(RMB million) (RMB million)
2020 FFAEZRIHE ek 2020 Framework Sales Agreement
EIHEBEE Total sales value 207.3 250.0
2020 FFIEZR R FE ek 2020 Framework Purchase Agreement
BIRBEEE Total purchase value 5,084.7 5,210.0
2020 EAEZRYIRARTFS W% 2020 Framework Logistics Service Agreement
W ZEE Total transaction value 0.1 35.0
2020 FFAEZR TR & 2020 Framework Technical Support Service
R HEETFZEE Agreement Total transaction value 54.9 120.0
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When determining whether the above transactions have been
conducted in accordance with the pricing policies under the relevant
2020 CCT Agreements, the management of the Company would
obtain sufficient market intelligence to ascertain the relevant prevailing
market rate, payment terms and practices, as well as the latest
market and independent third party information. For example, the
management would review quotations from at least two independent
suppliers or service providers and evaluate them from a commercial
perspective, so as to ensure that the products or services to be
procured from the UPE Group are of comparable prices for such
products or services being offered by the independent third parties
of the same period. Where there are no sufficient comparable
transactions available, the prices of such products or services would
be determined on arm’s length basis with reference to historical
prices and cost analysis. Likewise, the management would also
determine the prices of the products or services to be provided to
the UPE Group by reviewing market information to ensure that they
are of comparable prices for such products or services being offered
to independent third parties by the Group.

The internal audit team of the Company has reviewed the continuing
connected transactions based on the relevant documentations
and internal control procedures and have provided findings to the
independent non-executive Directors.

The independent non-executive Directors consider that the methods
and procedures established by the Company were sufficient and
effective to ensure that the transactions were conducted on normal
commercial terms and not prejudicial to the interests of the Company
and its minority shareholders, and that appropriate internal control
procedures were in place. In the opinion of the independent non-
executive Directors, the above transactions conducted pursuant to
the 2020 CCT Agreements were carried out in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group, on normal commercial terms and
were in accordance with the relevant 2020 CCT Agreements and
the pricing policies of the Company, and on terms that were fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Group and the shareholders of
the Company as a whole.
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The Company’s auditors were engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditors have issued their unqualified letter
containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions of the Group in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

The auditors of the Company have confirmed that regarding the
continuing connected transactions of the Group, nothing has come
to their attention that causes them to believe that:

— the continuing connected transactions as disclosed above
have not been approved by the Board;

—  for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by
the Group, such transactions were not, in all material respects,
in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group;

— the transactions were not entered into, in all material respects,
in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions; or

— the transaction amount of the continuing connected
transactions as disclosed above have exceeded the annual
cap as set by the Company or approved by the shareholders
of the Company (as the case may be).
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Board confirms that the related party transactions with the
subsidiaries and/or associates of UPE during the Year as disclosed
in Note 33(a) to the consolidated financial statements fall under the
definition of “connected transactions” or “continuing connected
transactions” (as the case may be) in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The Directors confirm that the Company has, where
applicable, complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Save as aforesaid, the Board
confirms that the related party transactions conducted during the
Year as disclosed in Note 33(b) and Note 33(c) to the consolidated
financial statements do not fall under the definition of “connected
transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” (as the case may
be) in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

NON-COMPETITION CONFIRMATION

The Company has received a written confirmation from UPE
confirming that the UPE Group has not breached any of the terms of
the non-competition deed entered into between the Company and
UPE on 23 November 2007.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the Year, the aggregated sales attributable to the five largest
customers represented less than 30% of the Group’s total revenue
and the aggregated purchases attributable to the five largest
suppliers represented less than 30% of the Group’s total purchases.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

During the Year, the Company has not entered into any equity-linked
agreement (as defined in section 6 of the Companies (Directors’
Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D of the Laws of Hong Kong)).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association, although there are no restrictions against such rights
under the laws of the Cayman Islands.
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TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
the shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the
shares of the Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

The Company and its subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem
any of the listed securities of the Company during the Year.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules during
the Year and as at the date of the annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Board reviewed with management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters
including the review of the audited financial statements for the Year
and has recommended their adoption by the Board.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who shall retire and, being eligible, shall
offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

There has been no change of auditors of the Company in any of the
preceding three financial years.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Below is a business review as required by Schedule 5 to the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong).
The discussion on a fair review of the Group’s business, financial
key performance indicators and performance and indication of future
development of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022
can be found in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report. Those
discussions form part of this Report of the Directors.

Principal risks and uncertainties

There are a number of factors which may affect the results and
business operations of the Group, some of which are inherent to
beverages and instant noodles business and some are from external
sources. Major risks are summarized below.

(i)  Consumer preferences risk

The Group’s success depends on its ability to anticipate the
tastes and dietary habits of consumers and to offer products
that appeal to their preferences. The Company’s failure
to anticipate, identify or react to the changes in consumer
preferences could result in reduced demand for the Group’s
products, which would, in turn, lead to excessive inventory
levels and lower sales volume. The Group will continuously
introduce new products throughout the seasons and will further
shorten the product development cycle in order to improve
our portfolio of products to satisfy consumers’ changing
preferences.

o3
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(i)

(iii)

Competition risk

The industries in which the Group operates in the PRC are
highly competitive. The Group’s ability to compete is, to a
significant extent, dependent on its ability to distinguish its
products from those of the Group’s competitors by providing
high quality products at reasonable prices that appeal to
consumers’ tastes and preferences. The Group’s competitors
have varying abilities to withstand changes in market
conditions. Some of the competitors, which have larger market
shares in the PRC with respect to beverages or instant noodles
products, have operated their respective businesses longer
than the Group has and have wider geographical coverage
for their products and/or stronger distribution networks in the
PRC, therefore they may have substantially greater financial
and other resources than the Group has and may have better
established in the market. Should the Group’s competitors
manage to seize a larger market share, the Group’s sales
volume may be adversely affected. To manage competition
risks, the Group will continue to conduct research and
development on new technology, introduce new products as
well as maintain a high level of quality of its existing products
for a better competitive edge.

Economy and financial markets risk

The food and beverage industry in the PRC is impacted by
fluctuations in the global economy and financial market. The
slowdown of the worldwide economy, including that of the
PRC, caused a drop in consumer confidence and the level of
disposable income, which translated into lower demand for the
Group’s products, affecting the Group’s results of operations.
As a result, the global and local economies, including the PRC
economy, could continue to experience significant volatility.
Significant volatility or another downturn in the PRC and global
economy in the future could have an adverse effect on the
food and beverage industry in the PRC and the demand for
the Group’s products, which may affect the Group’s business,
results of operations and financial condition. With a relatively
stable cash flow in the food and beverage industry, the Group
will continue to launch new products to boost revenue, strictly
control costs, and maintain a stable and appropriate capital
structure to reduce the impact from global economic and
financial market volatility.
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(iv) Supply chain risk

(v)

All of the packaging materials used in the manufacture of the
Group’s food products and a large percentage of packaging
materials used in the production of its beverage products are
supplied by independent third parties or related party suppliers.
In the event these independent third parties or related party
suppliers fail to continue to supply or cannot meet the Group’s
demand for such packaging materials, or the Group is unable
to reach agreement upon reasonable terms with them in
relation to such continued supply, the Group may be unable to
find a comparable substitute supplier of packaging materials,
which in turn may lead to delay in the delivery of its products
to customers. Such delivery delay may affect the Group’s
results of operations. The Group strives to maintain stable
and cooperative relationships with suppliers in respect of the
procurement of essential raw materials and to develop long-
term strategic partnerships as well as productivity strategies
with three or more suppliers to reduce the risk on being over
dependent on a single supplier.

Purchase Risk

Most of the raw materials and packaging used in our beverage
and food business are commodities that may experience price
volatility caused by external conditions such as commodity
markets fluctuations and currency fluctuations. Unexpected
commodity price increase which may result in increase in
costs and therefore causes an impact on operating income. To
manage purchase risks, the Group will continuously review the
deviation of the purchase unit price every month, monitor the
real-time market information and adjust the purchase strategy
from time to time.
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Key Relationships

The Group’s success also relies on the support from its key
relationships with employees, suppliers, distributors and customers.

(i)

(ii)

Employees

Human resources are one of the greatest assets of the Group.
In view of the huge market opportunities for beverages and
food products in the PRC, the Group has been recruiting
talented professionals from time to time. In respect of the new
low-level staff, the Group devotes considerable resources in
staff training and monitor their development and progress in a
timely manner in order to ensure the employees possess the
skills and capabilities to fulfill the relevant job requirements.
Meanwhile, the Group recognises the value of its key personnel
in maintaining team morale and competitiveness. To promote
career advancement and to attract qualified candidates to
join the Group, the Group fill in vacant positions from time to
time through internal promotion and/or external recruitment
with competitive remuneration. On the other hand, the Group
ensures the continuity of the senior management by grooming
management talents by offering continuous internal training,
appropriate job rotation as well as external on-the-job training.

Suppliers

The Group has developed long-standing relationships with a
number of suppliers and taken great care to ensure that they
understand the Group’s commitment to quality and ethics. To
achieve the objective of fair trade and win-win situation with
suppliers, the Group carefully selects suppliers in conformity
with the food safety requirements of “three lines of defense” (i.e
qualification audits, on-site evaluation and food safety testing),
through inviting quotations from suppliers to be procured to the
extent that those products are of comparable nature, quality,
quantity and condition via open tender.
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(ii) Distributors

The Group sells products to end customers through third-
party distributors. The Group works with distributors like
business partners with the same interest, specifically focusing
on attracting and retaining customers in order to drive sales
growth. The Group requires distributors and sub-distributors to
comply with its policies, including but not limited to retail selling
price, promotional activities and standardised application of the
Group’s system.

(iv) Customers

The Group is committed to offer tasty, differentiated and
trendy products to customers. The Group provides safe,
healthy and delicious beverages and instant noodles to
consumers. The Group also stays connected with customers
to keep abreast of the changing consumer preference through
various channels including the Company’s website, customer
hotlines, marketing promotion and social media. In the instant
noodles and beverages industry, the Group’s vast number of
customers are from modern channels (including but not limited
to food and groceries stores, stalls and department stores)
which are scattered and separated. Therefore, the Group does
not have major customers which account for a significant part
of the Company’s revenue. The credit terms and subsequent
settlement for customers are disclosed in the paragraph
headed “Analysis of operating efficiency” in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Group has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) on
31 December 2018 to enhance the transparency of the Company
and to facilitate its shareholders (the “Shareholders”) and investors to
make informed investment decisions relating to the Company.

According to the Dividend Policy, in addition to final dividends, the
Company may declare interim dividends or special dividends to the
Shareholders from time to time.
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The recommendation of the payment of any dividend is subject
to the absolute discretion of the Board. In proposing any dividend
payout, the Board will take into account, inter alia, the Group’s
general financial position, current and future operations, working
capital requirements, liquidity position and any other factors it may
deem relevant from time to time. Any payment of the dividend by
the Company is also subject to the applicable laws of the Cayman
Islands and the Articles of Association.

Subject to the factors set out above, the final dividends to be
declared and paid by the Company shall be not less than 20% of the
Group’s audited consolidated profit attributable to the Shareholders
in any financial year.

The Dividend Policy will continue to be reviewed from time to time
and there is no assurance that any dividend will be paid in any
particular amount for any given period or that the Company is
obliged to declare any dividend at any time or from time to time.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group’s operations are carried out by the subsidiaries of the
Company in the PRC while the shares of the Company are listed
on the Stock Exchange. Our operations are regulated by the
respective laws and regulations of Hong Kong and the PRC. During
the year ended 31 December 2022 and as at the date of this annual
report, we have complied with the relevant laws and regulations
of the PRC and Hong Kong that have significant impact on the
Group. In particular, as a food and beverage manufacturer, the
Group’s operations are regulated by the applicable food safety and
environmental protection laws and regulations in the PRC. During
the year under review, the Group did not have any material non-
compliance with such laws and regulations.

Environmental Policies and Performance

To support environmental protection, the Group initiates and strives
to minimize environmental impact by using water-saving facilities,
conserving electricity and encouraging recycle of office supplies and
other resources. The Group also requires factories of an original
equipment manufacturer (OEM) to operate in strict compliance with
the relevant environmental regulations and rules and possess all
necessary environmental-related permission and approval from the
PRC regulators. A further discussion of the environmental policies of
the Group is contained in the Corporate Social Responsibility Report
of the Company.
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FUTURE DEVELOPMENT OF COMPANY’S
BUSINESS

The discussion of future development of the Company business
can be found in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report. Those
discussions form part of this Report of the Directors.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 3 March 2023, & B4t — R E B R A 8 (unofficial English
translation being Hefei President Enterprises Co., Ltd.) (the “Hefei
President”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and
& BB i B0 (unofficial English translation being Hefei Land
Reserve Centre) (the “Land Reserve Centre”), entered into a disposal
agreement pursuant to which the Land Reserve Centre agreed to
acquire, and Hefei President agreed to dispose of the land use right
of a piece of land (the “Land”) situated in B [ & fE 5 4% B & &5 &
K {E82785% (unofficial English translation being No. 8278, Fan Wa
Avenue, Hefei Economic Development Zone, Hefei City, the PRC) for
a compensation of approximately RMB582.51 million (the “Disposal”).
It is expected to recognise an unaudited net gain (before tax) from
the Disposal of approximately RMB351.41 million. The actual gain
from the Disposal may differ as the estimated gain as set out above is
based on a number of assumptions and the amount will be calculated
upon completion of the Disposal. The proceeds from the Disposal are
intended to be applied as general working capital of the Group. Upon
completion of the Disposal, the Group will cease to hold any interest
in the Land. Further details of the Disposal were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 3 March 2023.

On behalf of the Board
Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
Lo Chih-Hsien
Chairman

Taipei, Taiwan

8 March 2023
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Executive Directors

Mr. LO Chih-Hsien (#& % 5t), aged 66, is the chairman and
executive director of the Company. Mr. Lo is also a director and/
or the chairman of the board of directors of most of the wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Lo joined the Group in
September 1998 and is responsible for the overall strategic planning
and management of the Group. He has over 37 years of experience
in the food and beverage industry and is currently the chairman of
President Chain Store Corporation (4 —iB & IR{7 & FRAE]), Ton Vi
Industrial Corp. (i —BZKHBRAE]), TTET Union Corporation
(R IR1D B RAR]), Prince Housing & Development Corp. (&K F
ERFERMDAERAT) and ScinoPharm Taiwan, Ltd. (& 7& £ &
ABR/ATE]), all of which are listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange
Corporation. He is also the director of Tait Marketing & Distribution
Co., Ltd. (52 ¥ 1T IDBRAF]), a company listed on the Taipei
Exchange. He is also the chairman and group chief strategy officer
of Uni-President Enterprises Corporation (4% — ¥R MHEE A
7)) (“UPE”) , a substantial shareholder of the Company (as defined
in the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), and the director of 103 companies associated with
UPE and its subsidiaries. Mr. Lo holds a master’s degree in business
administration from the University of California, Los Angeles, the
U.S.A. His spouse is Mrs. Shiow-Ling Kao, a director of UPE.

Mr. LIU Xinhua (2137 2%£), aged 52, is the president of the Group
and the general manager of Uni-President Enterprises (China)
Investments Ltd. (& — 12 (FRE) HE B R A E) (‘Uni-President
China Investments”). He has been appointed as an executive director
of the Company with effect from 25 March 2017. He has over 29
years of experience in strategic marketing in the food and beverage
industry. Mr. Liu joined the Group in July 1994 and since then has
been involved in sales and marketing for the Group. He acted as
the sales general manager for the Sichuan province of Chengdu
President Enterprises Food Co., Ltd.* (&8 #K— X B RERA
7)) from November 2006 until August 2008. From August 2008
to September 2014, he acted as the general manager of the food
business department of Uni-President China Investments. From
October 2014 until June 2016, he acted as a general manager of
the marketing planning office and convener of strategic marketing
committee of Uni-President China Investments. Mr. Liu holds a
doctoral degree in business management from Southwest Jiaotong
University (FEFg 22 18K 22) in the PRC.
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Non-Executive Directors

Mr. SU Tsung-Ming (& £ #f), aged 65, is a non-executive
director of the Company. Mr. Su joined the Group in August 2007.
He joined UPE Group in August 2000. He is currently the president
of President International Development Corp. and a director of
President Chain Store Corporation (4 — BB 1A B R A &) and
ScinoPharm Taiwan, Ltd. (& /& # & kD & R A7), all of which
are members of UPE Group and are listed on the Taiwan Stock
Exchange Corporation. Mr. Su is also a director of 18 members of
UPE Group. He has over 37 years of experience in banking and
financial management. Before joining UPE Group, he was the vice-
president of the Taipei branch of Citibank. Mr. Su was the financial
specialist of Seibu Department Store in Tokyo, Japan in 1988 and
the senior specialist of Nortel Networks Asia/Pacific in Tokyo in 1990.
Mr. Su holds a master of business administration degree from the
University of lowa, the U.S.A..

Ms. CHIEN Chi-Lin ($8EHt) , aged 60, is a non-executive director
of the Company. Ms. Chien joined the Group in March 2023.
She has over 25 years of experience in the financial field. She is
currently a director of Uni-President Enterprise Social Welfare Charity
Foundation* (i —E £ ERMNEZEXEEE). Ms. Chien was
a director of the private banking department of UBS AG, Hong Kong
Branch from April 2005 to December 2014. Ms. Chien was a deputy
director in S.G. Warburg Securities, Taiwan Branch office* (2 &
55 5/~ 3) from July 1990 to April 2005. Ms. Chien obtained a
Bachelor’s degree in Economics from National Taiwan University. Ms.
Chien also holds a certification of the trust professional assessment
awarded by the Trust Association of the Republic of China (AR

BEAXBERETS).

Mr. CHEN Kuo-Hui (FREI¥E), aged 54, is a non-executive director
of the Company. Mr. Chen joined the Group in May 2011 as the
chief financial officer of the Group and is also a director and/or
supervisor of certain of the Group’s wholly-owned subsidiaries in the
PRC. He is also the chief financial officer of UPE. Mr. Chen worked
in UPE from November 1997 to April 2011. He was appointed as an
executive director of the Company between August 2013 and June
2017. He is currently a director or a supervisor of 5 wholly-owned
subsidiaries/joint ventures of the Group. Mr. Chen is also a director
of 4 members of UPE Group and a director of President Securities
Corp. which is listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation. He
has over 26 years of experience in financial management. Mr. Chen
holds a master’s degree in business administration from University of
Strathclyde in the United Kingdom.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. CHEN Sun-Te (FREE{E), aged 68, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in August
2007. Mr. Chen has over 40 years of experience in the banking
and financial industry and is currently the Chairman of Taipei Fubon
Commercial Bank. He is also an independent director of Lion Travel
Services Co., Ltd. and a director of Fubon Financial Holdings.
Prior to that, Mr. Chen was an independent director of China
Telecom Corporation from March 2012 to July 2019, the president
of Fullerton Financial Holdings Pte. Ltd. (North Asia and Greater
China regions) between 2005 and 2012, the president of Chinatrust
Financial Holdings Co., Ltd. (now known as CTBC Financial Holding
Co., Ltd) in 2005, the chairman of Chinatrust Securities Co., Ltd.
between 2003 and 2005, the country officer and country head of
the corporate bank in Taiwan of Citigroup between 2001 and 2003
and the regional head of financial markets in Asia Pacific of Citigroup
between 1998 and 2001. He gained extensive financial management
experience from various positions held with finance related
companies and has acquired general knowledge about the food
and beverage industry through dealing with clients in such industry.
Mr. Chen holds a master’s degree in business administration from
University of Missouri, the U.S.A. and a bachelor’s degree in political
science from National Chengchi University, Taiwan.
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Mr. CHEN Johnny (FR&E %), aged 63, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in December
2015. Mr. Chen Johnny joined the management of Zurich Insurance
Group (“Zurich”) in 2005. He worked in Zurich from March 2005
to February 2015 in multiple senior managerial roles in the Asia-
Pacific region. His last position in Zurich was the chairman of
the life and general insurance business in China. Prior to joining
Zurich, Mr. Chen Johnny was an executive member of the Greater-
China Management Board and the Operating Committee of
PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”), as well as a managing partner of
PwC’s Beijing office.

Mr. Chen Johnny is also an independent non-executive director of
Stella International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1836), Alibaba
Pictures Group Limited (stock code: 1060) and China Travel
International Investment Hong Kong Limited (stock code: 308), all
of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr.
Chen Johnny was the chairman of Convoy Global Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1019) (“Convoy”) from December 2017 to March 2021,
during which, he was also the executive director of Convoy from
December 2017 to December 2020 and had been re-designated
as an non-executive director of Convoy from January 2021 to
March 2021. From December 2015 to November 2018, he was an
independent non-executive director of China Minsheng Financial
Holding Corporation Limited (now known as China Vered Financial
Holding Corporation Limited) (stock code: 245) and China Dongxiang
(Group) Co., Ltd. (stock code: 3818) from July 2017 to March 2019,
all of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
From June 2010 to February 2019, he was an independent non-
executive director of Viva China Holdings Limited (stock code: 8032)
which is listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chen Johnny
holds a Master of Science Degree in Accounting from the University
of Rhode Island and a Bachelor Degree of Accounting from the
Johnson & Wales University and is a U.S. certified public accountant.
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Dr. FAN Ren-Da, Anthony (3B {ZiF), aged 62, was appointed as
an independent non-executive director of the Company in August
2007. Mr. Fan is the chairman and managing director of Asialink
Capital Limited and also an independent non-executive director of
Technovator International Limited (stock code: 1206), Shanghai
Industrial Urban Development Group Limited (stock code: 563),
China Dili Group (formerly known as Renhe Commercial Holdings
Company Limited) (stock code: 1387), CITIC Resources Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1205), China Development Bank International
Investment Limited (stock code: 1062), Hong Kong Resources
Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 2882), Neo-Neon Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1868), Semiconductor Manufacturing
International Corporation (stock code: 981). Dr. Fan is also currently
a non-executive director of Hilong Holding Limited (stock code:
1623). Dr. Fan had been the independent non-executive director
of Tenfu (Cayman) Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 6868)
(“Tenfu”) since August 2011 and was re-designated as an executive
director of Tenfu in May 2021. Dr. Fan was an independent non-
executive director of Raymond Industrial Limited (stock code: 229)
from December 1994 to May 2021. All of the said companies are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Dr. Fan holds a
master’s degree in business administration from the U.S.A. and a
PhD degree in Economics.

Mr. LO Peter (885 £), aged 67, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company in November 2007. Mr. Lo is
also an independent non-executive director of Ajisen (China) Holdings
Limited (stock code: 538), and from March 2011 to June 2018,
he was the chairman and an executive director of China Outfitters
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1146), both of which are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lo has over 29 years
of experience in the business field and holds a bachelor’s degree in
mathematical economics and econometrics from the London School
of Economics and Palitical Science, the United Kingdom.
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Senior Management

Mr. LIU Xinhua (ZI#7Z£), aged 52, was appointed as the president
of the Group since 1 July 2016 and an executive director of the
Company with effect from 25 March 2017. Mr. Liu’s biographical
details are set out in the section headed “Directors’ Profile” of this
annual report.

Mr. LIU, Tzu-Chiang (2| F3&), aged 53, was appointed as
the chief financial officer of the Group since 1 July 2017. Mr. Liu
also acts as a supervisor of certain of the Group’s wholly owned
subsidiaries in the PRC. Mr. Liu has over 29 years of experience in
financial management. Mr. Liu joined the Group in June 1998. He
served as the manager and supervisor of the finance department
at Uni-President Enterprises (Xinjiang) Food Co., Ltd. (788 #t — &
# & $ AR AF), Nanchang President Enterprises Co., Ltd. (F
E# — 1> %2 B R A F]), Shenyang President Enterprises Co., Ltd.
(GERR#E— {2 AR /A T , Chengdu President Enterprises Food
Co., Ltd. (A E#— =B AR AF) and Zhengzhou President
Enterprises Co., Ltd. (EBIN4E—122EA PR E]) between June 1998
and September 2014, all being the subsidiaries of the Group. From
August 2007 to May 2012, he was also the administrative director of
the Group in the Northeast region and Southwest region of the PRC.
From October 2014 to June 2017, he was the chief accountant of
the Group. From July 1994 to April 1998, Mr. Liu had served in UPE
Group. Mr. Liu holds a bachelor degree in business administration
from National Cheng Kung University, Taiwan.

Mr. ZHAO Nianen (#:3 &), aged 46, joined the Group in April
1999. He had acted as the head of marketing, the head of operation
and the head of dairy drink department of Kunshan President
Enterprises Food Co., Ltd. (B #Z— X EMERLQF) from
March 2000 to October 2006, and has been appointed as the
general manager of the bottled water business of the Group since
October 2006. He has been a general manager of the combined
drinks business of the Group since October 2014. From August
2021, he acted as a general manager of the marketing planning
office of the Group. He has more than 24 years of experience in
the food and beverages industry and holds a bachelor’s degree in
economics from Shanghai Maritime University, the PRC.
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Mr. HUANG, Wei (& #), aged 41, joined the Group in June
2004. From June 2006 to October 2009, he was responsible for
the planning and brand marketing of the food product business.
From 2010 to 2013, he served as the manager of the marketing
department at Beijing President Enterprises Food Co., Ltd. (JE R4t
—BmAR A7) and Kunshan President Enterprises Food Co., Ltd.
(EL#H—BRERAT). From 2013 to 2014, he was responsible
for brand management of the Instant Food Department of the Group.
From 2014 to 2016, he was employed as the general manager of the
E-commerce Department of the Group and concurrently served as
the strategic development director of the marketing strategy office.
Since September 2017, he has been the general manager of the
business unit of the Life and Food Business Department and the
E-commerce Department of the Group. He is currently the general
manager of the Life and Food Business Department. Mr. Huang
holds a master degree in business administration (MBA) from the
School of Management, Fudan University, the PRC.

Mr. ZHANG Ling (3R %), aged 54, joined the Group in October
1994. During the period from 1994 to 2009, Mr. Zhang was
responsible for management of marketing in different subsidiaries
of the Company, such as Nanchang President Enterprises Co., Ltd.
(A E#H—1%¥ABRAT), Shenyang President Enterprises Co.,
Ltd. CEG 4 — 2B R A F) and Wuhan President Enterprises
Food Co., Ltd. (VEF— BB RAB). In January 2010, Mr.
Zhang served as the Brand Manager of Instant Food Department of
the Group and was promoted to the position of General Manager
in October 2014. Mr. Zhang has over 28 years working experience
in the food industry. Mr. Zhang holds a bachelor’s degree of
engineering from the Hankou College of Huazhong Institute of
Technology of the PRC (now renamed as Huazhong University of
Science and Technology) and a master’s degree in EMBA from
Wuhan University, the PRC.
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H—¥EPEIEEER/A T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

BREEEEE

Senior Management’s Profile

Ms. CHEN Jui-Fen (FR¥%%5), aged 51, joined Guangzhou President
Enterprises Corp. (BEM# — % B R A B]), a subsidiary of the
Group, in February 2009 and was responsible for the management
of marketing functions of Guangzhou President Enterprises Corp.
(B M4 — 2B R /A5)) and Wuhan President Enterprises Food
Co., Ltd. (2R — X B RARAE), subsidiaries of the Group,
prior to October 2011. She was re-designated as the deputy general
manager of the head office of the Group’s tea business in October
2011 and was promoted to the position of general manager in July
2013. Before joining the Group, she has engaged in marketing in
various companies such as Wyeth Nutrition, Taiwan Branch, Ting
Hsin International Group (JTEFTEIFR & E) and YFY (K 28%) and has
27 years of experience in the food and fast moving consumer goods
industries. In 2006, she started to work in the Mainland China when
she joined Wei Chuan Foods Corporation (k2B @ LERMNE
R/~ F)) of Ting Hsin International Group (TE# B B % ) and has
since gained 18 years of work experience in the Mainland China. Ms.
Chen holds both master’s degree in nutrition and health sciences
from Taipei Medical University in Taiwan and EMBA (Shanghai) of
Taiwan’s National Chung Hsing University.
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H— 1 EPEZEIRA R AT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries as the “Group”) is committed to ensure a high standard
of corporate governance practices and procedures and appreciates
that good corporate governance is crucial to enhance investors’
confidence in the Company. In the opinion of the board (the “Board”)
of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company, the Company has
complied with all code provisions of the corporate governance code
(the “Corporate Governance Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Rules (the “Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) then
in force during the year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Year”).

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the Year, the composition of the Board was as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien (Chairman)
Mr. Liu Xinhua (President)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui
Mr. Su Tsung-Ming

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chen Sun-Te

Mr. Chen Johnny

Dr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony
Mr. Lo Peter

Biographical details of the Directors and the relationship amongst
them (if any) are set out in the section headed “Directors’ Profile” in
this Annual Report. In addition, an updated list of Directors of the
Company with their roles and functions is available on our website
and that of the Stock Exchange.

Appropriate directors’ and officers’ liabilities insurance were arranged
for the Directors and officers of the Company.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The term of office of the Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) is three years. In accordance with the Corporate
Governance Code, any new Director appointed to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall submit himself/herself
for re-election by shareholders of the Company at the first general
meeting of the Company after the appointment.

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company, at
each annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”), one-
third of the Directors for the time being or, if their number is not
three or a multiple of three, the number nearest to, but not less
than, one-third, shall retire from office by rotation provided that
every Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
The Directors’ remunerations are determined with reference to
the Director Nomination Policy (as defined below) and the Board
Diversity Policy (as defined below), the Directors’ qualifications,
duties, responsibilities and experiences, and the prevailing market
conditions.

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group’s businesses, investment and
strategic decisions, maintaining the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems, and monitoring the
performance of the Group. There are currently four committees
established under the Board, being the audit committee (the
“Audit Committee”), the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”), the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) and the investment, strategy and development
committee (the “Investment, Strategy and Development Committee”).
Each committee has its terms of reference and reports to the Board
regularly.
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The Company does not have a chief executive officer, whose role
is instead performed by the president of the Group (“President”),
Mr. Liu Xinhua. The roles of the chairman of the Company (the
“Chairman”) and the President are performed by separate persons.
The Chairman, Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien, is responsible for ensuring that
the Directors perform their duties properly and ensuring discussions
on material matters take place on a timely basis. The power and
authority to carry out day-to-day operations and implementation of
the strategies and directions set by the Board are delegated to the
management team of the Company (the “Management”) which is led
by the President. The Management assumes full accountability to the
Board for the operation of the Group.

Continuing updates in relation to the obligations of the Company and
the Directors under the Listing Rules, and the latest developments or
material changes on the applicable ordinances, rules and regulations
are provided to Directors from time to time.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board has at all times during the Year complied with the
requirements under Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of the minimum required number of independent non-
executive Directors which shall be at least one-third of the Board
with at least one independent non-executive Director possessing
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

Pursuant to the Code Provision B.2.3 of the Corporate Governance
Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, if an independent
non-executive Director has served the Company for more than nine
years, such Director’s further appointment should be subject to a
separate resolution to be approved by shareholders of the Company.
Each of Mr. Chen Sun-Te, Dr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony and Mr. Lo
Peter has served as the independent non-executive Directors for
more than nine years since 2016. The re-election of Mr. Chen Sun-
Te was approved by the shareholders of the Company at the AGM
held on 21 May 2021 and the re-election of each of Dr. Fan Ren-Da,
Anthony and Mr. Lo Peter was approved by the shareholders of the
Company under separate resolutions at the AGM held on 27 May
2022,
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The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors his respective confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Board considers
each of them to be independent under the aforesaid Rule 3.13.
Mr. Chen Sun-Te, Dr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony, Mr. Chen Johnny
and Mr. Lo Peter have in-depth understanding of the Company’s
operations and business, and since they are not involved in the
daily management of the Company nor are they in any relationships
or circumstance which would interfere with the exercise of their
independent judgments, the Board is of the opinion that each of
them has the required integrity and independence to continue to fulfil
the role of an independent non-executive director.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS
The Board has not established a corporate governance committee.

Instead, the full Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance function including (i) developing and reviewing the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance, (ii)
reviewing and monitoring training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management of the Company,
(iiiy reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with the applicable legal and regulatory requirements
and (iv) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
and compliance manual applicable to employees of the Group and
the Directors. During the Year, the Board reviewed the Company’s
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code and the disclosure
in its Corporate Governance Report.

Every Board member has full access to the advice and services of
the company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”)
with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable
rules and regulations are complied with and they are also entitled to
have full access to Board papers and related materials so that they
are able to make informed decisions and to discharge their duties
and responsibilities.
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SUPPORT AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

The Company is responsible for arranging and funding suitable
trainings for the Directors. All Directors have been given relevant
guideline materials regarding the roles, duties and responsibilities
of being a Director, the relevant laws and regulations applicable to
them, duty of disclosure of interests and business of the Group.
They have also been updated on the latest developments regarding
the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to
ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices. A procedure has been approved by the
Board to ensure the Directors, upon reasonable request, to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstance, at
the Company’s expenses. The Directors confirmed that they have
complied with Code Provision C.1.4 of the Corporate Governance
Code on continuous professional training. During the Year, all of the
Directors have participated in continuous professional development
in connection with their roles, duties and responsibilities in the
Company by attending seminars, in-house briefings, conferences,
forums, online trainings and/or reading materials on the following
topics to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. Each
Director has provided relevant records of training to the Company
and is summarised as follows.

Topics on training covered (Note)
FREEEIEE ()

BEREE (FE) Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien (Chairman) A

R EL G (AEASIE) Mr. Liu Xinhua (President) A C

%R B V& Sfp = Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui A C

BRERIR A Mr. Su Tsung-Ming A

BRESTEfTAE Mr. Chen Sun-Te A
EREE Mr. Chen Johnny A

SBERL Dr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony A

HEEELE Mr. Lo Peter A

MIEE - Note:

N EELRHE (A)  Corporate governance/regulatory

B) =R (B)  Finance

© FBETE (©)  Industry-specific

2
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BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS

Board meetings were held at regular intervals. During the Year,
the Board has held four board meetings for, among other matters,
reviewing and approving the financial and operating performance
of the Company; reviewing and approving non-exempt continuing
connected transactions of the Group for the Year; reviewing and
approving the disclosures in the interim and annual reports and
the environmental, social and governance report with regards to
the Company’s compliance with the Listing Rules and Corporate
Governance Code; reviewing the Company’s progress in
implementing the corporate governance requirements as set out in
the Corporate Governance Code; making recommendation of the
final dividends for Shareholders’ approval at the next annual general
meeting of the Company; and considering and approving the overall
strategies and policies of the Company.

The attendance of individual Board members at the Board and Board
committees meetings held during the year ended 31 December 2022
are set out in the table below:

HRE/ BTEERY (1)
Number of meetings attended/held (Note 1)

RE EHEE
BRZEe Ru%Z8T HHE8E EEZEE
EEgE EE B EE g5 RREEAS
Investment,
Strategy and
Audit  Nomination Remuneration Development Annual
Board  Committee = Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee General
meetings meetings meetings meetings meetings Meeting
HTEE Executive Directors
BRERE Mr. Lo Chih-Hslen 44 - 212 33 212 11
UmErs Mr, Liu Xinhua 44 - - - 212 11
FHATEZE Non-executive Directors
REERE Mr. Chen Kuo Hui 44 - - - 212 11
BR#tE Mr. Su Tsung-Ming 44 33 - - 212 11
BUFRTEE Independent Non-executive Directors
BEELE Mr. Chen Sun-Te 4/4 33 - 3/3 202 17
RERLE Mr. Chen Johnny 3/4 23 212 - 112 1/1
BLEET Dr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony 44 33 - 33 212 11
BEE%E Mr. Lo Peter 4/4 3/3 2/2 - 2/2 1
5T Note:
1. REFEENLEEXRHZBESTSEEHARE 1. Attendances during the Year were stated by reference to the number

TEEHORHBIR -

H—¥EPEIEEER/A T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

of meetings held during the Directors’ respective tenures.
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In addition, in compliance with code provision C.2.7 of the Corporate
Governance Code, the Chairman of the Board held an annual
meeting with the independent non-executive Directors without the
presence of the other Directors in December 2022.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

During the Year, the audit committee of the Board (the “Audit
Committee”) comprised Dr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony, Mr. Chen
Johnny, Mr. Chen Sun-Te and Mr. Lo Peter, being independent non-
executive Directors and Mr. Su Tsung-Ming, being a non-executive
Director. The Audit Committee is chaired by Dr. Fan Ren-Da,
Anthony.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on appointment and removal of
the external auditors, approving the remuneration and terms of
engagement of external auditors, reviewing financial information
and overseeing the financial reporting system and internal control
procedures. The specific written terms of reference of the Audit
Committee are available for inspection upon request at the principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong and on the
respective website of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the Year to review
the interim and annual financial statements and the effectiveness of
the internal control practices of the Group. All members of the Audit
Committee attended the meetings during the Year. A summary of
the work performed by the Audit Committee during the Year is set
out as follows:

(i) reviewed with the senior management and finance-in-charge
and/or the external auditors the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group, the accuracy and fairness of
the interim and annual financial statements for the six months
ended 30 June 2022 and for the Year respectively;

(i)  met with the external auditors and reviewed their work and

findings relating to the annual audit for the Year and the
effectiveness of the audit process;
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(i)  reviewed with management and finance-in-charge the
effectiveness of the risk management, internal control systems
and the internal audit function of the Group;

(iv) approved the audit plan for the year ending 31 December
2023;

(v)  reviewed the external auditors’ independence, approved the
engagement of the external auditors and recommended the
Board on the re-appointment of the external auditors; and

(vi)  reviewed the terms of reference of the Audit Committee.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

During the Year, the nomination committee of the Board (the
“Nomination Committee”) comprised two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chen Johnny and Mr. Lo Peter; and one
executive Director, namely Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien. The Nomination
Committee is chaired by Mr. Lo Peter.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board, identify individuals
suitably qualified to become members of the Board, assess the
independence of independent non-executive Directors and make
recommendations to the Board on any proposed changes to
the Board, or select individuals nominated for directorships and/
or appoint or re-appoint Directors. The specific written terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee are available for inspection
upon request at the principal place of business of the Company
in Hong Kong and the websites of the Company and of the Stock
Exchange.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held two meetings.
All members of the Nomination Committee attended the meetings
during the Year. A summary of the work performed by the
Nomination Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

(i) reviewed the size, composition and structure of the Board;

(i)  assessed and reviewed the independence of each of the
independent non-executive Directors and consideration was
given to independent non-executive Directors who have served
on the Board for more than nine years;
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(i)  reviewed the terms of reference of the Nomination Committee;

(iv) reviewed the board diversity policy of the Company (the
“Board Diversity Policy”) and director nomination policy of the
Company (the “Director Nomination Policy”);

(v)  reviewed the policy in relation to independent views available
to the Board (the “Policy in relation to Independent Views
Available to the Board”)

DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY

The Board from time to time considers replenishing the composition
of the Board whenever the Company needs to cope with the
business demand, grasp opportunities, tackle challenges and/or to
comply with the applicable laws and regulations. The Nomination
Committee has adopted the Director Nomination Policy since 13
December 2018, which serves to improve the transparency of the
process and criteria in selecting and recommending candidates as
Directors for the Board’s approval from time to time and at any time
to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy
or as an addition to the Board. The Directors and the Nomination
Committee will consider and nominate candidates, according to
the Director Nomination Policy based on objective criteria with
due regard to the benefits of diversity as set out in the Board
Diversity Policy, to the Board for approval. In identifying individuals
and making recommendations for nominations, the Nomination
Committee considers whether such individuals have the appropriate
qualifications, abilities and perspectives that would enable them
to effectively fulfil their roles and responsibilities as Directors. The
responsibilities of the Nomination Committee (as further set out in its
terms of reference) form the key part under the Director Nomination
Policy.

Where a candidate is proposed to be appointed as an independent
non-executive Director, his/her independence will be assessed in
accordance with, among others, the factors as set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules, subject to any amendments as may be made by
the Stock Exchange from time to time. Where applicable, the totality
of the candidate’s education, qualifications and experience will
also be evaluated to consider whether he/she has the appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise for filling the office of an independent non-
executive Director as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted a Board Diversity Policy (as amended on 27
May 2022) which aims to enhance the effectiveness of the Board
and to maintain the highest standards of corporate governance and
recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board
composition.

Under the Board Diversity Policy, in order to achieve a diversity of
perspectives, skills and experience within the Board, a number of
factors will be considered when deciding on appointments to the
Board and the continuation of those appointments, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
length of service, skills, professional experience, regional and
industry experience. In forming its perspectives on Board diversity,
the Company will also take into account its own business model and
specific needs from time to time.

The Board considers that gender diversity is vital in order to achieve
a diverse Board composition. To achieve gender diversity within the
Board, the Board’s objective is to have at least 1 female director in
its composition. On 8 March 2023, Ms. Chien Chi Lin was appointed
as a non-executive Director. Immediately after the appointment of
Ms. Chien, out of the 9 Board members, 8 of them are male and 1 of
them is a female.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of 33,555
employees (including senior management). The following sets out the
gender distribution in the workforce of the Group:

Percentage

of the total

Number of workforce of

¥t Rl 5 B R Employment by gender employees the Group
EXEEET

BEE#HE LENEIL

5 Male 19,231 57.3%
Z Female 14,324 42.7%
BEEE Total number of employees 33,555 100%
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In addition, the composition, experience and balance of skills on the
Board are regularly reviewed to ensure that the Board retains core
members with long-standing knowledge of the Group alongside new
Director(s) appointed from time to time who bring fresh perspectives
and diverse experiences to the Board. The Nomination Committee
will review the implementation of the Board Diversity Policy from
time to time to ensure its continued effectiveness, and will propose
and recommend any amendments to the Board Diversity Policy as it
thinks fit to the Board for consideration and approval. Please refer to
the Company’s website for details of the Board Diversity Policy.

The names of the current Directors and their biographies (including
their roles as well as their skills and experiences) are set out in the
section headed “Directors’ Profile” of this annual report.

POLICY IN RELATION TO INDEPENDENT
VIEWS AVAILABLE TO THE BOARD

The Board adopted the Policy in relation to Independent Views
Available to the Board which aims to ensure independent views are
available to the Board of the Company.

The Policy in relation to Independent Views Available to the
Board also served as a guideline on the requirements in relation
to independent non-executive Directors. The independent non-
executive Directors shall satisfy the independence criteria under
the Listing Rules on Stock Exchange. In this connection, each
independent non-executive Director is required to confirm in writing
to the Company and the Stock Exchange his/her independence
upon his/her appointment as a director of the Company with
reference to the independence criteria in the Listing Rules. Each
independent non-executive Director is also required to inform the
Company and the Stock Exchange as soon as practicable if there
is any subsequent change of circumstances which may affect his/
her independence and must provide an annual confirmation of
his/her independence to the Company. An annual review shall be
conducted by the Company to assess the continuing independence
of independent non-executive Directors, with attention to ensuring
that they remain independent in character and judgement, and
continue to present an objective and constructive challenge to the
assumptions and viewpoints presented by the management and the
Board.

The implementation and the effectiveness of the Policy in relation to

Independent Views Available to the Board are subject to review by
the Board on an annual basis.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee comprised two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chen Sun-Te and
Dr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony; and one executive Director, namely Mr. Lo
Chih-Hsien. The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Chen
Sun-Te throughout the Year.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to
make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure of the remuneration of the Directors and senior
management, to determine on behalf of the Board the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior management,
and to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive Directors. Details of the remuneration of each of
the Directors for the Year are set out in Note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements. The specific written terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee are available for inspection upon request
at the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong and
on the respective website of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee held three meetings during the Year.
All members of the Remuneration Committee attended the meetings
during the Year. A summary of work performed by the Remuneration
Committee is set out as follows:

(i) reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of the non-executive Directors;

(i)  reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of the independent non-executive
Directors;

(i)  reviewed the current remuneration structure/package of both
the Directors and the senior management of the Company;

(iv) assessed the performance of senior management of the
Group; and

(v reviewed the terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee.
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REMUNERATION OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

During the Year, the range of remuneration payable to the members
of the senior management (other than the Directors) of the Group is
set out below:

ANEK

Number of

M 28 & Remuneration range persons
AR 1,000,000 tE A B 1,499,999 75 RMB1,000,000 to RMB1,499,999 3
AR 1,500,000 7t E A B 2,000,000 75 RMB1,500,000 to RMB2,000,000 2
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INVESTMENT, STRATEGY AND DEVELOPMENT
COMMITTEE

During the Year, the Investment, Strategy and Development
Committee comprised Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien and Mr. Liu Xinhua,
being executive Directors, Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui and Mr. Su Tsung-
Ming, being non-executive Directors, and Mr. Chen Sun-Te, Mr.
Chen Johnny, Dr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony and Mr. Lo Peter, being
independent non-executive Directors. The Investment, Strategy and
Development Committee is chaired by Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien.

The primary functions of the Investment, Strategy and Development
Committee are to review the investment and development plans
and policies of the Group and to review investment proposals and
make recommendations to the Board. The specific written terms of
reference of the Investment, Strategy and Development Committee
are available for inspection upon request at the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong.

The Investment, Strategy and Development Committee held two

meetings during the Year. All members of the Investment, Strategy
and Development Committee attended the meetings during the Year.

DIRECTORS ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

All Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
accounts for the year ended 31 December 2022.
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AUDITORS’ INDEPENDENCE AND
REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is mandated to review and monitor the
independence of the external auditors of the Company to
ensure objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with the applicable standards. Members of the Audit
Committee were of the view that the Company’s external auditors,
PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”), are independent and therefore
have recommended the Board to re-appoint PwC as the external
auditors of the Company subject to the shareholders’ approval at the
forthcoming AGM.

During the Year, the fees paid or payable by the Group to PwC in
respect of the audit and non-audit services rendered to the Group
amounted to RMB5.5 million and RMB2.4 million respectively. The
non-audit services represent (i) tax consulting service; (i) treasury
management process review service; (i) environmental, social
and governance report consulting service; and (iv) other business
solutions consulting services rendered to the Group by PwC.

The following table sets out a reconciliation of the auditors’
remunerations as disclosed above and in Note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements in this Annual Report.

ARETT
RMB’000
AREB BB BT KEN Auditor’s remuneration paid or payable by the Group to PwC
2SN = 5,450
KEBDNHENLBEAE Auditors’ remunerations paid or payable by the Group
M B A Bl IR B A € B AR to external auditors (other than PwC) who provided
BIMNEEAZ BRET (28 TRk IB LASN) local statutory audits to subsidiaries of the Group
B2 BB B = 2,339
TZ B EM BN & 48 %8 Total auditors’ remunerations (as disclosed in Note 6 to the
(iR E B R =R F6FTIFE) consolidated financial statements) 7,789

FALEMRBIB KERRABFMREHRZE
RIERIFELABRIARFS S (T #7BM o
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No significant remuneration was paid to PwC for the provision of
non-audit related service to the Company during the Year.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS
OF LISTED ISSUERS (THE “MODEL CODE”)

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules to regulate the Directors’ securities
transactions. All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry
by the Company, that they have fully complied with the required
standards as set out in the Model Code during the Year and up to
the date of this annual report.

Senior management who, because of their office in the Company,
are likely to be in possession of inside information, have also been
requested to comply with the provisions of the code for securities
dealing adopted by the Company, which is no less exacting than the
Model Code, when dealing in the Company’s shares.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining a sound and
effective risk management and internal control system of the Group.
The system includes a defined management structure with limits of
authority, and is designed to help the Group to identify and manage
significant risks to achieve the Group’s overall business objectives,
determine the Group’s risk profile, oversee risk management
framework structure, review key risks and mitigation strategies and
to ensure risk management effectiveness and compliance with
relevant laws and regulations.

A bottom-up and top-down approach is utilised to ensure a holistic
risk management process. The bottom-up approach is supported
by key business units to identify and prioritise risks while the top-
down approach reviews and assesses if risks are comprehensively
identified, prioritised and properly addressed by key business units
to accomplish the Group’s objectives. The management team
regularly monitors emerging risks for continuous risk assessment
purpose and for building the risk-management based internal audit
plan and periodically assesses the adequacy and effectiveness of
risk management and internal controls for ongoing risk assurance
purposes. This enhances the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and control framework.

*  Annual Report 2022 3R
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The Group’s risk management and internal control system is
designed to reduce risks, safeguard the Group’s assets, prevent
and detect fraud and protect shareholders’ investment as well
as to ensure that proper accounting records are maintained and
applicable legislation and regulations are complied with. During the
Year, through discussions with the management, the internal audit
team and external auditors and with reference to a report submitted
by the internal audit team, the Board has conducted assessments
and reviews of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control system in various perspectives, including, among
others, financial control, operational and compliance controls and
risk management. The risk management and internal control systems
are reviewed by the Board annually and each review covers a whole
financial year.

The internal audit unit of the Company, which is subordinated to the
Board, formulates the internal audit plan of the Group based on the
strategic objectives analysis, business flow analysis, risk assessment
and performance evaluation and the self-inspection mechanism with
comprehensive risk management functions under the authority of
the Board, the guidance of the Audit Committee and co-ordination
with the external auditors. It regularly reports to the Audit Committee
and the Board for its audit findings and recommendations on
internal control. The system is designed to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss, and
to manage rather than to eliminate risks of failure in the Group’s
operational systems and to achieve the Group’s business objectives.

During the Year, the internal audit unit of the Company continuously
optimised job responsibilities and functions of different departments
according to the annual audit plan approved by the Board. Such
audit work covered food safety, financial, operation, statutory
compliance and risk management of the Group at all levels and
functions, taking into account of the manpower cost-effectiveness.
During the Year, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems and
considers them effective and adequate. Based on information
furnished to it and on its own observations, the Board is satisfied
with the present risk management and internal control systems of
the Group and considers them effective and adequate. During the
Year and as at the date of this annual report, nothing has been found
which requires substantial improvement.
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The Company adopted a policy for the Directors, senior management
and other employees of the Group on disclosure of inside information
to ensure that inside information is handled and disseminated
properly. During the Year, the Company regarded information of
an event as inside information if such event might impact the price
or trading volume of the shares of the Company. Should public
disclosure of inside information be required, announcements in
relation to inside information, being approved by the executive
Directors under powers delegated by the Board from time to
time, would be published by the Company as soon as reasonably
practicable pursuant to Rules 13.09 and 13.10 of the Listing Rules
and the Inside Information Provisions (as defined under the Listing
Rules) under Part XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO”).

The Group has also adopted an internal policy for certain employees
who, because of their office in the Company, may from time to time
encounter inside information (as defined in the SFO).

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company is committed to ensure that the Group complies with
disclosure obligations under the Listing Rules and other applicable
laws and regulations. The Company communicates with the
shareholders of the Company mainly in the following ways: (i) the
holding of the AGM and extraordinary general meeting(s) (the “EGM”),
if any, which may be convened for specific purpose and provide
opportunities for the shareholders of the Company to communicate
directly with the Board; (i) the publication of announcements, annual
reports, interim reports and/or circulars as required under the
Listing Rules which provide updated information of the Group on
the website of the Stock Exchange at “http://www.hkexnews.hk”;
and (iii) the provision of the latest information of the Group and,
if appropriate, press releases of the Company at the Company’s
website at “www.uni-president.com.cn”.

The general meetings of the Company provide opportunities for
constructive communication between the shareholders of the
Company and the Board. During the Year, the AGM was held on
27 May 2022. All members of the Board, namely Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien
(Chairman), Mr. Liu Xinhua (President), Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui, Mr. Su
Tsung-Ming, Mr. Chen Sun-Te, Mr. Chen Johnny, Dr. Fan Ren-
Da Anthony and Mr. Lo Peter, were present at the AGM to answer
questions raised by the shareholders of the Company at the AGM.
The Company’s external auditors and the Company Secretary also
attended the aforesaid AGM.

*  Annual Report 2022 3R
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

(1)

)

Procedures for shareholders to convene an EGM

According to the Articles of Association, an EGM may be
convened on the written requisition of any one or more
members of the Company holding together, as at the date of
deposit of the requisition, shares representing not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carry
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company. The
written requisition shall be deposited at the principal office of
the Company, specifying the objects of the meeting and the
resolutions to be added to the meeting agenda, and signed by
the requisitionist(s).

If within twenty-one days of such deposit, the Board fails to
proceed to convene the EGM, the requisitionist(s) or any of
them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights
of all of them, may themselves convene an EGM, but any
meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of
three months from the date of the deposit of the requisition
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the Board’s failure to convene an EGM shall be
reimbursed to them by the Company.

Shareholders’ enquiries put to the Board

Shareholders’ enquiries about their shareholdings can be
directed to the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited.
Shareholders may send their enquiries in respect of other
matters to the Company Secretarial Office by post to the
principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong or
by email to ir@pec.com.cn.
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3)

Procedures for putting forward proposal at general
meetings

There are no provisions allowing shareholders of the Company
to put forward proposals at general meetings under the
Memorandum of Association (the “Memorandum”) and
Articles of Association or the Companies Act of the Cayman
Islands. If shareholders of the Company wish to do so, they
may request to convene an EGM as stipulated above and
specify the proposals in such written requisition. Pursuant
to Article 116 of the Articles of Association, no person shall,
unless recommended by the Board, be eligible for election
to the office of director at any general meeting unless during
the period, which shall be at least seven days, commencing
no earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of the
meeting appointed for such election and ending no later than
seven days prior to the date of such meeting, there has been
given to the Company Secretary notice in writing by a member
of the Company (not being the person to be proposed), entitled
to attend and vote at the meeting for which such notice is
given, of his intention to propose such person for election and
also a notice in writing signed by the person to be proposed of
his willingness to be elected.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, the Company amended its Memorandum and
Articles of Association and, as approved by the Shareholders at
the AGM held on 27 May 2022, adopted a second amended and
restated Memorandum and Articles of Association in order to, among
other matters, bring its Memorandum and Articles of Association in
line with the latest legal and regulatory requirements, including the
amendments made to Appendix 3 to the Listing Rules which took
effect on 1 January 2022.

H— 1 EPEZEIRA R AT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ COMMUNICATION POLICY

During the Year, the Company first established and adopted a
Shareholders’ Communication Policy which sets out the provisions
with the objective of providing shareholders of the Company with
ready, equal and timely information on the Company for them to
make informed assessments of the Company’s strategy, operations
and financial performance, and enabling them to engage actively
with the Company and exercise their rights as shareholders in
an informed manner. The said policy, which is subject to annual
review by the Board, is available on the website of the Company at
www.uni-president.com.cn.

ACCOUNTABILITY

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for overseeing the
preparation of financial statements for each financial period which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and
of the results and cash flow for that period. A statement from the
Company’s external auditors about their reporting responsibilities
is set out in the section headed “Independent Auditor’'s Report”
of the annual report. In preparing the financial statements for the
Year, the Directors have selected suitable accounting policies and
applied them consistently and have made prudent and reasonable
judgements and estimates and have prepared the financial
statements on a going concern basis.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the Year, the role of the Company Secretary was performed
by Mr. Fung Kwan Ho (“Mr. Fung”), who is a member of Hong
Kong Chartered Governance Institute and Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules, Mr. Fung has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the Year.
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BERAE

To the Shareholders of Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Uni-President China
Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”),
which are set out on pages 97 to 232, comprise:

o the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2022;

o the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year

then ended;

° the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended;

and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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SRR RS G
Independent Auditor’s Report

BERRAE
BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:
° Revenue recognition: Sales of goods

o Deferred income tax assets

*  Annual Report 2022 £k
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Key Audit Matter
FAfEEstEE

Revenue recognition: Sales of goods

W aatEEE BRI E

Refer to Note 2.23 (Summary of significant accounting
policies) and Note 5 (Revenue and segment information) to
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
F2HEERGESMBRRERWT2.23 (FESTBERHE)
Kzt s (W B &R o

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
recognised revenue from sales of goods amounted to
RMB28,257 million.
BHE2022F12A3MBIEFE ) EEERIFRHEN
mHEF ARME28,257BEIT ©

Revenue is recognised when the Group satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring the control of
promised good or service to a customer in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to
be entitled in exchange for that good or service.

SEEENTRAT A EEEMRRBIETENENS
£ Bt R MR EEREEIRM IR ZE S ma R
BRESHNE » A oIESAERMHE T o

We focused on this area due to the huge volume of
revenue transactions generated from sales of numerous
kinds of products to a large number of customers,
including direct customers and distributors in many
different locations.

BT E—FE NTAREEEAENERIEERS
W RR B ERLNEFRESEER  BIEDMH
MR E N B R A ML HE o

BERAE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMvEst R ER St HE

We understood, evaluated and validated management’s
controls in respect of the Group’s sales transactions.
In addition, we tested the general control environment
of the Group’s information technology systems and the
automated controls that were related to revenue recording.
BT FHEIREEEEHEERRRHEHERRZ
7l o ttoh > MPTAHESEREERWNARK 2 —MRIET
RG> WA BN s8R B Bl 2 B BT o

We conducted testing of revenue transactions on a sample
basis by examining the relevant supporting documents
including customer contracts and orders, goods delivery
notes and good receipt records. In addition, we circularised
confirmations on a sample basis on trade receivables
balances as at the balance sheet date.
EMBEBEEEREREOKTE - REERRTFEIN
5C 8% 7E P AU AE RA 58 BA S W an FE SR IE AT H ARCRU A o b
b RPN EE B RmREERERE Z RN GEHE L
S8 B ©

Furthermore, we tested sales transactions that took
place shortly before and after the balance sheet date, by
reconciling recognised revenue with the goods delivery
notes and good receipt records, to assess whether revenue
was recognised in the correct reporting periods.

5 MHHEESERBABBIEHBAANHEER
SETAE > B EE ~ IR R ITE 0 )
IEsHEERIW T B S T8 B BRI SRS o

Based on the work performed, we found the Group’s
revenue from sales of goods being tested were supported
by the evidences that we obtained.
RIBHPIFFATHES LIE > MR AEERAHE @
HEWTARTERBXZR -
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Key Audit Matter
FAREEE

Deferred income tax assets

BEFFFREE

Refer to Note 2.20 (Summary of significant accounting
policies), Note 4.1 (Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions) and Note 19 (Deferred income tax) to the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.
FR2REEEREMBRRMT 220 (FEF BRI
2) ~ 41 FIR G L E RBR) KM 19 GRIERT
§1) o

As at 31 December 2022, deferred income tax assets
of approximately RMB164 million were recognised for
tax losses that can be carried forward in respect of
certain subsidiaries in Mainland China, to the extent that,
realisation of the related tax benefits through the availability
of future taxable profits is probable. The Group did not
recognise deferred income tax assets of approximately
RMB228 million in respect of tax losses that can be carried
forward but the availability of future taxable profit is not
probable.

12022F 128310 SEBERBEARKIMEEBRIEE
RNEMIRPTISEE > BRI RS THIB A B HE KRR
AR AR 2 M B ERBIE LSRR E EE BN
AHAREI64AEE T c EEER AN TAEEL EARK
HAEEMIRPTS B MIBEEIEMRDIELEFSREENA
Ki&ko288E T ©

BERAE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
KM Est R ERR S HE

We obtained an understanding of the management’s
internal control and assessment process of the recognition
of deferred income tax assets and assessed the inherent
risk of material misstatement by considering the degree
of estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent risk
factors.

EMTHREBEARDELEFSEREE S ENRIRZES
R sTHE B2 o B IE E B st R E R E R E MR
11 R B =AY 7K T2k 5T 3R BB A FE SR PR I AV PO 7T LB ©

As part of our risk assessment in this area, we compared
the current year actual results with the prior year forecast to
consider, with hindsight, whether key assumptions included
in that forecast had been subject to management bias and
assessed the effectiveness of management’s estimation
process.

TER R EN—E 7 RALEBRAEEEREGED
AIFEEZBAFER > LN EBAEERFTE R 2 BERR
wEAFTEEREERRLMEEEEGHAENEMIL -

We then evaluated and challenged management’s profit
forecasts for the next five years of individual entities that
have accumulated tax losses. Our assessment focused on
certain key assumptions, such as revenue growth rates and
gross profit margin, by comparing them to these entities’
historical operating results and future operating plans,
together with economic and industry forecasts, where
appropriate. We also considered the potential impact
of reasonably possible downside changes in these key
assumptions.
KM REREEEHAERARBEENERFLRE
FRERIRR AFERAFEANZ GBS - ERMWVTEHFRE
BRI ELEEERRIER UMM ABREMEN X
ZBBLEBRAERFRAINEL IR KRR EESE
TS ERE RITEZTRA (MER) - B4 Hfh
HEMERRFIGRAEESTN T FEERBE NS S ERM
AR BTL R BT ©
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Key Audit Matter
FAfEEstEE

Significant judgement is required in determining the
recognition of deferred income tax assets, considering
whether future taxable profit will be available against which
the accumulative tax losses can be utilised. Management
prepared a 5-year profit forecast to assess the probability
of generating sufficient taxable profits in the foreseeable
future. The major assumptions involved were revenue
growth rate and gross profit margin.
FHIRIEFTSMEBENR IS RBEEHE 0 FERIIER
RBDS AL AL BB MR FTISEE LA SR R IR 75
e - BEEEGREL T GNTER > LFHER I AR A 2R
E4 BHERRGEFNAIEN - FERZIRKHIER
KREMEK-

We focused on this area due to the inherent complexity of
the model, and high degree of uncertainty and subjectivity
of the estimations on the forecast of the availability
and timing of future taxable profits, including the key
assumption of revenue growth rates and gross profit
margin.

ZRIZBEE ARG+ 0EM 0 BHTERRREMARFE
B BRMARAFBENGE (BEHKAERZNER
RELRARRER FEsENEE M EEH L » #&
IEFARAREEtEIE o
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BERAE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMvEst R ER St HE

We have also verified the existence and amounts of tax
losses, together with their expiry dates, and the income
tax rates applicable to the entities by examining the tax
returns submitted by the relevant entities and reviewing the
correspondences with the tax authorities.
EMTBEEERE FASEBEEFHREURETERG
W BB URERNBEHEENTT  SHENERMY -
BN FRURE R REANMERRE -

We assessed the adequacy of the disclosures related to
the recognition of deferred tax assets in the context of
HKFRSs.
EMBRBEEBRBREEA T EARERELERIBEEE
HIEBERTRE

Based on our work performed, we found that
management’s judgement and estimation for the
recognition of deferred tax assets were supported by the
evidences that we obtained.
RBERMPAMITHE ST TE > HMB48 EEEHHIE
IEFTEMBERR YRGS EERER B o
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BERAE
OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

*  Annual Report 2022 3R



i

pwec

TREEST RIS 0 LIREHE
ENEtiEF BENILIFHSEER
MEFHBRMEERER -

SHEESMEBISHHRVIGEERE
EEsHEFAERRENGEN. -

ESRARBEETHERNREEEF
S o IRIRPTE AR 51 /88 > FEE
RETFHEASEABREBNERTHE
EM - EMe] RSN Y EEBMAVEEL
ERENEEERERE - NREMRDAF
EEARTHEEN > A AYEZEZIEDR
SHRFEAEIRGREGMBTRETH
HERE - REBMHNKETE B3
MEEHEXRFERERER - HMIVER
RERZHENRE B IS ESE
o ARM > RERFERBRAIEERE
EETERELE -

FEBARGMBREVERIBA N
MRS BEKE UREEGMHR
REATBERREARZMER -

MEEENEENEBTHNVBEER
KR BENEESE  UEHLKR
GHMBREERER -RMEEEEHE
BETHIH B BEEMAIT - HAISKES
ERAEREEE-

oRYR PR TR

Independent Auditor’s Report

BERAE

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

4i— > R EZ=I8 A FRAAF] Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. » Annual Report 2022 45 05
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BERAE

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Esmond S.C. Kwan.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 8 March 2023
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HZE2022%F 12831 HIEEE  For the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
Mt 5F AREBFTT ARETT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
&= Revenue 5 28,257,432 25,230,613
THE R KR Cost of goods sold 6 (20,069,515)  (17,011,703)
EF Gross profit 8,187,917 8,218,910
HFE - 558 Other gains — net 7 54,297 78,007
HgA Other income 8 336,556 477,500
Hihf% Other expenses 6 (148,946) (276,965)
HERMIGEERS Selling and marketing expenses 6 (5,886,596) (5,542,816)
TERASE Administrative expenses 6 (1,047,411) (1,048,801)
AR Operating profit 1,495,817 1,905,835
BEE WA Finance income 269,396 232,752
=% Finance costs (60,526) (31,715)
BEE WA - JFEE Finance income — net 10 208,870 201,037
DEmEANRZ Share of profits of investments
P&y #5 B E accounted for using
the equity method 18 26,142 34,970
PRSI AT H Profit before income tax 1,730,829 2,141,842
FRiSfRR Income tax expenses 11 (508,672) 641,127)
TAREZREA Profit for the year attributable
P& iz F to the equity holders of
the Company 1,222,157 1,500,715
FEXRTEZFEA Earnings per share for profit
FE(L R 2 SR BT attributable to the equity holders
UBKRARESIE) of the Company during the year
(expressed in RMB per share)
- B S - Basic and diluted 12 28.309cents 34.74%) cents

F104E 2R B2 MEMRA SN BRE
— 85 o

The notes on pages 104 to 232 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
BZE2022F 12331 HIEEE  For the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
B 5+ AREFTT AR®ETFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FEEN Profit for the year 1,222,157 1,500,715
HhZ2mkas - Other comprehensive income:
TEEHDEEERDIEH Items that may not be reclassified to
profit or loss
BN FESFAEMEEWER  Fair value gains on financial assets
ETHMEBEZ AFENRSE at fair value through other
- BRIFER comprehensive income, net of tax - 23
BAREFREZEM2 Remeasurements of post-employment
benefit obligations 1,262 343
FEHME2EmKZE -RIBEE  Other comprehensive income
for the year, net of tax 1,262 366
EATBFEAELZ Total comprehensive income
FEZEKSAEEE for the year attributable to the
equity holders of the Company 1,223,419 1,501,081

BI04 B2 B2 M B ALGZEMFIRERZ  The notes on pages 104 to 232 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

— &7 o
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2022 2021
MisE AREFTT ARETT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BE ASSETS
EREBEE Non-current assets
M~ BB M Property, plant and equipment 14 6,662,688 7,256,556
FRAEEE Right-of-use assets 15 1,702,095 1,691,168
KEYE Investment properties 16 256,417 275,630
mEEE Intangible assets 17 6,687 6,702
DEREAENKE Investments accounted
for using the equity method 18 817,729 812,899
BAFEFABRN Financial assets at fair value
THBEE through profit or loss 24 - 300,120
RIEFTEMEE Deferred income tax assets 19 356,104 391,539
HhpE U EIE - JEBNERER o Other receivables — non-current portion 23 27,592 17,136
RHEEHER Long-term time deposits 25 3,532,170 3,950,000
13,361,482 14,701,750
REEE Current assets
78 Inventories 21 2,522,530 2,392,506
BB ZRT R EE Trade and bills receivables 22 819,877 648,531
FETRUIE ~ s R EAM Prepayments, deposits and
FEUR R IB other receivables 23 904,888 762,331
E2H RIS IR Current income tax recoverable 35,019 15,625
BN EESABTD Financial assets at fair value
THEE through profit or loss 24 1,018,521 1,415,328
R RIBITEE Cash and bank balances 25 3,122,038 2,128,271
8,422,873 7,362,592
DEAFEHENEE Assets classified as held for sale - 1,004
8,422,873 7,363,596
WEE Total assets 21,784,355 22,065,346
g EQUITY
ERTEEEEA Equity attributable to equity
FE(L S holders of the Company
[RZIN Share capital 26 39,764 39,764
1 mERR Share premium account 26 4,829,899 4,829,899
HihfEE Other reserves 27 3,858,113 3,543,702
REEF Retained earnings 4,453,577 5,351,936
ERER Total equity 13,181,353 13,765,301
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
12022512 H31H As at 31 December 2022

2022 2021
B =E ARETRT ARETT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
aE LIABILITIES
ERFERE Non-current liabilities
IRILFREMEaE Deferred income tax liabilities 19 322,048 331,021
HEaE - JEREE D Lease liabilities — non-current portion 15 75,650 17,744
HAMEI=IE - JERNEAER Other payables — non-current portion 29 277,139 268,400
674,837 617,165
RE&E Current liabilities
FE{T B Z IR Trade payables 28 2,675,047 2,118,048
HthEARIBEREER Other payables and accruals 29 2,133,160 2,068,417
HHEE Contract liabilities 5(b) 2,257,836 3,233,044
BE Borrowings 30 767,756 112,300
MHEaR& Lease liabilities 15 26,090 19,675
EHERAR Current income tax liabilities 68,276 131,396
7,928,165 7,682,880
=R Total liabilities 8,603,002 8,300,045
ke EEEE Total equity and liabilities 21,784,355 22,065,346

F104E 2R B2 BRI A ZEHFEIRER The notes on pages 104 to 232 are an integral part of these
—Zp5 o consolidated financial statements.

FOTERNELEEGHMFBTRERBIN2023E3H  The consolidated financial statements on pages 97 to 232 were
SHEREZGHE TAHTIALHRRKREST approved by the Board of Directors on 8 March 2023 and were

=E o signed on its behalf.
BEX B EE
LO Chih-Hsien LIU Xinhua
BITES BITES
Executive Director Executive Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HZE2022%F 12831 HIEEE  For the year ended 31 December 2022

FRFRETERE AR
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
R4 17 18 HithfkE RERH ait
Share Share Other Retained
capital premium reserves earnings Total
Mz AREBTr ARETT AREBTR ARETT ARETR
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
1K2021 518182458 Balance at 1 January 2021 39,764 4,829,899 3,153,570 5,863,300 13,886,533
2EME Comprehensive income
FERF Profit for the year - - - 1,500,715 1,500,715
Hitnz2 s Other comprehensive income
— WATESFAEMEEWE - Fair value gains on financial assets at
NEMEEZATERR fair value through other
— BRiREE comprehensive income, net of tax - - 23 - 23
— BREENEBNENE - Remeasurements of post-employment
benefit obligations - - 343 - 343
Hitr2EK S Total other comprehensive income - - 366 - 366
FEZ2ENRELE Total comprehensive income for
the year - - 366 1,500,715 1,501,081
BHERATESHAEMREE  Transfer of losses on disposal of
IR IR AR B RS R E R equity investments at fair value
EREBRF through other comprehensive
income to retained earnings - - 24,859 (24,859) -
HEBEANETZRS Transaction with owners
BRE LT RE Appropriation to statutory reserves 27(b) - - 364,907 (364,907 -
H2020FBMZKEE Dividends relating to 2020 - - - (1,622313)  (1,622,313)
#2021 E12 8 31 B2 458 Balance at 31 December 2021 30764 4,829,809 3543702 5351936 13,765,301
K202 1818248 Balance at 1 January 2022 39,764 4,829,899 3,543,702 5,351,936 13,765,301
2EKE Comprehensive income
FERR Profit for the year - - - 1,222,157 1,222,157
Hitr2EE Other comprehensive income
— BREENEBNENE - Remeasurements of post-employment
benefit obligations - - 1,262 - 1,262
Hith2mElm4a%E Total other comprehensive income - - 1,262 - 1,262
FEZ2ENKELE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - 1,262 1,222,157 1,223,419
BRE LA Appropriation to statutory reserves 27(b) - - 313,149 (313,149) -
H2021 EBRIZBE Dividends relating to 2021 - - - (1,807,367) (1,807,367
R2022F 128 31 H 2 &% Balance at 31 December 2022 39,764 4,829,899 3,858,113 4,453,577 13,181,353

F104E 2R B2 MEBMAGFEHMBREZ
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The notes on pages 104 to 232 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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Consolldated Cash Flow Statement

BZE2022F 12331 HIEEE  For the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
Mk ARBFT ARETT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
EEESHZHEERE Cash flows from operating
activities
EEEY RS Cash generated from operations 31 2,055,079 3,048,598
ENFERZ Interest expenses paid (59,759) (31,794)
EFTER Income tax paid (565,040) (595,444)
SEENELEZFRE Net cash generated from
operating activities 1,430,280 2,421,360
KREIZSHZHERE Cash flows from investing
activities
EEYE BREM&E Purchases of property,
MR EEY 2 plant and equipment and
investment properties (439,432) (877,980)
BERTEE Purchases of intangible assets (5,971) (5,042)
BERATEFABRN Purchase of financial assets at
TRMEE fair value through
profit or loss (700,000) (2,400,000)
HEFEREESE Y% BE Proceeds from disposal of
KRB 2 PR1SRIE right-of-use assets and property,
plant and equipment 10,546 32,327
HERAFEF AEMEE  Proceeds from disposal of
W EmEEZ financial assets at fair value
Frig=r1a through other comprehensive
income - 2,569
HERAFESABRN Proceeds from disposal of
ETMEEZMEMIE financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 1,449,768 2,363,120
HESEhER—ME Proceeds from disposal of
BEABNKEME investments in joint ventures
HIE and an associate 18 18 -
ZIRBIIRITEREY Decrease/(increase) in restricted
L, (g ) bank deposits 25 8,600 (10,900)
FHREBE =B EFM  Increase in time deposits with
Z1ghn maturity more than 3 months 25 (761,591) (199,644)
BBt ER—XK#EAST  Dividends received from joint
WERZ KRB ventures and an associate 18 21,294 15,673
LEIEFAZERE Net cash used in investing
activities (416,768) (579,877)
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2022 2021
M 5% AREBFTT ARETT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
MEFSZRERE Cash flows from financing
activities
IRITREFREM Proceeds from bank borrowings 30 13,352,981 8,078,799
BERTEE Repayments of bank borrowings 30 (12,697,525) (8,453,571)
HMENMRATED Principal elements of lease payment (38,823) (44,961)
ERAYNSIE S ST =P Dividends paid to equity holders
TS of the Company (1,807,351) (1,622,310)
MEEBMAZFRE Net cash used in financing
activities (1,190,718) (2,042,043)
HERAEEEWHLFEE  Net decrease in cash and
cash equivalents (177,206) (200,560)
FNZRERIREEEBY Cash and cash equivalents at
the beginning of the year 285,573 486,300
REMREEBY 2 ER Exchange gains/(losses) on
Wi, (B518) cash and cash equivalents 152 (167)
FRZBERIREEEY Cash and cash equivalents at
end of the year 25 108,519 285,573

FB104E 2R BZWEBHAEEGS
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MBRERZ

consolidated financial statements.
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1

GENERAL INFORMATION

Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 4 July 2007 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands. The address of the Company’s
registered office is P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries (together as the “Group”) are principally engaged
in the manufacturing and sale of beverages and food in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) (the “PRC Beverages
and Food Businesses”).

The Company completed its global initial public offering and its
shares were listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 17 December
2007 (the “Listing”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of Renminbi (‘RMB’000”), unless otherwise stated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2.1
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HET B E R S K
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to
all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (the "HKFRS”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared on a historical cost
basis, except for certain financial assets and liabilities
(including derivative instruments) measured at fair value
or revalued amount and plan assets of defined benefit
pension plans measured at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgment in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 4.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures

(@ New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

A number of new or amended standard, accounting
guidance and interpretations became applicable for the
current reporting period. The Group did not change its
accounting policies or make retrospective adjustments
as a result of adopting these standards.

Effective for
annual periods
beginning
on or after
HKFRS 16 Govid-19-related Rent 1 April 2021
(Amendments) Concessions
HKAS 16 Property, Plant and 1 January 2022
(Amendments) Equipment: Proceeds
before intended use
HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts - Cost of 1 January 2022
(Amendments) Fulfiling a Contract
HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual 1 January 2022
(Amendments) Framework
Accounting Merger Accounting 1 January 2022
Guideline 5 for Common Control
(Amendments) Combinations
Annual Improvements 1 January 2022
to HKFRS Standards
2018-2020

R EEE A R/A T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢  Annual Report 2022 3R
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EEGBSEHE (8) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
21 REEE(E) 2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
211 B FERIKEBEZEE (8B) 2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and

disclosures (Continued)

(b) T EEMHER20224F 1 (b)  The following new standards and amendments
A 1 HBF3E A9 IECF E e R to standards, and interpretations have been
£ BINAKRBIEBIERANET issued but are not effective for the financial year
FIETZER ~ ZERNEETRAERE ! beginning on 1 January 2022 and have not been

early adopted:
RUTFESH Effective for
ZERBN annual periods
EEBHEN beginning
on or after

BEMBRERE  RRaR 023%F1E1H HKFRS 17 Insurance contracts 1 January 2023

E17%
EEGHED BENEATE 203E151H HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilties 1 January 2023
E1% (B:Th) I (Amendments) as Current or Non-current
BAGHEAZ IS EHERZEE 20BF151H HKAS 1 and HKFRS  Disclosure of Accounting 1 January 2023
REERBRE Practise Statement  Policies
ERERER 2 (Amendments)
25 (1B51%)
FEEHER BH{EH2ER  20283F1A1H HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting 1 January 2023
8% (B:T4) (Amendments) Estimates
BEGEA HE-THMEE 200351810 HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to 1 January 2023
E2%(BIR)  ZBERER (Amendments) Assets and Liabilities arising
B2 ELRE from a Single Transaction
BAUBREEA REEHHEY BT HKFRS 10 and Sale or contribution of assets  To be determined
F0RKREE RERAERE HKAS 28 between an investor and its
BitERIENY  ZEZEE (Amendments) associate or joint venture
(tB37%) HERRA
BEREESY  MBERZEN  EERAMEE Hong Kong Presentation of Financial Applied when
(2020%) -ERASEE EHEAEIR Interpretation 5 Statements - Classification ~an entity applies
BRERENER BER (2020) by the Borrower of a Term Amendments
NERERH Loan that Contains a to HKAS 1
NE Repayment on Demand
Clause
AEBEIETEFEER ~ ZEANEET The Group is assessing the full impact of the new
Brties| kB2 B TNEETE - standards and amendments to standards, accounting

guidance and interpretations.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity where the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated. When
necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have
been adjusted to conform with the Group’s accounting
policies.

(@)  Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method of accounting
to account for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred
and the equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair value of any
asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at
the acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

4 — e ZEREIEE AR AF Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢  Annual Report 2022 3§
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BETTHERHNE (8) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

22 MIBARTE (&) 2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
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2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)
(a)  Business combinations (Continued)
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date through
profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the
contingent consideration that is deemed to be an asset
or liability is recognised in accordance with HKFRS 9
either in the income statement or as a change to other
comprehensive income. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured, and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest measured is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference
is recognised directly in the income statement.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)
(b)  Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control or significant
influence, any retained interest in the entity is remeasured
to its fair value, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in the income statement. The fair value is the
initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to income
statement.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable costs
of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividend receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving dividends from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwill.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3 Principle of equity accounting

2.3.1 Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control or joint control. This is
generally the case where the Group holds between 20%
and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method of accounting
(Note 2.3.3), after initially being recognised at cost.

2.3.2Joint arrangements

Under HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements investments in
joint arrangements are classified as either joint operations
or joint ventures. The classification depends on the
contractual rights and obligations of each investor, rather
than the legal structure of the joint arrangement.

Joint ventures

Joint ventures are all entities over which the Group
has joint control but not solo control. Interests in joint
ventures are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting (Note 2.3.3), after initially being recognised at
cost.

2.3.3 Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments
are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognise the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
profits or losses of the investee in profit or loss, and the
Group’s share of movements in other comprehensive
income of the investee in other comprehensive income.
Dividends received or receivable from associates and
joint ventures are recognised as a reduction in the
carrying amount of the investment.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3

2.4

Principle of equity accounting (Continued)

2.3.3 Equity method (Continued)

Where the Group’s share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest
in the entity, including any other unsecured long-term
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred obligations or made payments
on behalf of the other entity. Unrealised gains on
transactions between the Group and its associates and
joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred.

Accounting policies of equity accounted investees have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments
is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
described in Note 2.9.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker,
who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the executive directors that makes strategic
decisions.
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2 EBEGTHHERHME (8) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
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(a) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (“the functional currency”). The functional
currency of majority of the Group’s entities is Renminbi
(“RMB”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in RMB, which is the Company’s functional
and the Group’s presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions of each of the Group’s
entities are translated into the functional currency using
the applicable exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions or valuation where items are re-
measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the income statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are presented
in the income statement within ‘finance income or
cost’. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the income statement within ‘other gains —

)

net’.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets such as equities held at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“OCI”) are included in the fair
value reserves in other comprehensive income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

25

2.6

Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) Assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(i) Income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of
the transactions); and

(i) All resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition
of the items.

*  Annual Report 2022 3R
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Construction-in-progress (“CIP”) represents buildings,
plant and machinery under construction or pending
installation and is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Cost includes the costs of
construction and acquisition and capitalised borrowing
costs. No provision for depreciation is made on CIP until
such time as the relevant assets are completed and
ready for intended use. When the assets concerned are
available for use, the costs are transferred to property,
plant and equipment and depreciated in accordance with
the policy as stated below.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the income statement during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate the cost less impairment loss of each asset to
its residual value over its estimated useful life, as follows:

Buildings 20 years
Machinery and factory equipment 10 years
Vehicle, other equipment and fixtures 3-5 years

Leasehold improvements 5 years or shorter

of lease terms

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.6

2.7

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note
2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised within ‘other gains — net’, in the income
statement.

Investment properties

Investment properties are defined as properties (land or
a building — or part of a building — or both) held (by the
owner or by the lessee under a finance lease) to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation or both, rather than for:
(@) use in the production of supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes; or (b) sale in the ordinary
course of business.

Investment properties are initially recognised at cost
and subsequently carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation is calculated using a straight-line method
to allocate the depreciable amounts over the estimated
useful lives of 40 years. The residual values and useful
lives of investment properties are reviewed, and adjusted
as appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

*  Annual Report 2022 3R
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.8 Intangible assets

Acquired computer software is capitalised on the basis
of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the
specific software. These costs are amortised over the
estimated useful life of 2-5 years.

2.9 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example,
goodwill or intangible assets not ready to use - are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value
in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

fi— > 2 hE2IR A IR/AF) Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.  Annual Report 2022 4§ 11/
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.10 Financial assets

2.10.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through OCI or through profit or loss), and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model
for managing the financial assets and the contractual
terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will
either be recorded in the income statement or OCI. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held for
trading, the Group has made an irrevocable election at
the time of initial recognition to account for the equity
investment at financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets
changes.

2.10.2 Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership.

4 — e ZEREIEE AR AF Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢  Annual Report 2022 3§
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At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in the
income statement.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There
are two measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

° Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest rate
method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
is recognised directly in the income statement and
presented in other gains/(losses) together with
foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment
losses are presented in ‘administrative expenses’ in
the income statement.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

2.10.3 Measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

° FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL.
A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised in
the income statement and presented net within
other gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments
at fair value. Where the Group’s management has
elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity
investments in OCI, there is no subsequent reclassification
of fair value gains and losses to the income statement
following the derecognition of the investment. Dividends
from such investments continue to be recognised in the
income statement as other income when the Group’s
right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL
are recognised in other gains/(losses) in the income
statement as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal
of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at
FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes in
fair value.

*  Annual Report 2022 3R
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

211

2.10.4 Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables, see Note 3.1(b) for further
details.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end
of each reporting period. The method of recognising the
resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative
is designed as a hedging instrument, and if so, the
nature of item being hedged. Derivative instruments held
by the Group do not qualify for hedge accounting and
are accounted for at fair value through profit or loss.
Changes in fair value of these derivative instruments
that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised
immediately in the consolidated income statement.

*  Annual Report 2022 £k
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.12 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The
legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future
events and must be enforceable in the normal course
of business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty.

2.13 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work
in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based
on normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing
costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.

2.14 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

4 — e ZEREIEE AR AF Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢  Annual Report 2022 3§



_ | EOBBERRME
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2022%F 12831 HIEEE  For the year ended 31 December 2022

2 EBEGTHHERHME (8) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

214 BN E 5 KR EHMERRR (48)

2.14 Trade and other receivables (Continued)
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Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they
contain significant financing components, when they
are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade
receivables with the objective of collecting the contractual
cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. See
Note 2.10.2 for further information about the Group’s
accounting for trade receivables and Note 2.10.4 and 3.1
(b) for a description of the Group’s impairment policies.

2.15 Cash and bank balances

For the purpose of presentation in the cash flow
statement, cash and cash equivalents includes cash
on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions,
other short-term, highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

2.16 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.17 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade and other payable are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

2.18 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

4 — e ZEREIEE AR AF Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢  Annual Report 2022 3§
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General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the income
statement in the period in which they are incurred.

2.20 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Company
and its subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid
to the tax authorities.
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2 EEGFHEREME (@ 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.20 EHARIRIEFR1SIR (4) 2.20 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)
(b) BEIEFFTF (b) Deferred income tax
ATEZ 2 Inside basis differences
FIEPRSIRN BB E AR EEM Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
BENRENEENSEEVER method, on temporary differences arising between the
RNREENEREMEENG RN tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
ER A BEIEMERIKBRE amounts in the financial statements. However, the
R (FEEEBaH PHEEL deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
BENERER MEXZHAE initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
BEHEm N ERRT EREE other than a business combination that at the time of
B R BB R B FERR R K AT 30 the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
AERMER BN ERRER o BT profit or loss and does not give rise to equal taxable
FIiSMXAEEAERR EERRE and deductible temporary differences. Deferred income
B BB WEBRAWIELRE tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
MEEERNIELFERAES been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance
BEfERRR @AM E (RAH) sheet date and are expected to apply when the related
MEE ° deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred

income tax liability is settled.

FEIEFTSMEEEMBRIEB R EK Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the
FERRMF ML AT R B 1 = extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
EMREST o available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

IMEEE Outside basis differences

i AA B A HI R O B R E BRI P Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
BRZEEBAEAZNARAR temporary differences between the carrying amount and
e IR gRRKEAR -~ e tax bases of investments in subsidiaries, associates and
NEIREEZHNKENREEH joint arrangements where the company is able to control
MEZ BN SR ERERRIELRIE the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
BEREE- and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in

the foreseeable future.

BUHEA M EIEAR IEHC 1R 2R ST - 1 Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
REME2EBEHEZN Em R except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
HIEBBRIERRIN o TELLBRT > other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
MIETRDRREMEE NGB case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
PR MR © income or directly in equity, respectively.
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2 EEGSBEREE (@)

2.20 EHARIRIEFRISIR (48)

2.21

(c)

EREERRITEN R EHPAER
EEABHMERAERNE > BiE
EFFSMBEEREBRT AR R
BB ERINBERN T EERR
BERBAEROLUFREEGEEMRRF
MASERES » BIRIRIREFTSMEE
HBEE R -

EE®=F
BT ER — EBEMEKEE
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TRIE— S R - ZFHAL A
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@ FEEIPEIALEES

RIER AR TR ROA
R RPEIRENAEEEESE
2EGF—RE5 8 (T5181) (B
Fh B K B B B A9 X BB A RR st
) AtTEERERBEGER
BEHMZETRD LR EIEH
R ML BRREIEESRR
KEEN2HRNREEHZEAMR
IR o IR RIMHARE (ERNRFERE ©

H—¥EPEIEEER/A T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

2.21

(c) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
where there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
income tax assets against current income tax liabilities
and where the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
relate to income taxed levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to settle the balances
on a net basis.

Employee benefits

Pension obligation - defined contribution plan

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under
which the Group pays contributions into a separate
fund. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations
to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating
to employee service in the current and prior periods.
The contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expense when they are due.

(@) Employees of the Group in the Mainland China
Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations
in the Mainland China, employees of the Group in the
Mainland China participated in the central pension
scheme (“Scheme”), which is a defined contribution
plan administered by the Mainland China government,
whereby the Group is required to make contributions to
the Scheme based on certain percentages of the eligible
employees’ salaries. The local government authorities
are responsible for the entire pension obligations payable
to the retired employees. Contributions made to the
Scheme vest immediately.

*  Annual Report 2022 £k

127



ﬁii'lA
mwih 37

175 3 R MY 51

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BZE2022F 12331 HIEEE  For the year ended 31 December 2022

2 EEGSBEREE (@)

2.21

1238

EBERHN (&)

BUEHS — EEMEHE ()

(b) FEEFEEHES

ABTEBLEEISHE R
NEEFTEERE) > REBHAE
BEEMNE2EAREBMNRFMEA
BEeotEl ((aEsstal) -2k
EABUTESTAEENTE
RS o RIFaBETE > A%
EREEEESBEHERIESE
R ABIS%EAHEI WUEA
30,0008 TARESHBAR LR -
BESHHRZ(EAREE o

(c) ZFEEEENES

RiEaEFBEEL  RaENE
EREEIFSHFFRIES (B
BEEE (MHEE) ETHHE
TERAREENERMERE) -
EZFAE T AERFEEESAD
FEE S TIRRBIELEE A
6.0%BI R - HBAREZBIHMR
RS
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888 E TR BIFT R IR
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e & 57 8 {70 A1 B BE E BR (AR ET
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.21 Employee benefits (Continued)

Pension obligation - defined contribution plan
(Continued)

(b)  Employees of the Group in Hong Kong

In compliance with the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws
of Hong Kong), employees of the Group in Hong Kong
are required to participate in the Mandatory Provident
Fund scheme of the Group (“MPF Scheme”). The MPF
Scheme is a defined contribution plan administered by an
independent corporate trustee. Under the MPF Scheme,
each of the Group and the employees are required to
make contributions to the MPF Scheme at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$30,000. Contributions to the MPF
Scheme vest immediately.

(c) Employees of the Group in Taiwan

Pursuant to the Labour Standards Law of Taiwan,
employees of the Group in Taiwan participated in the
Labour Pension Fund, which is a defined contribution
plan managed by the Bureau of Labour Funds as
governed by the Ministry of Labour in Taiwan (“Ministry
of Labour”). Under such plan, the Group is required to
make monthly contributions to the Bureau of Labour
Insurance, Ministry of Labour at 6.0% of the employees’
total monthly wages. Contributions made to such
pension fund vest immediately.

The Group’s contributions under the above-mentioned
defined contribution plans in the Mainland China, Hong
Kong and Taiwan are expensed as incurred and not
reduced by contributions forfeited by those employees
who leave the defined contribution plans prior to vesting
fully in the contributions.

4 — e ZEREIEE AR AF Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢  Annual Report 2022 3§
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2 EBEGTHHEREHME (8) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.21 RERH (@) 2.21 Employee benefits (Continued)
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Pension obligation - defined benefit plan

Certain Taiwan employees of the Group elected to
participate in a defined benefit plan in accordance with
the Labour Standards Law of Taiwan (“Defined Benefit
Plan”). Under the Defined Benefit Plan, pension benefits
are calculated based on the years of service and average
monthly salary of the six months preceding retirement
of the relevant employee, and the Group is required to
make monthly contributions of 2% to 15% of the total
monthly wages of the employees to a pension fund
(“Pension Fund”). Pension contributions are deposited
into the Bank of Taiwan in the name of the pension fund
provision supervision committee of the Group. Before
the end of each financial year, the Group will assess
the balance in the Pension Fund. In the event that the
balance in the Pension Fund is insufficient to pay out
pension benefits to retiring employees in the following
financial year, the Group is required to pay up such
difference on its own account.

2.22 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.22 Provisions (Continued)

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

2.23 Revenue recognition

The Group manufactures and sells beverages and food.
Sales are recognised when control of the products has
transferred, being when the products are delivered to
the customer, the customer has full discretion over the
channel and price to sell the products, and there is no
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s
acceptance of the products. Delivery occurs when the
products have been shipped to the specific location, the
risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred
to the customer, and either the customer has accepted
the products in accordance with the sales contract, the
acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the Group has
objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have
been satisfied.

The products are often sold with retrospective volume
discounts based on aggregate sales over a period of
time. Revenue from these sales is recognised based on
the price specified in the contract, net of the estimated
volume discounts. Accumulated experience is used to
estimate and provide for the discounts, and revenue is
only recognised to the extent that it is highly probable
that a significant reversal will not occur. A refund liability
(included in other payables and accruals) is recognised
for expected volume discounts payable to customers in
relation to sales. No significant element of financing is
deemed present as the sales are made with a credit term
of 60-90 days, which is consistent with market practice.
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2 EBEGTHHEREHME (8) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.23 Wz FEsR (48) 2.23 Revenue recognition (Continued)
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A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered
as this is the point in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage of time is
required before the payment is due.

The Group’s obligations to provide a refund for faulty
products are under the standard warranty terms.
Accumulated experience is used to estimate such returns
at the time of sale. Because of the large size and low
value of each individual product, the amount of products
returned were immaterial. It is highly probable that a
significant reversal in the cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur. Therefore, no refund liability for goods
return was recognized. The validity of this assumption
and the estimated amount of returns are reassessed at
each reporting date.

For certain payments to customers for promotion
activities, the Group did not provide a distinct good
or service to customers and therefore recorded as a
deduction of sales price.

The Group does not expect to have any contract
containing financing components. As a consequence,
the Group does not adjust any of the transition prices for
the time value of money.

2.24 Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.24 Government grants (Continued)

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the income statement over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to land use rights and
property, plant and equipment are included in non-
current liabilities as deferred government grants and are
credited to the income statement on a straight-line basis
over the expected lives of the related assets.

2.25 Interest income

Interest income on financial assets at amortised
cost calculated using the effective interest method is
recognised in the income statement as part of other
income.

Interest income is presented as finance income where
it is earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes, see Note 10 below. Any other
interest income is included in other income.

2.26 Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments).

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement
of the liability.

4 — e ZEREIEE AR AF Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢  Annual Report 2022 3§
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2 EBEGTHHEREHME (8) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.26 fE (&) 2.26 Leases (Continued)
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The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment with similar terms, security and
conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

° where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions
since third party financing was received;

° uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-
free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases
held by the Group, which does not have recent
third party financing, and

° makes adjustments specific to the lease, eg term,
country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to income
statement over the lease period so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.26 Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability, and

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of
equipment and vehicles and all leases of low-value assets
are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense
in the income statement. Short-term leases are leases
with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets
comprise IT equipment and small items of office furniture.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is
a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis
over the lease term (Note 16). Initial direct costs incurred
in obtaining an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the underlying asset and recognised as
expense over the lease term on the same basis as lease
income. The respective leased assets are included in the
balance sheet based on their nature.

4 — e ZEREIEE AR AF Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢  Annual Report 2022 3§



_ | EOBBERRME
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2022%F 12831 HIEEE  For the year ended 31 December 2022

BETTHERHNE (8) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.27 Non-current assets held for sale
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Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their
carrying amount will be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing use and
a sale is considered highly probable. They are measured
at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell, except for assets such as deferred tax
assets, assets arising from employee benefits, financial
assets and investment property that are carried at fair
value and contractual rights under insurance contracts,
which are specifically exempt from this requirement.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or
subsequent write-down of the asset to fair value less
costs to sell. A gain is recognised for any subsequent
increases in fair value less costs to sell of an asset,
but not in excess of any cumulative impairment loss
previously recognised. A gain or loss not previously
recognised by the date of the sale of the non-current
asset is recognised at the date of derecognition.

Non-current assets are not depreciated or amortised
while they are classified as held for sale. Interest
and other expenses attributable to the liabilities of a
disposal Group classified as held for sale continue to be
recognised.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale and the
assets of a disposal Group classified as held for sale are
presented separately from the other assets in the balance
sheet. The liabilities of a disposal Group classified as held
for sale are presented separately from other liabilities in
the balance sheet.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.28 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in
the financial statements. When a change in the probability
of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will
then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from
past events and whose existence will be confirmed only
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain events not wholly within the control of the
Group.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually
certain, an asset is recognised.

2.29 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company'’s financial statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk and
cash flow and fair value interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
program focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance.

(a) Market risk
() Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising from various currency
exposures, primarily with respect to the USD for certain
PRC subsidiaries whose functional currency are RMB.
Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and net
investments in foreign operations.

Management has set up a policy to require Group
companies to manage their foreign exchange risk
against their functional currency. To manage their foreign
exchange risk arising from future commercial transactions
and recognised assets and liabilities, entities in the Group
use forward contracts outside the PRC, transacted by
Group treasury. Foreign exchange risk arises when future
commercial transactions or recognised assets or liabilities
are denominated in a currency that is not the entity’s
functional currency.
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3.1 HEEREZE (B&)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
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(a) HHEEE (48)

AR AEEABIER TE W
WREPEAREZES SR
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2022412831 H @ A H A
HERFAE MARBRETK
BITIHE/ 2 E5% B E2022F
12831 B IEEENRBEF R
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g 1EmARE277,000
) EEEERBRENETKE
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(a) Market risk (Continued)
() Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

Most of the Group entities’ functional currency is RMB
since majority of the revenues of these entities are
derived from operations in Mainland China. Foreign
exchange risk arises from recognised assets or liabilities,
such as trade and bills receivables (Note 22), cash and
bank balances (Note 25) and borrowings (Note 30), part
of which are denominated in United States dollar (‘USD”)
and Hong Kong dollar (“HKD”).

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, price
risk, and cash flow and fair value interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management program focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance.

As at 31 December 2022, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against USD and HKD with all
other variables held constant, the post-tax profit for
the year ended 31 December 2022 would have been
approximately RMB313,000 lower/higher (2021:
RMB277,000 lower/higher), mainly as a result of foreign
exchange losses/gains on translation of USD and HKD
denominated borrowings and cash and bank balances.
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(a) Market risk (Continued)

() Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

Exposure

The Group’s major exposure to foreign currency risk at
the end of the reporting period, expressed in RMB’000,

was as follows:

METstE M#TsE UEHMEHE

uUsD HKD
denominated  denominated

Other
currencies
denominated

®2022F12831H As at 31 December 2022
He Cash

FEUR B 5 8RN Trade receivables

2021 E 128318 As at 31 December 2021
He Cash

FEU B 7 BR TN Trade receivables
RIERKRED &M

FRERBEIRMERD T ZIMNEE

L 949
1,903 4,252
1,559 712
1,128 2,870

24

24

Amounts recognised in the income statement

During the year, the following foreign-exchange related

RS %A amounts were recognised in the income statement:
2022 2021
AR®FT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
MEWA — F2E Finance income — net
-MEEHER — Foreign exchange gains/(losses)
W, (B548) on financing activities 150 (165)

Ui— 1 R EEE AR E Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢  Annual Report 2022 4R

139



4o A

ik [
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE2022F 12831 HILEEE

3

140

R4 35 ¥ 2= B 5E

MBERERE (8)

3.1

MHERBREER (&)
(@) WA (&)
(i) BWERERATEFIERLE

PRIE R IRITHEER (PYEE25) RfE
& (M5£30) My B MUK A AR ¥
RPBRAFESABZNEREE
(Mf5E24) oh > AEB I EAEFH
thEXRFEREERER

A& E 2 F= E R BIRITER &
BE - FREIRTTERMREESARE
EAZRERENERE > MH5
EEAEFARERRTAFENE
Rl e AEBUWEMERESRER
NEEFZERBRETERE o iR
TEAREENHERFER DI
BRI 5T 25 K MIEE30 ©

2022128310 A H A
BYRFAE > RTEIRESF
KPFFBIE100EEES » KEE
mMeENBEEEN BOOAR
44,148,000 70 (20214 : A R#E
44,745,0007T) ° EEHPRIRITLE
BRAI B YA, R > B E
BF) B &R o

AEBPIRERENERE KB M
AEORENETER  ZSER
FTEABRNFESABRYRNGS
BT o 2SS [ 0 4 3 b HL o] 42
EIERE - AT E ABEZH SR
B ENTEHRDIIRZE K FH 2 BB MY
57 3.3.1 KM sFE 242 8¢ ©

R2022FE 128318 {§3& A F
Bt ABENEMEENTELD
]WEEHTREI00EEE £
MR B EFNBEEMN R LDHOAR
#3,790,0007T (20214 : AR
2,696,0007T) °

For the year ended 31 December 2022

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)
(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Except for cash and bank balances (Note 25) and
borrowings (Note 30) with interest charges and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss (Note 24) with
expected return rate, the Group has no other significant
interest-bearing assets and liabilities.

The Group’s interest-rate risk arises from bank deposits
and borrowings. Bank deposits and borrowings at
variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest-
rate risk, and if at fixed rates expose the Group to fair
value interest-rate risk. The Group has not hedged its
cash flow and fair value interest rate risk. The interest
rates and terms of bank deposits and borrowings are
disclosed in Note 25 and Note 30 respectively.

As at 31 December 2022, if interest rates on bank
deposits and borrowings had been 100 basis points
higher/lower with all other variables held constant,
the post-tax profit for the year would have been
approximately RMB44,148,000 (2021: RMB44,745,000)
higher/lower, mainly as a result of higher/lower interest
income on bank balances which would offset partially by
interest expenses on borrowings.

The Group’s cash flow interest-rate risk arises from
wealth management products with variable return
rates, which are mainly structured deposits carried at
FVPL. The Group has not hedged its variable return
rates. The expected return rates and terms of financial
assets at FVPL are disclosed in Note 3.3.1 and Note 24
respectively.

As at 31 December 2022, if expected return rates on
financial assets at FVPL had been 100 basis points
higher/lower, the post-tax profit for the year would
have been approximately RMB3,790,000 (2021:
RMB2,696,000) higher/lower.

fi— R EEE A PR/ F] Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. «  Annual Report 2022 3§
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents,
contractual cash flows of debt instruments carried at
amortised cost and at FVPL, and deposits with banks
and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to
wholesale and retail customers, including outstanding
receivables.

() Risk management

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. As at 31
December 2022, the bank deposits and cash at bank
were deposited in reputable financial institutions which
are considered with low credit risk. The table below
shows bank deposits and cash at bank balances by
counterparties:

2022 2021
ARETFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000

R Counterparties
— 4K+ AERTT* - Big 4 PRC domestic banks* 693,555 624,080
— SNEIRTT — Foreign owned banks 4,553,648 3,775,065
— HhE A ERTT — Other domestic commercial banks 1,405,562 1,678,544
6,652,765 6,077,689

* MAPEEARITEERETIE

IRITIRMDBRAE ~ REIRER
TRMHABRAE ~ REETRM
BRABRPEZRBITROA
RAF e

U SR EEIE A IR/ E) Uni-President China Holdings Lid. «  Annual Report 2022 445 147

Big 4 PRC domestic banks comprise Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China Limited, Agricultural Bank
of China Limited, Bank of China Limited and China
Construction Bank Corporation.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)
() Risk management (Continued)

If wholesale customers are independently rated, these
ratings are used. Otherwise, if there is no independent
rating, risk control assesses the credit quality of the
customer, taking into account its financial position, past
experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are set
based on internal or external ratings in accordance with
limits set by the board. The compliance with credit limits
by wholesale customers is regularly monitored by line
management.

The Group expects that there is no significant credit risk
associated with bills receivables, all of which are bank
acceptance bills since they are substantially deposited
at or issued by state-owned banks and other medium
or large sized listed banks. Management does not
expect that there will be any significant losses from non-
performance by these counterparties.

The Group’s investment in debt instruments are
considered to be low risk investments. The credit ratings
of the investments are monitored for credit deterioration.

(i) Impairment of financial assets

The Group has trade receivables for sales of goods that
are subject to the expected credit loss model.

While cash and bank balances, bills receivable and long-
term time deposits are also subject to the impairment
requirements of HKFRS 9, the identified impairment loss
was immaterial.

4 — e ZEREIEE AR AF Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢  Annual Report 2022 3§
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables from
initial recognition. To measure the expected credit losses,
trade receivables have been grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics and the days past due. On that
basis, the loss allowance as at 31 December 2022 and
31 December 2021 was determined as follows for trade

receivables:
HOOKA 91E180K 181E365%K —EHNE &t
Within 91to 181 to Over
90 days 180 days 365 days one year Total

2022%12831H 31 December 2022

TBHEBELEE Expected loss rate

MRERE(E Gross carrying amount
— [EWRE BRI - trade receivables

ekt Loss allowance

0.36% 14.56% 67.01% 100.00%

761,851 62,624 10,105 1,012 835,592

2,745 9,116 6,771 1,012 19,644

ROOXA 91E180K 181E365K —FE =L
Within 91to 181 to Over

90 days 180 days 365 days one year Total

2021%F12831H 31 December 2021

TBHEBELEE Expected loss rate
MRERE(E Gross carrying amount

— [EWREFERI - trade receivables
B iRRE Loss allowance

0.41% 11.84% 64.60% 100.00%

595,300 48,181 6,526 2,993 653,000
2,437 5,705 4,216 2,993 15,351

4i— > R EZ=I8 A FRAAF] Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. » Annual Report 2022 45 143
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)
The closing loss allowances for trade receivables as at

31 December 2022 are reconciled to the opening losses
allowances as follows:

2022 2021
ARBTT AREKTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
1B 1 BB EEE Opening loss allowance as at 1 January 15,351 14,804
FRRIBmRERN Increase in loss allowance recognised
EEEEEN (Wste) in the income statement during
the year (Note 6) 6,385 4,338
REREAF O EIWFIEEE Receivables written off during
B FE W BR =X the year as uncollectible (2,092) (3,791)
12831 BHWVHARESIERE  Closing loss allowance as at
31 December 19,644 15,351

EFNFEARENSETRRR > &
EETMIBRKREZ RN - N FE
AR EIN S IEFARNEREE (B
hERE) BEHABELRAERER
EGtE REA A BB
EHMERMIFH KR (EF
H)

W E SRRV BEBEREER
MAEFRITEHFX - H&RWE%
A ERRIEE AR —IER °

H— 1 EPEZEIRA R AT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Trade receivables are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery include,
amongst others, the failure of a debtor to engage in a
repayment plan with the Group, and a failure to make
contractual payments for a period greater than 60-90
days past due (credit terms).

Impairment losses on trade receivables are presented
as administrative expenses within operating profit.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
are credited against the same line item.

*  Annual Report 2022 3R
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3.1 HBRERBEZR (@) 3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
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EENHMERSIETECTERW
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s BURMBREEAERITRHE
R AR EERRRE
BoR R EHIRTTH BRI E H
5

o BRI S RIBERBRHEE
ERR TBELEAHK—©B
ERNDABRAE FEENR
RIERAR WHEAERTE
EAFERT (—REKRMNZ
BE AR AR R E 2T
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FETE) KB AE -
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(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost include
other receivables. Impairment on other receivables is
measured as either 12-month expected credit losses
or lifetime expected credit loss, depending on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition. If a significant increase in credit risk
of a receivable has occurred since initial recognition,
then impairment is measured as lifetime expected credit
losses. As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, there was
no increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, other receivables
within the Group mainly include interest receivables,
amounts due from related parties and other deposits.

o Interest receivables arise from time deposits in
state-owned banks and other medium or large
sized listed banks institutions which are considered
with low credit risk;

o Amounts due from related parties are considered
as low credit risk which mainly arise from
the subsidiaries of Uni-President Enterprises
Corporation, ultimate holding company of the
Group, which has a A grade credit rating issued by
Taiwan Ratings Corp., a subsidiary of internationally
renowned credit rating agency S&P Global Rating.

Historically, all other receivables were collected on
timely basis. Management assesses and concludes that
these receivables are considered to be low credit risk
where they have a low risk of default and have a strong
capacity to meet the contractual cash flow obligations in
the near term. And thus, the identified impairment loss is
immaterial.
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3.1 HEEREZE (B&)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
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(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Net impairment losses on financial assets recognised in
the income statement

During the year, the following losses were recognised
in ‘administrative expenses’ in the income statement in
relation to impaired financial assets:

2022 2021
AR®TT AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEUN B ZERAVES B E 2E) Movement in loss allowance for
trade receivables 6,385 4,338

(i) A FESARZIEME
E

REBRATEF ABHZNIEHE
ESERGSERRKRENERIR
TER (RE) ~ GREERKRE
B AEETEERENEAT
R LB HIREARBIE (5E24) ©

(c) TWENELERE

BRZ A ES AR EETISHER
BHZBHETRIREFEY)  BER
BRABZERHEEEMBEREEME
FrugRES  MEETHEAETZ
BEH - AEBZERNDERRBZ

EAGHEEMERE  LIREASE
EHEATRRE LR ESAIHEA o

(i) Financial assets at FVPL

The Group’s financial assets at FVPL are comprised
of term bank products (principal protected), structured
deposit and investment fund considered to be low risk
investments. The credit ratings of the investments are
monitored for credit deterioration (Note 24).

(c) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and cash equivalents, the availability of
fund through adequate amounts of committed credit
facilities and the ability to close out market positions. The
Group’s objective is to maintain adequate committed
credit facilities to ensure sufficient and flexible funding is
available to the Group.

4 — e ZEREIEE AR AF Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢  Annual Report 2022 3§
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

BB R ()

TRALEBZEHEED T Z

BEFREEEES

MERIE Z 8%

THARRF RN A R EI ARE R A
H o RAFMBETREAEARMIER

WEME -

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities
that will be settled on a net basis into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at the balance
sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted

cash flows.
PR—-F —EmE HERE BBLF st
Between Between
Less than 1and 2and Over
1 year 2 years 5years 5years Total
AREFT AREFTRT AREFR ARETR ARETR:
RMB'0OO ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB000
20225128318 As at 31 December 2022
BE Borrowings 767,756 - - - 767,756
BEFNERR Interest payments on borrowings 5,569 - - - 5,569
HEaR Lease liabilities 28,957 22,994 29,352 31,213 112,516
RS Trade payables 2,675,047 - - - 2,675,047
EMEMTUERMESER  Other payables and accruals,
(FEEFSREE) (excluding non-financial liabllities) 1,532,092 - - - 1,532,002
AEtRBENTE Other long term payables - 278,591 - - 278,591
5,009,421 301,585 29,352 31,213 537,571
#2021E12A318 As at 31 December 2021
B8 Borrowings 112,300 - - - 112,300
BEFNEAR Interest payments on borrowings 337 - - - 337
HEaR Lease liabilities 20,558 13,456 4,582 - 38,596
ENEREN Trade payables 2,118,048 - - - 2,118,048
EMENTUERESER  Other payables and accruals,
(FEEkemat) (excluding non-financial liabllities) 1,510,290 - - - 1510290
HEtRAENTE Other long term payables - 267,763 - - 267,763
3,761,533 281,219 4,582 - 4,047,334

H—¥EPEIEEER/A T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1

3.2

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

Interests payments on borrowings are calculated based
on borrowings held as at the balance sheet dates without
taking into account of future issues. Floating-rate interest
is estimated using the current interest rate as at the
balance sheet dates.

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group

monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net cash divided by total equity.

*  Annual Report 2022 3R
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MR ERE (8) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

32 BEXREMERE (8) 3.2 Capital risk management (Continued)
KEBWNKEEHELRBELEAE The Group’s strategy is to maintain a gearing ratio below
FEE I 50% © 722022 £ K 2021 50%. The gearing ratios at 31 December 2022 and 2021
F£12831 ANEARBELEENT : are as follows:

2022 2021
AR®BFTT AREKTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
wEs (8EEEae® Total borrowings
(B 5% 15 R B 5% 30) (including lease liabilities)
(Note 15 and Note 30) 869,496 149,719
B IRTTRFERE Less: cash at bank and on hand
(MI5E25) (Note 25) (6,654,208) (6,078,271)
R F58 Net cash (5,784,712) (5,928,552)
Mg Total equity 13,181,353 13,765,301
BARBELXE Gearing ratio -43.89% -43.07%
HRAEBEERFRERN &% The Group’s gearing ratio as at 31 December 2022 was
ER2022F 12831 HNEAREE negative since the Group is in net cash position.
EEEABEE -
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3 MBRMERE (B) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)
33 AFEMHE 3.3 Fair value estimation
TRUGEEDTERAFEIEZ The table below analyses financial instruments carried at
SRTHE SEBXEATUWT : fair value by valuation method. The different levels have

been defined as follows:

e (HEEBENBEEIZETS e Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
BIHME REHE) (F1/@) © identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

e  RTYF1EBMEIENREN e Inputs other than quoted prices included within
ZEEYEBEZIEREH level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
A > A ERE BIHNE either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is,
) ZiEE GREER) (B derived from prices) (level 2).

2/8) °

e EEYEBIIIFKEBEIERR e Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
MZEEZHA BIIETHEE on observable market data (that is, unobservable
#wA) (B3E) o inputs) (level 3).

/] 60 R EEE A R/A T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢  Annual Report 2022 3R
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3 HBEERERE (8) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)
3.3 AT EGBE (B) 3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

TRETAEBRSRE ER2022
FR2021FE12A31 HEt 82 AT

The following table presents the Group’s financial assets
that are measured at fair value at 31 December 2022

B o and 2021.
20224 20214
12H31H 12831 H
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
ARBTFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BE Assets
BN ESF AET (MF5E24)  FVPL (Note 24)
— $E3E —Level 3 1,018,521 1,715,448

REZE2022F12831HIEEE >
SEEMTEATERERATE
[ 4R 183 3 e F L 8 8 > B MR e Rl
BZEEEENNERME R
BENDE -

During the year ended 31 December 2022, there are no
transfers among levels of the fair value hierarchy used in
measuring the fair value of financial instruments, and also
no changes in the classification of financial assets as a
result of a change in the purpose or use of those assets.

“F—1 P EERARAF Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2022 3§ ,I 5/]
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3 WHHBEKREIRE (&) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)
3.3 AT EMHE (@) 3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
331 EHEAXF I ERHA B 3.3.1 Fair value measurements using significant
BEARFHE (E3E) unobservable inputs (Level 3)
REEBE T ERE BT L ZEAE The Group enters into the wealth management products
HRaWEBMEREHN  ZFEL contracts with relatively higher interest rates with certain
REEBBERARMASIZ AT ES financial institutions. These are reflected as financial
ABRBEMEE 102022412 assets at FVPL on the balance sheet. As at 31 December
B31H XHPEHMEREEF 2022, most of the wealth management products are
EAENFESHIEERES B8 bought from the major financial institutions in Mainland
EBERIEEEEBERARFEEITSE China and management has exercised due care when
WEZEENEREBIEMER - make investment decision with focus only on low risk

wealth management products.

TREVEHZE2022F12831H1E The following table presents the changes in level 3
FENEIBTAEEF o instruments for the year ended 31 December 2022.
BAFESA
Ei=bd=p)
EREE
Financial
assets
at FVPL
AREFIT
RMB’000
HA 45 ER Opening balance 1,715,448
1B Additions 700,000
BRAFEFABRNHEF R Gains on disposal of financial assets at FVPL 35,347
BAFEFABENEREEZ Change in value of financial assets at FVPL
BEZF 17,494
WERHI PSR IE Proceeds received (1,449,768)
BAR A5 ER Closing balance 1,018,521
FARFBZEENB@mRTPES Total unrealised gains for the year recognised in
25 7E TEMFIE — /F58) the income statement for assets held at the
B THEEERBIRFE end of the year, under ‘Other gains — net’ 17,494

’] 62 fi— R EEE A PR/ F] Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. «  Annual Report 2022 3§
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

3.3.1 Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3) (Continued)

Quantitative information about fair value
measurements using significant unobservable inputs

(Level 3)
20225
12A31H FRBRBAE
Faitt MATE (GERN AEBEBAE #E HATERMRF
Relationship of
Fair value at Valuation Unobservable unobservable
Description 31/12/2022 technique(s) input Range inputs to fair value
AERETR
RMB’000
REFTETREEDN 1,018,521 FHIRFEME TEHAEEREX 1.50-4.70% = TEHAREI R KR
B E R ATEEMARE
4,126,0007T ; =1&
FREARIRE Tk
FERTERD
AE18,125,0007T
Wealth management 1,018,521  Discounted Expected 1.560-4.70% Highest expected return
products from major cash flow return rate rate would increase

financial institutions

H—¥EPEIEEER/A T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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FV by RMB4,126,000;
lowest expected return
rate would decrease
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MFREEER (&)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

financial institutions

3.3.2151EAE

REBWBEPIEE—Z TS
REBNHERAFESAEBENE
MEEETHE (BEFEIELATF
B) WEX EEEAEER RS
MEEBEREREVEREAE
T—Retim o BAERFFEREH
fB—2 o

FEBREANTIEFEIERAES
BATEFABENEREEZD
BE HDRAARSHTFHNEH
PR &RY [B] R Z 0 LU 25 B 2 5T 1S
¢ o

H— 1 EPEZEIRA R AT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

3.3 AFEMHBE (B 3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
331 FHEATFTHEHAE: 3.3.1 Fair value measurements using significant
BERTE(F3E) (B) unobservable inputs (Level 3) (Continued)
120214
12A31H FARRBEAE
it MATE (HERKI FERRREAE #HE HATENRER
Relationship of
Fairvalue at ~ Valuation Unobservable unobservable
Description 31/12/2021  technique(s) input Range inputs to fair value
ARETT
RMB’000
REFBEEMEEN 1,715,448 BERIERE TRHARIRE 1.50%-4.70% &= T8 HA Bl R K15
B ER NFEEMARE
1,083,0007T ; &R1ETE
IR E T R
ATER D AR
7,025,0007T
Wealth management 1,715,448  Discounted Expected 1.50%-4.70% Highest expected return
products from major cash flow return rate rate would increase

FV by RMB1,083,000;
lowest expected return
rate would decrease
FV by RMB7,025,000

3.3.2 Valuation processes

The finance department of the Group includes a team
that performs the valuations of financial assets at FVPL
required for financial reporting purposes, including level
3 fair values. Discussions of valuation processes and
results are held between the management and the
valuation team at least once every six months, in line with
the Group’s half-yearly reporting periods.

The main level 3 inputs used by the Group are return
rates of the financial assets at FVPL which are derived
and evaluated based on the yield rate written in contracts
by the counterparties.

*  Annual Report 2022 3R



4

mE MR M EE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2022%F 12831 HIEEE  For the year ended 31 December 2022

FASE F 5 {EE R FIEh

FEBHGERBRREFENGE > TR
BEEERMAMEARETIE  OF
ERERBER FEREEHFNGERR -

41

FEEsHLERRR

KFEEHRRFHER KRR ° &
& HItMER G EEED
SARZBRERMER - AR
EYRTMAMBFEFERNZEERER
REEHRERFARZEEREBR
REwmUWT o

(&) FEHRRIEEFFFREE

FERETERRTEBMRPAER
EREFMSHRZEBREAEFHEXR
F - RERH MBI R R
RINBEES B TRER - 7EH
AL ARREG B RBMERINRIE -
DR B E RS HED AR -
HZEEEZRENFERARLEY
S ARZ EERNE  RFEER
SR EBEENRIREZ B KIEIL
FRSIEERER

BERETEREEZEERREBEZ
EEFFSMEBEEEC TR ) RE
AEEE R A ISR R ERS &
Ao URARIEHE R R E R
WIRTARSIE ©

WHEARESRENEEREER
(RyEn B BN EEE NG
10% > BRS8N, L ik
EMIBE E A R122,765,000 7T
(20214 : A E#£24,300,0007T) °

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates
will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results.
The estimates and assumptions that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are discussed below.

(a) Income taxes and deferred income tax
assets

The Group is mainly subject to income taxes in the
PRC. Significant judgment is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities for
anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities
in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain
temporary differences and tax losses are recognised as
management considers it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilized.

Were the actual final outcome (on the judgment areas)
of expected cash flows is favourable/unfavourable by
10% from management’s estimates, the Group would
need to increase/decrease the deferred tax assets by
RMB22,765,000 (2021: RMB24,300,000).
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4 FABEHLEERHIE (B 4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

41 BAREFEERRR (@

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

106

(b) THEFERYE - BER
REZ G5 HE

THERRURE  BERRHE
REREENFRESH AT RLEE
WO EREERFETTREER ° PIUK
EEREDIRBEERBEESEEE
ZEtE AR RERFE K b5t o

EIREBANE ERE S g
LTHEHERETG (RS EBESEH
BTEREEGEYEEEWKED ;
(\—IEEEZREEESIMUAET
WEl428 (BIAFERIEEERAD
RBEBNEFPFEHEBREAEEM
TR KIRS REREFEIKR
2E) XF RiWREBERE
BARERAEENEERS U
RERREREBARETFEREHE
BIEEZALIR o EIRE T h R E T
ERZEBR (BEREREBAIN
IREYBRRILEER) WEEH
AHEENETNIREFEERE
P2 mEMEARER B
MR REEFEMTE - WTRAZE
ER AR HBRRIB S R2TEA
BEARAIFEE > QO EERGE
2EWERTABRBESEE o

(Continued)

(b) Estimated impairment of land use rights and
property, plant and equipment

Land use right and property, plant and equipment are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may
not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts have been
determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations require the use of judgments and estimates.

Management judgment is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event
has occurred that may indicate that the related assets
values may not be recoverable; (i) whether the carrying
value of an asset can be supported by the recoverable
amount, being the higher of fair value less costs to sell
or net present value of future cash flows which are
estimated based upon the continued use of the asset in
the business; and (iii) the appropriate key assumptions
to be applied in preparing cash flow projections and
whether these cash flow projections are discounted using
an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected
by management in assessing impairment, including the
discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the
cash flow projections, could materially affect the net
present value in the impairment test and as a result affect
the Group’s financial position and results of operations.
If there is a significant adverse change in the projected
performance and resulting future cash flow projections,
it may be necessary to take an impairment charge to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

4 — e ZEREIEE AR AF Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢  Annual Report 2022 3§



= .2 H
I

B4 75 ¥ = B 5E

Notes to the Consolidated FinanC|aI Statements
HZE2022%F 12831 HIEEE  For the year ended 31 December 2022
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HITEFHRESTEEBRRA H
TEFERAEREZAMKRSE - UETHE
RERDEER - EEERBZERS

J/'\M ﬁﬁﬁ o

RN AERIO% U L2 HEREFR TS
RARET SRTESFUERBRESR
REH - EEHERERBETERE
B Eft R DB DEZ KIF -

Hth T2 aEHEMEK  BE i
mAREMIFRE EmIER M@ o RO EC
TEEREXAEBROAATL  flINEE
BTHE S EEM B ANERS
REARKE > ARABFIXIEAERER
E=E

HTESRESBEBNEEEDLZ
R MPTEFRHEZEHMER (Tt
EHIRIN AP BRE-RZHAHE -

KEBARIBOHEESDH > WwmbE—
SNEBERIETHRZIN G A LB
@10% LA £ o

H—¥EPEIEEER/A T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

5

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
the executive directors. The executive directors review the
Group’s internal reporting in order to assess performance and
allocate resources. Management has determined the operating
segments based on these reports.

The executive directors consider the business from a
product perspective as over 90% of the Group’s sales and
business activities are conducted in the PRC. From a product
perspective, management assesses the performance of
beverages, food, others and unallocated.

Others mainly includes the sales of bottle water, wine,
cosmetics products and other non-beverages or non food
products. Unallocated mainly includes the cost centers of
the Group, such as corporate department, administration
department, group finance department, human resources
department and information technology department, which
support the whole Group’s activities.

The executive directors assess the performance of operating
segments based on segment profit or loss. Other information
provided, except as noted below, to the executive directors
is measured in a manner consistent with that in the financial
statements.

The majority of the Group’s sales are through distributors and

no revenues from transactions with a single external customer
account for 10% or more of the Group’s revenue.

*  Annual Report 2022 £k
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5 WEmKkIEER (48) 5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
(@ PHEFR (@) Segment information
B E2022F K 202112831 H The segment information for the year ended 31
IFEEZAHERDNT December 2022 and 2021 is as follows:
2022
Bl Bl Hith XPHE pine: ]|
Beverages Food Others Unallocated Group
ARETT ARETn ARETR ARETR ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000
DEEE Segment results
W Revenue 16,405,389 11,009,440 842,603 - 28,257,432
AEEF/ (8518) Segment profit/(loss) 1,828,988 7,634 20,795 (361,600) 1,495,817
BEWA - 258 Finance income - net - - - 208,870 208,870
Ligm A AR Z BN Share of profit/(loss)
RERHN/ (F8) of investments
accounted for using
the equity method 56,512 - - (30,370) 26,142
BRENTS I AT EF Profit before income tax 1,730,829
FrgMmS Income tax expense (508,672)
EERH Profit for the year 1,222,157
TE R Depreciation and amortisation 756,026 300,965 31,956 52,093 1,141,040
BE Assets 7,958,824 3,652,724 878,521 8,476,557 20,966,626
BETEARNEE  Investments accounted
for using the equity method 659,951 - - 157,778 817,729
BEE Total assets 8,618,775 3,652,724 878521 8,634,335 21,784,355
ai Liabilities 4,129,443 3,183,113 344,120 946,326 8,603,002
mes Total liabilities 8,603,002
HREFRHEE Addition to non-current
assets 325,876 192,855 7,910 19,235 545,876
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Wz R B ERE kL (B8) 5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
(@ EEE (@) (a) Segment information (Continued)
2021
R B Hith xRk &R
Beverages Food Others  Unallocated Group
ARBBTT ARETT AR%®TT ARETRT AREBTR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
DEEE Segment results
Wiz Revenue 14,737,840 9,624,873 967,900 - 25,230,613
PEEF/ (E548) Segment profit/(loss) 2,028,382 151,021 46,755 (320,323) 1,905,835
BMEWA - 358 Finance income - net - - - 201,037 201,037
Li#m A AR ZIENL  Share of profit of investments
K& R accounted for using
the equity method 31,487 - - 3,483 34,970
BrFTER AR Profit before income tax 2,141,842
PrSMBS Income tax expense (641,127)
FERF Profit for the year 1,500,715
WENEE Depreciation and amortisation 813,340 315,849 25,636 74261 1,229,086
BE Assets 8,237,396 3,649,470 890,193 8,475,388 21,252,447
BEZEANENEZE  Investments accounted
for using the equity method 624,733 - - 188,166 812,899
nEE Total assets 8,862,129 3,649,470 890,193 8,663,064 22,065,346
=L Liabilities 4,091,611 2,998,420 249,166 960,848 8,300,045
=R Total liabilities 8,300,045
REFRBHEE Addition to
non-current assets 65,855 196,536 29,849 145,059 437,299

F—1 ¥R EERAR AT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Wai B B ERE K (48)

(@

DERE R ()

BEARDEAENZEETES
ERELFRSNEE  BATES
ABZERMEE  WERIRITE
B REMERBRAEREEE -

BRARDEANZBETEERE
EIEFRSIER EHERAR
RIEE o

EXAZHBEAEYE  BERR
B ERAREE REVMEURE
REE -

URARBERZIFRSNE EMBER
e

5

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(GY)

Segment information (Continued)

Assets grouped under unallocated category consisted
primarily of deferred income tax assets, financial assets
at FVPL, cash and banks, investment properties and
related right-of-use assets.

Liabilities grouped under unallocated category comprised
primarily of deferred income tax liabilities, current income
tax liabilities and borrowings.

Capital expenditure comprised additions to property,
plant and equipment, right-of-use assets, investment
properties and intangible assets.

The total of non-current assets located in different
countries is as follows:

2022 2021
AREFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EREFEE (FEIESMITE  The total of non-current assets other
FIEIEFR1SIRE E) 48 %8 than financial instruments and
deferred income tax assets
- AR — Mainland China 9,445,613 10,039,717
- BINEIR K& — Overseas countries and territories 3 3,238
ERET A Financial instruments 3,559,762 4,267,256
RILFTEIRE E Deferred income tax assets 356,104 391,539

13,361,482 14,701,750

R EEE A R/A T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢  Annual Report 2022 3R
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Wik K 3 BBE R (48) 5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

b) HEFEHNAMZEE (b) Liabilities related to contracts with customers
AEBBHBTIHERGHNHR The Group has recognised the following liabilities related
Zz8afE: to contracts with customers:

2022 2021

ARETFT ARB¥TT

RMB’000 RMB’000

aHaE - g Contract liabilities — Beverages 1,459,608 1,888,504
EHEE-BR Contract liabilities — Food 765,661 1,220,514
aHNaE -  Hith Contract liabilities — Others 32,567 124,026

2,257,836 3,233,044

() BHEEBEZEXEE (i)  Significant changes in contract liabilities

2022F B EBV TS RN EE The decrease in contract liabilities in 2022 was due to the

EEIRE RN RIRRIEREGE early implementation of campaigns of Chinese New Year

EHESR - and the advanced preparation of products for traditional
channels.

“F—1 P EERARAF Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2022 3§ ,I 6/]
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5 WmkDEBER ()

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

b) BHEREHNBMAZEE (B (b) Liabilities related to contracts with customers
(Continued)
(i) BRAS#HEERER KT (i)  Revenue recognised in relation to contract
liabilities
TRITN SRR S AB AR The following table shows how much of the revenue
W RAEENSNBEERINE recognised in the current reporting period relates to
B UNRERBTFEERBITNELN carried-forward contract liabilities and how much relates
SEARAREEE to performance obligations that were satisfied in the prior
year.
2022 2021
AREBTT ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
SFAFEEHNBEEGRN Revenue recognised that was included
B in the contract liability balance
at the beginning of the year
it Beverages 1,888,504 1,387,816
B Food 1,220,514 1,021,763
HAth Others 124,026 17,090

(i) KETTEIBAIEIE

AERERRNAITNEES A
RERBHBEOEE  REASBMHR
EREESHOHBMRAS—FHUT -

3,233,044 2,426,669

(i) Unsatisfied performance obligations

The Group selected to choose a practical expedient and

omitted disclosure of remaining performance obligations
as all related contracts have a duration of one year or
less.

’] 62 R EEE A R/A T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢  Annual Report 2022 3R
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BREZEI D zHAX 6 EXPENSES BY NATURE

StAHERA  HERHIGHER
THAXREMA 2B

Expenses included in cost of goods sold, selling and marketing
expenses, administrative expenses and other expenses are

analysed as follows:

2022 2021
AR®BFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000

FrRREME ~ BEEMEL Raw materials, packaging materials,

SHERKEENER consumables and purchased
commodity used 17,637,668 15,222,818
Al fn 7 S E Changes in inventories of finished goods 123,168 (194,119)
SVELEER Manufacturing outsourcing expenses 66,824 68,700
RHRESER Promotion and advertising expenses 1,181,514 1,312,950
ETEMNMRY » SiEEFFH) Employee benefit expenses,

(F5E9) including directors’ emoluments (Note 9) 4,324,255 4,030,587
EBER Transportation expenses 1,361,176 1,062,350
ME - BE K& Depreciation of property,

SEITE (HEE14) plant and equipment (Note 14) 1,023,585 1,110,333
FREEEHN (ME15) Amortisation of right-of-use assets

(Note 15) 92,256 92,876
KREYEITE (MsE16) Depreciation of investment properties
(Note 16) 19,213 18,781
mEEEEHE (:E17) Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 17) 5,986 7,096
fEHREER Y Short-term rental expenses 68,639 72,788
TR ~ MER R City construction tax, property
HtR%E R tax and other tax surcharges 265,125 243,104
FEUEIRFEE Provision of inventories to net

Bl (MEE2t) realisable value (Note 21) 13,894 23,130
EWE Z R Provision for impairment of trade receivables

BEREE (HEE3.1(0) (Note 3.1(0)) 6,385 4,338
TZELEMEN & Auditors’ remunerations

- IZBARTS — Audit services 7,789 7,822
HAth Others 954,991 796,731
4B Total 27,152,468 23,880,285

H—¥EPEIEEER/A T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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HFF — 388 7 OTHER GAINS - NET
2022 2021
AREFTT AR®ETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BAFEFABTZNHE Gains on disposal of financial assets
EHEEZHE at FVPL 35,347 44,289
BATFEFAEBEDN Change in fair value of financial assets
THMEEZ A TEEH at FVPL 17,494 12,645
HECREEE TG F8 Gains on disposal of right-of-use
assets, net 1,000 16,316
HEYE - BMEKRKREZME > Gains on disposal of property,
FEE plant and equipment, net 3,211 6,735
Hh Others (2,755) (1,978)
54,297 78,007
Hnlg A 8 OTHER INCOME
2022 2021
AR®BFTT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BT 8D Government grants 93,696 102,972
TAEMHE ~ BEKREEUK Rental income from lease of property,
"EMEZHBEWA plant and equipment and
investment properties 142,475 140,277
FBEABRFS WA (M 5E33(a)) Consultation service income (Note 33(a)) 60,468 65,521
Hith Others 39,917 168,730
336,556 477,500

BT R B A 35 B T B % {8 3th 75 BURF IR
WP B EME FAEEERBA
5] 3 EL P 18 3 & 450K K 3 R P fF B RAAY
[Bl$R o % 5 BUAT 8 B B SR AR 1 > TR I
wANRBREMBASE -BRSEEN
fraEmRz TEA A AIFERD o

H— 1 EPEZEIRA R AT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

The income from government grants represented financial
support subsidy received from various local governments
in the PRC as rewards to the Group’s subsidiaries for their
contributions to the economy and development of the regions
in which the subsidiaries are located. Such government grants
were unconditional and with no future commitment to be
fulfilled. They were recognised within ‘other income’ in the
consolidated income statement.
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BETHEMNES  8EEEHM 9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES,

INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

2022 2021

ARETFT ARB®TT

RMB’000 RMB’000

TENFE Wages and salaries 3,160,220 3,024,304
i%ﬁiﬁ)i’zﬁfﬂ?iﬁ%ﬂ Pension and other social welfare

(EBBMHFRET &) (defined contribution plan) 652,155 580,923

EIE%&E%%E%U Staff quarters and housing benefit 224,471 198,625

HAEF Other benefits 287,409 226,735

4,324,255 4,030,587

HE2022F12B31HIEEEZAEH
hEReHMALEERSZ (20214F :
B B> HEFMENRWEE3sE@FE
Flz ot R e RERNESZN T HEG

The five individuals whose emoluments are the highest in the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 included two
(2021: two) directors, whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis presented in Note 35(a). The emoluments payable

=5 Q021F  =8) RE AT Z#H to the remaining three (2021: three) highest paid individuals
USRI during the year are as follows:
2022 2021
ARETFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
HEA& < (FRE28h - EEEL  Basic salaries, housing allowances,

REYF = other allowances and benefits in kind 2,599 2,893
TEAT Bonuses 2,210 2,777
BARE B Contribution to pension scheme 164 149

4,973 5,819
ANEX N
Number Number
#[E - In the band of:
1,500,001 I E 2,000,000/t  HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000

(FBERARYE1,238,176 TE (equivalent to RMB1,238,176 to

ANE#1,710,9007t) RMB1,710,900) 2 -
2,000,001 &% 2,500,000t  HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000

(FBERAR1,710,901 TE (equivalent to RMB1,710,901 to

ANER#2,138,6257T) RMB2,138,625) 1 3

H— P EIEEAEFR/A S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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10

11

166

REIA - 38

10 FINANCE INCOME - NET

2022 2021
AREBTFT ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AE WA Finance income
- BERIBITERZFIBIRA — Interest income on cash and banks 269,396 232,752
EEE=1 %N Finance costs
-fBEZAEMAZ — Interest expenses on borrowings (57,453) (30,415)
-HEaBEZNEMRX — Interest expenses on lease liabilities (3,627) (1,661)
- BRI (E518) F 58 — Net foreign exchange income/(losses) 150 (165)
(60,930) (32,241)
-BERBEEZER L — Amounts capitalized on qualifying assets 404 526
B HRE A Finance costs expensed (60,526) (31,715)
FBEUWA — F28 Finance income — net 208,870 201,037
FRiSHRAX 11 INCOME TAX EXPENSES
2022 2021
AREBTT ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BERPRIERRRESE Current income tax expenses 482,526 628,210
EIEFRS IS (MYEE19) Deferred income tax expenses (Note 19) 26,146 12,917
508,672 641,127

R EEE A R/A T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢  Annual Report 2022 3R
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11 FRSiAX (@)

R ARED 2FREM (TR
(=5 a))

RARERE » 727 B A BERL 2 09K B
NE B 25% (20214 1 25%) BY
TR AN 2EFR1SHR o

RIFFEES - ERAER KSMEE
3B B9 B4 3R [2011158 58 TRA 7L 7E A
B 78 26 K BE B BLRR A RE AR W R
IR @A - FAPE SR & A 1z
BRIAEBEAMZETHENEE
XEB NI REHEZE15%E
BIRE o AEBEH PEMBAE]
RIS &M M ESEES
HEH LR 15% BEREK o

HMFr1SM

FABREBEFAENERTEERS
HEAMMIAERRERAR
HIt > ARABEREHAFEES
PRISHR

EAEEMEB AT ERE
IR TR ZE20% (2021 & : 20%)
BARFR1STR ©

RIEFRFE B 6 E B ™M 4R 5 5 151
o REBEMBRIINB AT R
HE2022F12A31HILEEENE
—EBABTEIRIENRES
8.25% (20214 : 8.25%) ° F&rHY
BB~ BB BTN B g
12 16.5% (2021 £F © 16.5%) MR
LR o

H—¥EPEIEEER/A T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

11

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (CONTINUED)

(@)

(b)

Mainland China corporate income tax (“CIT”)

Subsidiaries established in Mainland China are subject to
CIT at rate of 25% (2021: 25%) during the year.

According to the Caishui (2011) No. 58 “The notice on
the tax policies of further implementation of the western
region development strategy issued by the Ministry of
Finance, the State Administration of Taxation and the
General Administration of Customs” (84 #2[2011]58 9%
“BERO RN BT 7 BB K B B B IR B RATR W R R ARV i@
H1"), companies set up in the western region and falling
into certain encouraged industry catalogue promulgated
by the PRC government will be entitled to a preferential
tax rate of 15%. Some of the Group’s subsidiaries in
the PRC set up in the western development region are
entitled to the above mentioned preferential tax rate of
15% during the year.

Other income tax

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law of Cayman Islands and, accordingly, is
exempted from payment of Cayman Islands income tax.

Subsidiaries incorporated in Taiwan are subject to
income tax at the prevailing rates of 20% (2021: 20%).

Pursuant to the enactment of two-tiered profit tax rates
by the Inland Revenue Department, the first HK$2 million
of assessable profits of subsidiaries incorporated in Hong
Kong is subject to a tax rate of 8.25% during the year
ended 31 December 2022 (2021: 8.25%). The remaining
assessable profits above HK$2 million will continue to be
subject to a tax rate of 16.5% (2021: 16.5%).

*  Annual Report 2022 £k
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11 FriSMF ()
(b) HthFRiSH (&)
7R B R RS R AT R B i P

BREaHSEEN 2 EAERE25%
(20214 :25%) stHE 2 Eminia

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)
(b) Other income tax (Continued)
The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax

differs from the theoretical amount that would arise
using the statutory tax rate in the PRC of 25% (2021:

EZREUT 25%) applicable to profits of the consolidated entities as
follows:
2022 2021
AR®FTT AREKTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FRPF 1SR Al A Profit before income tax 1,730,829 2,141,842
BPBEEEMERAE ZMIE  Tax calculated at the statutory tax rate
in the PRC 432,707 535,461
TIBBZRBERE . Tax effects of:
BRIETWE A &R Preferential tax rates on the profits
ZEBERX of certain subsidiaries (36,817) (46,125)
RERELFEREE Tax losses for which no deferred
Z ARS8 income tax asset was recognized 52,278 73,742
TBERESDZMIEEIE  Recognition of previously unrecognized
e Eofh B B 4 = B2 tax losses and other temporary
differences (6,031) (40,844)
BERRBA Income not subject to tax (6,535) (8,742)
ENGIE RE Expenses not deductible
for tax purpose 19,533 22,865
IREERASZ INETI00R Additional deduction of research and
development expenses (17,943) (9,830)
Fr [ B A Bl R BB E A Withholding tax on profits retained
s =Eink) by PRC subsidiaries 71,480 114,600
FriSiRREs Income tax expense 508,672 641,127
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11 FrfefiEZ (8) 11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)
(b) EAFRFR (&) (b) Other income tax (Continued)

EREMEEWE D Z SR

The income tax charge relating to components of other

U comprehensive income is as follows:
2022 2021
MR RESW itk Bigan  MESW ik
Before tax Tax charge Aftertax ~ Beforetax ~ Taxcharge After tax
AREFT ARETR AREFR ARETT ARETT ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
HEitzEKa Other comprehensive
income:
-BATERA - Fair value gains on
HEt2ERE financial assets
ZEMEEZ at fair value through
ATERE other comprehensive
BRI income, net of tax - - - 23 - 23
- EBREMNEE - Actuarial gains on
HEEHNE defined benefit plans 1,578 (316) 1,262 429 (86) 343
iksiEa Income tax expense

(316) (86)
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12 8kEF 12 EARNINGS PER SHARE
XK Basic
BREABNILEFEARD TR Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
ANEEREFBRUE E TS ERINEF attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted
BIEtE o average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.
2022 2021
AREBFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RN ERITE AELRT Profit attributable to equity holders
(NR¥FT) of the Company (RMB’000) 1,222,157 1,500,715
BEITEIBERINEFIE Weighted average number of ordinary
(FE) shares in issue (thousands) 4,319,334 4,319,334

BREARN (SRARES Basic earnings per share (RMB per share)  28.304% cents 34.74 %) cents

HRAABIEBEHETIER e Diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings per
K EaRTEEgREARF—H share as there are no potential dilutive ordinary shares of the
Company.
13 K2 13 DIVIDENDS
2022 2021
ARBTRT AREBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000

BEBERNERARESRZER Proposed final dividend of
AN ER#£33.95% RMB33.95 cents
(2021 : AR 41.69%) (2021: RMB41.69 cents)
per ordinary share 1,466,588 1,800,859

R2022 F R 2021 F » AT TLEL 2 The dividends paid by the Company in 2022 and 2021 for
2021 2020 12831 HIEEE B K the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 amounted to
BBEDR A ARE1,807,367,000 5 & A RMB1,807,367,000 and RMB1,622,313,000 respectively.

R #1,622,313,000 7T ©

EEEN20023FE3H88HE T EESE A dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2022

THELFEFIKERE2022F12H31H of RMB33.95 cents per share, amounting to a total dividend
ITFEERBREESRARKIZGD (5H of RMB1,466,588,000 was proposed by the directors on the
G B2 A A\ RiK1,466,588,0007T) » I & board of directors meeting held on 8 March 2023 and is to be
R2023F6 B2HA T REBERE proposed for approval at the annual general meeting to be held
FREUGFHE LEMBREFIER on 2 June 2023. These financial statements do not reflect this
BRIEZEEMARE © dividend payable.
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14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

EHTIA-
HER Hitik g
18¥ TIh&E REE TEIR &t
Vehicles,
Machinery other
and factory equipment  Construction
Buildings equipment and fixtures in progress Total
ARBFRT AREBFT AEEBFT AREBFT AEEBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
®2021E1818 At 1 January 2021
B Cost 7,454,267 7,660,853 3,038,716 211,773 18,865,609
REHNE Accumulated depreciation (2,598,691) (5,326,540) (2,962,670) - (10,887,901)
REORERE Accumulated impairment provision - (263) - - (263)
REFE Net book amount 4,855,576 2,334,050 576,046 211,773 7,977,445
#Z202112831HLLEE Year ended 31 December 2021
FENEREFE Opening net book amount 4,855,576 2,334,050 576,046 211,773 7,977,445
HE Additions 12,377 33,246 102,276 247,006 394,905
TTREA Transfer upon completion 78,764 140,358 85,004 (304,126) -
i Disposals (2,278) (1,296) (1,887) - (5,461)
& (izE6) Depreciation (Note 6) (326,297) (577,586) (206,450) - (1,110,333)
FRIREFE Closing net book amount 4,618,142 1,928,772 554,989 154,653 7,256,556
20215128310 At 31 December 2021
B Cost 7,543,130 7,833,161 3,724,109 154,653 19,255,053
REHNE Accumulated depreciation (2,924,988) (5,904,126) (3,169,120) - (11,998,234)
RERERE Accumulated impairment provision - (263) - - (263)
REFE Net book amount 4,618,142 1,928,772 554,989 154,653 7,256,556
#Z2022F 12831 HLLEE Year ended 31 December 2022
FRETE Opening net book amount 4,618,142 1,928,772 554,989 154,653 7,256,556
HE Additions 5,632 79,003 174,977 175,476 435,088
TR A Transfer upon completion 90,027 143,658 12,223 (245,908) -
i Disposals (341) (1,591) (3,439) - (5,3M)
178 (Hf36) Depreciation (Note 6) (320,002) (521,000) (182,583) - (1,023585)
FRIREFE Closing net book amount 4,393,458 1,628,842 556,167 84,221 6,662,688
R2022%E12831H At 31 December 2022
DTN Cost 7,638,448 8,054,231 3,907,870 84,221 19,684,770
REHNE Accumulated depreciation (3,244,990) (6,425,126) (3,351,703) - (18,021,819)
RERERE Accumulated impairment provision - (263) - - (263)
IREZHE Net book amount 4,393,458 1,628,842 556,167 84,221 6,662,688

H—¥EPEIEEER/A T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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14 Y% - BERRE (B) 14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

TEERDBFSBmKNBRAOT . Depreciation expenses have been charged to the consolidated
income statement as follows:

2022 2021
AREFT ARBTx

RMB’000 RMB’000

THE A Cost of goods sold 764,610 780,615
HERTIGERERMS Selling and marketing expenses 141,943 199,111
TR Administrative expenses 117,032 130,607

1,023,585 1,110,333

KAEFBZEFE2IMPAEH o The Group's buildings are all located in the PRC.

R 0022 F & 202112 831 B i E K 18 There are no pledge of property, plant and equipment as at 31
FEE - RE&EE o December 2022 and 2021.
REXREREETFEFHEEZEHSKALY Rental income amounting to approximately RMB64.7 million
A R#64,700,00075 (20214 : A R#E (2021: RMB62.9 million) derived from lease of certain buildings
62,000,0007T) Bt AGaiBmxlH of the Group is included in ‘other income’ in the consolidated
g A (BIEE8) income statement (Note 8).

FR > AEFEDESERBREENEE During the year, the Group has capitalised borrowing costs
N AN R#404,0005T (2021 @ AR amounting to RMB404,000 (2021: RMB526,000) on qualifying
526,0007T) BRE KR o BB AL IRE assets. Borrowing costs were capitalised at the weighted
— IR EE IR T E R = 3.20% (2021 average rate of its general borrowings of 3.29% (2021: 3.48%)
£ 1 3.48%) BIREA o per annum.
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REERRTRERZEER

15 LEASES (INCLUDING LAND USE RIGHTS)

() Amounts recognised in the balance sheet

2022 2021
ARETFT AR®TT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FREEE Right-of-use assets
LY ES Properties 105,026 43,830
T ARRE Land use rights 1,597,069 1,647,338
1,702,095 1,691,168
HE&E Lease liabilities
S Properties
— BNEF — Current 26,090 19,675
— JERNHEA — Non-current 75,650 17,744
101,740 37,419

R2022 F 2021 FE 7 (F L E
BEDOMFAOT -

Movements in right-of-use assets in 2022 and 2021 are
analysed as follows:

ERERE
Right-of-use assets
2022 2021
mE  IEmE st mE  THERE st
Land use Land use
Properties rights Total Properties rights Total
ARETFT ARBTR ARBTR ARETT ARETr ARET:
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
®1E1H At 1 January 43,830 1,647,338 1,691,168 49,210 1,710,008 1,759,218
NE Additions 104,817 - 104,817 37,352 - 37,352
HE Disposals (1,634) - (1,634) (282) (11,240) (11,522)
DEAREHENEE  Assets classiied as held for sale - - - - (1,004) (1,004)
BT (H3t6) Amortisation charges (Note 6) (41,987) (50,269) (92,256) (42,450) (50,426) (92,876)
®12A31H At 31 December 105,026 1,597,069 1,702,095 43,830 1,647,338 1,691,168

H—¥EPEIEEER/A T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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15 THE (BiFLtERE) (B 15 LEASES (INCLUDING LAND USE RIGHTS)

(CONTINUED)
(i) MIEZRERZERE (i) Amounts recognised in the income statement
2022 2021
Mg LERE Az WE  IHERE Bt
Land use Land use
Properties rights Total Properties rights Total

AREFRT ARETR ARBTR ARETT ARETR ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Hi57 H (i5E6) Amortisation charges (Note 6)
HEMA Cost of goods sold 1,574 29,710 31,284 2,016 26,628 28,644
HERTEAREES Selling and marketing expenses 33,973 3,811 37,784 34,148 3,715 37,863
B Administrative expenses 6,440 16,748 23,188 6,286 20,083 26,369
41,987 50,269 92,256 42,450 50,426 92,876

FISBT GIAMEMZ)  Interest expense (included in

(ft5E10) finance cost) (Note 10) 3,627 1,661
JEEATAERIS (f5E6)  Short-term rental expenses (Note 6) 68,639 72,788
Barilbriasa Total charges to income statement 164,522 167,325
R2022FE 2 HHERES ML BES The total cash outflow for leases in 2022 was
AR #107,462,00075 (2021 4 . RMB107,462,000 (2021: RMB117,749,000).

AR117,749,0007T) ©

/] 74 R EEE A R/A T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢  Annual Report 2022 3R



G M 75 R M 5E

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2022%F 12831 HIEEE  For the year ended 31 December 2022

15 HE (BFtERE) (@)

(iii)

(iv)

FrEBZHEE RS RERES
ZARRGR

AERZ T MERREHIIEETH
AT o IESh  ZEEBEEZERA
ERBE - HY—RUBEHR=
BRE+FIIL > WRJEREWT
X (iv) P it SE HR SR SR 4 o

HERZENERES  TEa&
AR RMRR R AR o BRETEARTA
ZHEBETRIER B HE
oh sk A INAE R PR - ETEEE
ETSREEERIER -

JEHA R 4% 1F R 2 A

FEENETYERRBEEES
IERRA R A% \E BEAEAE © R FEARRRTD
KREEGHNSKEREERK
B o PR A HIARE DRI R 48 LEIE
EREJHFERTE  ENEH
BRARBEAITE-

H—¥EPEIEEER/A T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

15 LEASES (INCLUDING LAND USE RIGHTS)
(CONTINUED)

(iii)

(iv)

The Group’s leasing activities and how they are
accounted for

The Group’s land use rights are all fully prepaid.
In addition, the Group leases various offices and
warehouses. Rental contracts are typically made for
fixed periods of three months to ten years, but may have
extension options as described in (iv) below.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants
other than the security interests in the leased assets that
are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used
as security for borrowing purposes.

Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in a
number of property and equipment leases across the
Group. These terms are used to maximise operational
flexibility in terms of managing contracts. The majority of
extension and termination options held are exercisable
only by the Group and not by the respective lessor.

* Annual Report 2022 £4R
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16 REWE

176

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

2022 2021
ARETRT ARETT

RMB’000 RMB’000

P1B1H At 1 January 275,630 294,411
e (MI5t6) Depreciation (Note 6) (19,213) (18,781)
»12B831H At 31 December 256,417 275,630
#12 B 31 BRI A AS Cost as at 31 December 494,296 494,296
Retine Accumulated depreciation (237,879) (218,666)
12831 H At 31 December 256,417 275,630

REVMEUNRDPEN LB IHFE T
NEBERERS > WEREHRR40FM50
FRLM L o

AERREYEZINECSH AGEET
ROV THEAMFS o

The investment properties are located in Shanghai, Jiangsu,
Sichuan and Guangdong Province of the PRC and erected on
land with lease periods of 40 and 50 years.

Depreciation of the Group’s investment properties has been
charged to ‘other expenses’ in the consolidated income
statement.

2022 2021
ARETRT AREBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
HEWA Rental income 77,766 77,398
REELEHESWAZYEZ Direct operating expenses from property
BEEEERE that generated rental income (16,119) (17,762)
61,647 59,636
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16 REWE (@)

HE % HF

REMEDRENESABAEEZE
EHRERMEAHEL -

BEAEEEY B AHEE AR 2R
BEZFHEARL  ELEE-—RGTILN
KerHs At ERREFEE/MEE
AL R Z AR EER D - BRAREK
FFBEZFEARBENEZ ATEET

ERREYEREERREBESMR
15 B2 REMIEES2 ©

REMEZ AFEHIIOT -

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Leasing arrangements

The investment properties are leased to tenants under
operating leases with rentals payable monthly.

Although the Group is exposed to changes in the residual value
at the end of the current leases, the Group typically enters into
new operating leases and therefore will not immediately realise
any reduction in residual value at the end of these leases.
Expectations about the future residual values are reflected in
the fair value of the properties.

For minimum lease payments receivable on leases of
investment properties, refer to Note 32.

The fair values of the investment properties are set out as
follows:

2022 2021

AREBFRT AREBTT

RMB’000 RMB’000

NEE Fair value 754,117 755,402

FR2022 F K72021 512 831 HZ A&
ThEIRE L E AR A B R 8 A BUE
(53E) AR EET 2RI RTER
EBEITFMLERE ©

Ui— 1 R EEE AR E Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢  Annual Report 2022 4R
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determined by management’s self-assessment using
discounted cash flow projection based on significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3).
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16 KREWE (8) 16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)
HEZH (&) Leasing arrangements (Continued)

ERERTIBREHARNE (F38) &
TZRATEAENERFETIWT :

Information about fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3) is set out below:

1738

AR A SR
Unobservable inputs
20224
12831H
NE A/ fE BLIREE
Fair value at
31 December
Description 2022 Rental value Discount rate
AREFT AR®FT
(RMB’000) (RMB’000)
B EA 57,510 59,093 10%
Plant A 9,093 per annum
B EB 98,407 416,658 10%
Plant B 16,658 per annum
BB C 33,001 558,638 10%
Plant C 8,638 per annum
BED 73,331 412,309 10%
Plant D 12,309 per annum
RN 484,946 530,637 10%
Office building 30,637 per annum
5 6,832 F5432 10%
Shops 432 per annum

H— 1 EPEZEIRA R AT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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16 KREWZE (8) 16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

HEZH (8) Leasing arrangements (Continued)
eI &= & A Bli5
Unobservable inputs
20214
12831H
S ZATE H1E ARIR =
Fair value at
31 December
Description 2021 Rental value Discount rate
AREETTT AREEFTT
(RMB’000) (RMB’000)
= A 59,404 49,666 10%
Plant A 9,666 per annum
& = B 100,314 $16,828 10%
Plant B 16,828 per annum
M &EC 36,400 459,430 10%
Plant C 9,430 per annum
& F5 D 73,331 S512,309 10%
Plant D 12,309 per annum
EIEYNES 461,032 §£29,126 10%
Office building 29,126 per annum
JE & 24,921 S£1,574 10%
Shops 1,574 per annum

F—1 ¥R EERAR AT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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BZE2022F 12331 HIEEE  For the year ended 31 December 2022

17 BEFEE

17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

EREER
Computer
software
ARBTT
RMB’000
2021 FE181H At 1 January 2021
B A Cost 110,548
Retis Accumulated amortisation (101,792
ERMEFER Net book amount 8,756
HZE2021F12831HILEEE Year ended 31 December 2021
FAEREFER Opening net book amount 8,756
hE Additions 5,042
K (g5 e) Amortisation (Note 6) (7,096)
FRIREFER Closing net book amount 6,702
20214128 31H At 31 December 2021
%N Cost 115,590
Rt Accumulated amortisation (108,888)
ERMEEER Net book amount 6,702
#ZE2022F 12831 HILFE Year ended 31 December 2022
FHREFEE Opening net book amount 6,702
RE Additions 5,971
i (fyzte) Amortisation (Note 6) (5,986)
FRRMEFEE Closing net book amount 6,687
20224 12831H At 31 December 2022
PR AR Cost 121,561
Rt Accumulated amortisation (114,874)
ERMEEER Net book amount 6,687

’] 8O fi— R EEE A PR/ F] Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. «  Annual Report 2022 3§
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HZE2022F 12831 HIEEE  For the year ended 31 December 2022

17 BEREE (8)

BISE G 2 EE DR A TR &
MHERTIBEERY  «EIOA
R 15,336,000 7T & A R 650,000 7T
(20214 : A R184,559,00070 % A RIE
2,537,0007T) °

18 UKD ZEZARNEKEE

HEESEREDVEENT

17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The amortisation of computer software has been charged
to ‘administrative expenses’ and ‘selling and marketing
expenses’ at the amounts of approximately RMB5,336,000
and RMB650,000 (2021: RMB4,559,000 and RMB2,537,000),
respectively.

18 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:

2022 2021

AREFTT ARETT

RMB’000 RMB’000

R—REBE AR 2 #EH () Interests in an associate (a) 424,899 385,938
RNEErE#ER D) Interests in joint ventures (b) 392,830 426,961
817,729 812,899

R2022%F 128381 H » KEBRMFTFE K
EREREGELERAERMSLAE
B KEBZRMDELAESRE EAER
N E R REELENGEERRE
)W

All the associate and the joint ventures of the Group as at 31
December 2022 are not significant to the Group. The amounts
recognised in the consolidated income statement of the
Group’s associate and joint ventures, attributable to the shares
of the Group and in aggregate, are as follows:

2022 2021

AREFTT ARETT

RMB’000 RMB’000

[E{L B E A BET (a) Share of profit of the associate (a) 42,160 17,905
FE{L & E 2R FFEE () Share of net of profits of joint ventures (b) (16,018) 17,065
HE12B31HLLEEE For the year ended 31 December 26,142 34,970

F—1 ¥R EERAR AT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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18 Lz EARNKZE (8)

(@

(b)

182

18 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)
N—EME Tz (@) Interests in an associate
R—EBE AR 2 Em 2 EET The movements in interests in an associate are as
follows:

2022 2021

ARBTT AREBFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

R1B1H At 1 January 385,938 371,232
P& Share of profit 42,160 17,905
BWKE Dividends received (3,199) (3,199
R12H831H At 31 December 424,899 385,938

REBDEI RS (b) Interests in joint ventures
R PETHEZEENIT @ The movements in interests in joint ventures are as
follows:

2022 2021

ARETT AREBTT

RMB’000 RMB’000

R1A18 At 1 January 426,961 422,370

FE(E A3 ER Share of net profits (16,018) 17,085
B S Dividend received (18,095) (12,474)

KERD Decrease in investments (18) -

B12831H At 31 December 392,830 426,961

H— 1 EPEZEIRA R AT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated FinanC|aI Statements
HZE2022F 12831 HIEEE  For the year ended 31 December 2022

Emn A ABRKIRE (18) 18 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)
RESEhEZ#EE (@) (b) Interests in joint ventures (Continued)
ERIAEBIRBEZEFIENAS The Group accounts the particulars as joint ventures after
SRR E S (i FEME B R ) taking into consideration that the Group jointly controls
ZEHER  AEERZEFBEA not solo controls the particulars in accordance with the
BERE articles of association of the particulars.
R2022F 12531 H AEBMEE The particulars of the Group’s joint ventures as at 31
trE(EFLEIREITEUER December 2022, all of which are unlisted and accounted
EBIER) ZEEIEESIMT - for using equity method, are set out as follows:
EMBIER/
ARER HERAH BRER FEBELRE TERH REME
Country/place
and date of Paid-up Equity interest
Company name incorporation capital attributable to the Group Principal activities Carrying amount
2022 2021 2022 2021
ENIXERERAXREEE FEIERM AEE 50% 50% REEEREMRS AR% AEE
ARAE (ERAXREER)) 2008575188 1,000,0007% 35240007 3,383,0007C
HBNIXARERAIREER Suzhou, PRC, RMB Investment management RMB RMB
& [R/2 8] (United Advisor Venture 18 July 2008 1,000,000 and advisory services 3,524,000 3,383,000
Management Co., Ltd. *) (‘United
Advisor Venture Management’)
EMRFONIEERAT FE 19,060,000 42% 2% LEZEMH 9EKR N N
(Mt &) 200975248 EST BR - RRIEE 53,506,0007  53,506,0007C
EREZRIN IEERAT Guilin, PRC, UsD Production of various types RMB RVB
(Guilin Ziquan Beverage Industries 24 July 2009 19,060,000 of beverage including fruit, 53,506,000 53,506,000
Co., Ltd. ) (“Guilin Ziquan”) vegetable, tea and coffee etc.
Greater China F8B Capital Partners Ltd, BEEE 10,7007 50% 50% REEE AR% N
(TGreater China F&B1) 200848168 2,749,000 7T 3,112,0007¢
Greater China F&B Capital Partners Ltd.  Cayman Islands, USD 10,700 Investment management RMB RMB
(“Greater China F&B”) 16 April 2008 2,749,000 3,112,000
RERIG-C¥BRAT HERE AEE 50% 50% SEREEEER AR% AEE
(HERT)) 2011F75298 232,000,007 140,632,0007%  144,374,0007
REXIG—CEERAT Wuhan, PRC, RVB Production of various types RMB RVB
(Wuhan Zijiang President Enterprises 29 July 2011 232,000,000 of plastic products 140,632,000 144,374,000

Co., Ltd.’) (‘Wuhan Zijang’)

F—1 ¥R EERAR AT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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A5 L 3 L=
18 LUz EARNKRE (@) 18 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)
(b) MRESREZH#EZE (B (b) Interests in joint ventures (Continued)
AMEIER/
GEL AR AL BHREX FEMRERE TERH REE
Country/place
and date of Paid-up Equity interest
Company name incorporation capital attributable to the Group Principal activities Carrying amount
2022 2021 2022 2021
SMS Capital Co., Ltd. (TSMSCC)) HEEE 500,000% 7T - 50% REEE AEH AR
2012F118288 - 160,0007%
SMS Capital Co., Ltd. (‘SMSCC”) Cayman Islands, usb Investment management RMB RMB
28 November 2012 500,000 - 160,000
SMS Investment Management Co., Ltd. B2 500,000%7 50% 50% REEE AR% AR®
(TSMS Investment Management) 20131820 1,235,007 1,331,007
SMS Investment Management Co., Ltd. ~ Cayman Islands, usb Investment management RMB RMB
(“SMS Investment Management”) 2 January 2013 500,000 1,235,000 1,331,000
ERRDAIERELE FEEMN ARE 47.85% 4780% REEER N N3
(E3320) 2009445138 426,500,0007% 150,270,000t 180,181,0007C
ERARAIERELE ChinaF8B  Suzhou, PRC, RMB Investment management RMB RVB
Venture Investments’) (‘China F&B”) 13 April 2009 426,500,000 150,270,000 180,181,000
BELRYHIEERAT HEES 19,000000% 7 35% 3% LERBERK N N
2013475238 40,914,000 7T 40,914,00075
HELARMHIEERAR Yichang, PRC, UsD Manufacturing and sale RMB RVB
(Ziquan Beverage industries 23 July 2013 19,000,000 of beverages 40,914,000 40,914,000
Co., Ltd)
SMS Gonsumer Fund LP. HEHRS 14,720,000 %7 - 2B44% REEE N N
("SMSfund)) 0125125188 - -
SMS Consumer Fund L.P. Cayman Islands, ush Investment management RMB RMB
(“SMSfund”) 18 December 2012 14,720,000 - -
* BYEBILIAANTIEEER IR * The English name represents the best effort by
P ZBEIEEY management of the Company in translating the Chinese
name.
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HZE2022F 12831 HIEEE  For the year ended 31 December 2022

18 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)

(b) Interests in joint ventures (Continued)

A summary of the financial information of the major jointly

ZHBERE controlled entities of the Group is set out below:
EE R China F&B
2022 2021
ARETRT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EEBBEREE . Summary of balance sheet:
ERENEE Non-current assets 278,013 346,559
MENEE Current assets 23,284 25,672
BEE Total assets 301,297 372,231
el =K = Non-current liabilities - -
VIE=NE Current liabilities (236) (156)
waE Total liabilities (236) (156)
FEE Net assets 301,533 372,387
KEEDEHZADLE The Group’s % share 47.85% 47.85%
TERDE The Group’s share 150,270 180,181
2EBERFBE ! Summary of comprehensive income:
Yz Revenue - -
FE (518) 5 h (Loss)/profit for the year (62,510) 22,182
RER DL The Group’s share (29,911) 10,614

F—1 ¥R EERAR AT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

*  Annual Report 2022 4R

185



o A
Rk 3

RAF5 SR R MY 5

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BZE2022F 12331 HIEEE  For the year ended 31 December 2022

18 Lz EARNKZE (8)

186

(b)

REeEEEEZED (B

18 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)

(b) Interests in joint ventures (Continued)

EEET Wuhan Zijiang
2022 2021
AREFT AREBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EESBERBE: Summary of balance sheet:
ERIMEE Non-current assets 44,392 48,285
TENE Current assets 314,157 302,125
WEE Total assets 358,549 350,410
JERENEE Non-current liabilities - -
mEna A Current liabilities 71,736 61,662
mem’ Total liabilities 71,736 61,662
REE Net assets 286,813 288,748
TEEDHZEDLE The Group’s % share 50% 50%
KEE D The Group’s share 140,632 144,374
PEWN@EFRBE . Summary of comprehensive income:
& Revenue 315,574 251,648
FEHN Profit for the year 28,705 27,165
REE DG The Group’s share 14,353 13,583

H— 1 EPEZEIRA R AT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

*  Annual Report 2022 3R



| | BAMEEEME
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2022%F 12831 HIEEE  For the year ended 31 December 2022

19 IRIEFR{FIR 19 DEFERRED INCOME TAX
EEPSREENRELEMMEREED M The analysis of deferred income tax assets and deferred
(I income tax liabilities is as follows:

2022 2021
ARETT AEB®TT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RIEFTISME E Deferred income tax assets
— #1288 AWEZ — Deferred income tax assets to be
EEPRSIMEE recovered within 12 months 240,750 228,469
— B 12@EArIEEZ — Deferred income tax assets to be
FEIEFTEMEE recovered after more than 12 months 161,354 199,070
FIEFTIS MM EEARE Total deferred income tax assets 402,104 427,539
B IRHIEEPRERAas Less: Set-off of deferred income tax liabilities (46,000) (36,000)
IRILFTSIRNEE » J$%8 Deferred income tax assets, net 356,104 391,539
IRIEFFEMEE Deferred income tax liabilities
—BR12@EBRNEEZ — Deferred income tax liabilities to be
EEFTISI AR settled within 12 months 6,217 6,227
— BRBB12EBREE — Deferred income tax liabilities to be
RIEFTSMEs settled after more than 12 months 361,831 360,794
IRILFRE IR B ([E4EE Total deferred income tax liabilities 368,048 367,021
BRI BB E Less: Set-off of deferred income tax assets (46,000) (36,000)
EIEPRISIRE(R > 350 Deferred income tax liabilities, net 322,048 331,021

fi— > 2 hE2IR A IR/AF) Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.  Annual Report 2022 4§ 18/



= SRFEIRARMEE -
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BZE2022F 12331 HIEEE  For the year ended 31 December 2022

19 EIEFRSIR (48)

183

RIEPRSIBRE 2 ZFWT ¢

19 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

The movements in the deferred income tax accounts are as
follows:

2022 2021
AR®BFTT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R1B1H At 1 January 60,518 73,521
REMEEmW R (MF5E11)  Charged to other comprehensive income
(Note 11) (316) (86)
RiFraEm&NkE FPsE11) Charged to the consolidated income
statement (Note 11) (26,146) (12,917)
BR12831H At 31 December 34,056 60,518

FRRLEFMBREERBENES (K
stRE IR ERERR Z I T

The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
during the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting
of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:

IEIEFRISIE E Deferred income tax assets
RYERMR Y% BE RIE
FREAGERE RRENE FEE R BiafE st
Impairment
provision of
accounts Depreciation
receivables  of property,
and plant and Accrued Tax loss
inventories equipment expenses benefit Total
AREFT ARETR AR®ETrT ARETT ARETH
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
R2021E151H At 1 January 2021 7,766 19,673 193,830 150,248 371,617
REEEBRERTA Credited to the consolidated
income statements 4142 392 1,595 49,893 56,022
12021128311 At 31 December 2021 11,908 20,065 195,425 200,141 427,539
RixdEER Credited/(charged) to the
A (0B%) consolidated income statements 1,207 2,116 7,142 (35,900) (25,435)
120225128318 At 31 December 2022 13,115 22,181 202,567 164,241 402,104

H— 1 EPEZEIRA R AT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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19 IRIEFRIGIR (48) 19 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

IRIEPRISHEE Deferred income tax liabilities
REME =02
BN 3y nE BRE  EREEN st
Accelerated Capitalization Post-
Withholding Business  depreciation of borrowing  employment
tax combination of equipment costs benefits Total
ARETT ARETR AREFTRT ARETR ARETx ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R2021E1R1H At 1 January 2021 110,664 112,539 63,839 10,954 - 297,996
REMZENER Charged to other comprehensive
k& income - - - - 86 86
Ri&aBEE Charged/(credited) to the
nes/GtA) consolidated income statements 28,500 (4,184) 46,666 (2,049) - 68,939
1?2021 E12B31H At 31 December 2021 139,164 108,355 110,505 8,911 86 367,021
PREMEZERER Charged to other comprehensive
10k income - - - - 316 316
RaGBR% (Credited)/charged to the
(5t A) /1 consolidated income statements (25,520) (4,185) 32,448 (2,032) - 71
R2022E 128310 At 31 December 2022 113,644 104,170 142,953 6,879 402 368,048

FIEFS R EEEAERAUEEBRKE
FRENEBREFAREN DR EE 2
TRIBE 18 T LARESD o A& B R §L 2022
F12B3NHABLUIKHEHBERRU
AZRIBEEELN AR 910,604,000 7T
(20214 : A R #5640,884,0007T) 52
FIEFTISME EA A R 227,651,000
7t (20214 : AR %160,221,0007T) °©
R2023F A FREFEmBIIR
BoR& A AR 108,216,0007T ~ A
R #93,813,0007T ~ A R 226,237,000
T ARME273,226,000 7T & A R &
209,112,000 7% °

202212831 H » Wkt ETH B
NEREZ (G ZRELZBFMFEINRE
IRILPFREM 8 E AR 120,413,000
(20214 : A R#131,167,0007T) © 75
EEEEEEERN Y BRKERLZ
ERAF o R2022F12FE31H > ZE
ERIRFEHEA ARE 20 T (2021 4 :
ARIE221ETT) ©

4i— > R EZ=I8 A FRAAF] Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. » Annual Report 2022 45 189

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carried forward to the extent that the realisation of the related
tax benefit through the future taxable profits is probable.
The Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets of
approximately RMB227,651,000 (2021: RMB160,221,000)
in respect of tax losses amounting to approximately
RMB910,604,000 (2021: RMB640,884,000) as at 31
December 2022 that can be carried forward against future
taxable income. Tax losses amounting to approximately
RMB108,216,000, RMB93,813,000, RMB226,237,000,
RMB273,226,000 and RMB209,112,000 will expire in each of
the five years starting from 2023.

As at 31 December 2022, deferred income tax liabilities of
RMB120,413,000 (2021: RMB131,167,000) have not been
recognized for the withholding tax that would otherwise be
payable on the unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries.
The management of the Group currently has no intention to
remit those earnings in the foreseeable future. Such unremitted
earnings totalled RMB2.0 billion (2021: RMB2.2 billion) as at 31
December 2022.
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20 #EENEIDERITE 20 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
BATE
BN R A HAEH st
Amortised
cost FVPL Total

RABEBBRFAITHNEE Assets as per consolidated
balance sheet

202212831 H As at 31 December 2022
TR AT EMSRIEB E Financial assets at amortised cost
FEW B 5 AR R T Trade and bills receivables (Note 22)

(FF5E22) 819,877 - 819,877
HAnEWGERIE (Mi5E23) Other receivables (Note 23) 617,148 - 617,148
RE KR4S (95E25)  Cash and bank balances (Note 25) 3,122,038 - 3,122,038
REEHEFER (f5E25) Long-term time deposits (Note 25) 3,532,170 - 3,532,170
BATESABRN Financial assets at FVPL (Note 24)

SRS E (H5E24) - 1,018,521 1,018,521
st Total 8,091,233 1,018,521 9,109,754
202112831 H As at 31 December 2021
IR AT EMSRB E Financial assets at amortised cost
FEUN B 7 R R Z2 4 Trade and bills receivables (Note 22)

(Mfzx22) 648,531 - 648,531
HAhpEUWRIE (M5 23) Other receivables (Note 23) 481,204 - 481,204
B KEIT4ER (fi5E25)  Cash and bank balances (Note 25) 2,128,271 - 2,128,271
REEBAER (i5E25) Long-term time deposits (Note 25) 3,950,000 - 3,950,000
BAFEFTAEEZN Financial assets at FVPL (Note 24)

EMEE (W5E24) - 1,715,448 1,715,448
4ast Total 7,208,006 1,715,448 8,023,454
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20 BN ERMIA (8) 20 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(CONTINUED)

H{thig i H
FRASE 2/
ERARE
Other financial
liabilities
measured at
amortised cost

FeEEARRITHER
R2022%F 12831 H

Liabilities as per consolidated balance sheet

As at 31 December 2022

FE(S B 5 8RN (FiE28) Trade payables (Note 28) 2,675,047
HES® (M:E15) Lease liabilities (Note 15) 101,740
HinE N RIERETE A Other payables and accruals

(FaiEFEEman) (excluding non-financial liabilities) 1,532,092
&5 (5 30) Borrowings (Note 30) 767,756
HtREEA A (fi5E29) Other long-term payables (Note 29) 278,591
M5t Total 5,355,226
22021512831 H As at 31 December 2021
FE(S B 5 8RN (FiE28) Trade payables (Note 28) 2,118,048
HES® (15 Lease liabilities (Note 15) 37,419
Hn B R IE R ETE A Other payables and accruals

(FEiEEEmas) (excluding non-financial liabilities) 1,510,290
&5 (5 30) Borrowings (Note 30) 112,300
Ht REEA A (fi5E29) Other long-term payables (Note 29) 267,763
M5t Total 4,045,820

F—1 ¥R EERAR AT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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21 8 INVENTORIES
2022 2021
AREFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R Raw materials 768,363 607,497
EE& Work in progress 168,881 143,213
B Finished goods 1,249,849 1,361,382
S Consumables 335,437 280,414

192

MRART It AHE AR EMBES
ZEERANGABARB1I7,761 B & T
(20214 : ARE15,0298/ & 7T) ©

REE2022F 12831 HIEFEE M
GCEZHEERFEMS » AEEED
FEBREFELA AR 13,894,000 7T (2021
F SR RS 23,130,000 7T) (MizE6) ©
ZETIECTABRERZ THEMAR) F o

2,522,530 2,392,506

The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and included in
cost of sales and other expenses amounted to approximately
RMB17,761 million (2021: RMB15,029 million).

The Group recognised inventory provision of approximately
RMB13,894,000 (2021: recognised RMB23,130,000) (Note
6) for the year ended 31 December 2022 in respect of the
write-down of inventories to their net realisable values. These
amounts have been included in ‘cost of sales’ in the income
statement.

R EEE A R/A T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢  Annual Report 2022 3R



N

_ | R AMISERME
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2022F 12831 HIEEE  For the year ended 31 December 2022

22 BB BIRMRERE 22 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
2022 2021
ARBFT ANRETFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEWE 5 IR =R Trade receivables
-RKEFE= — from third parties 816,599 635,669
- KBS — from related parties 18,993 17,331
835,592 653,000
B ORERE Less: provision for impairment (19,644) (15,351)
EWE ZRR - FE Trade receivables, net 815,948 637,649
FE W ZE Bills receivables
-RBE= — from third parties 3,929 10,882
FEUW B Z R R Trade and bills receivables 819,877 648,531
AEHBEEEFIEEORXEIN KR ZE The credit terms granted to customers by the Group are
FAHA (20214 : 60K EQ0K) ° F22022 usually 60 to 90 days (2021: 60 to 90 days). At 31 December
F12831 0 FEWWE ZEZP = iEa 2022, the ageing analysis of trade receivables based on the
EHEANERE DT date of demand note is as follows:
2022 2021
ARETT ANRETFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEWE Z RN > 4B%E Trade receivables, gross
-90KMUA — Within 90 days 761,851 595,300
-91E180% —91 to 180 days 62,624 48,181
- 181 &365% - 181 to 365 days 10,105 6,526
-—FME — Over one year 1,012 2,993
835,592 653,000

fi— (e % R EIRIR A R4 E) Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. « Annual Report 2022 448 193
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22 %HQE%EE%\&/ (II\E)

AEERBWEZRAZEREENTIIE

22 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

(CONTINUED)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are

T EHE - denominated in the following currencies:
2022 2021
AREBTFT ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000

FEUN B Z RN > 48%R Trade receivables, gross

- AR -RVB 829,437 649,002
-%7T -USD 1,903 1,128
- BT - HKD 4,252 2,870
835,592 653,000

REER FEH&,\%EETA&?‘?FE’JEEE
BEHREAFEES

REEEH AEBAREZRSEE
Rk 7 LA U B ZER R R BB Z BRE
B - AEEWERA TR RESRR o

AEEERAETBMBRESERNFTEN
BE5 7% EAMARWRIAR £ iE
RSB REGETEREERE -
3O HIN BB E RS AN

2022 FE K 2021 E 12831 H  FrE X
ERRNMNEREEARTEAREE T
HRZERBEREAGERREARITH
HBBEA1ERNPREAAE LS
17 A EWMIRTTET > BRARWE
ENEERARMESBIME-

EREREBESERFTAEREAEREER
%~ ONEE LB B B K R B 2 B L S B
5310

The carrying amounts of trade and bills receivables approximated
their fair values as at the balance sheet dates.

The maximum exposure of the Group to credit risk at the
reporting date is the carrying value of trade and bills receivables
as mentioned above. The Group does not hold any collateral
as security.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all receivables. Note 3.1(b)
provides for details about the calculation of the allowance.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, all bills receivables
within the Group are bank acceptance bills since they are
substantially deposited at or issued by state-owned banks
and other medium or large sized listed banks with maturity
dates within 1 year and the credit risks in respect of the bills
receivables are considered to be low.

Information about the impairment of trade receivables and
the Group’s exposure to credit risk, foreign currency risk and
interest rate risk can be found in Note 3.1.
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FE(IFIE s e R EHMEYWKSE 23 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

15 RECEIVABLES
2022 2021
AREFTT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FETFRIB Prepayments
— FATIBER — Prepaid value added tax 179,887 151,064
— BT HREEZHE — Advance payments to suppliers 135,445 147,199
315,332 298,263
JE W B Bt 75 =n 38 (B9 5% 83(b)) Amounts due from related parties
(Note 33(b) 201,874 134,983
Hah g sIa Other receivables
— FEWH R — Interest receivables 352,090 284,710
— BEES - Customs deposits - 9,527
— Hfb — Others 63,184 51,984
415,274 346,221
B FERNHEAER 3 Less: non-current portion (27,592) (17,136)
BRERER o Current portion 387,682 329,085
904,888 762,331
BAEDTENRIE ~ B R EMEKRR Substantially all of the prepayments, deposits and other receivables
BHERARESE HENERDERAR are dominated in RMB. Their carrying amounts approximated
REEHZ A AFERS © their fair values as at the balance sheet dates.
HhE WA BE B EE B &5 5 M5 Information about the impairment of other receivables can be
3.1(b)(i) ° found in Note 3.1(b)(i).
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24 WA FEETAIEZ (MEATF{E 24 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

st AR WEMBEE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (“FVPL”)
BAFEFABENEMEEIGRTH Financial assets at FVPL represented the structured deposits
EREEER - BAFEFABRGNATE at banks. Changes in fair values of financial assets at FVPL are
BEEF ABRRN THEMFIE — F58) recorded in “other gains — net” in the income statement .
EERATE
#Z20225F #ZE20225F AR
EREEER 12831H 12A31H tREELS
(AREFR) EREEHE R ERA HATE WESL (GEEENEE FEHEEA
Investment Fair Value Percentage
Categories of Number of Cost as of as of in terms of
Financial Assets the Financial 31 December 31 December Total Financial Weightsto  Expected date
(RMB’000) Assets 2022 2022  assets at FVPL Total Assets  of expiration
GENER 6 1,000,000 1,017,609 99.91% 467% 2023F7H120E
2023F 128 28H
Structured Deposit 12/07/2023-28/12/2023
REES 1 907 912 0.09% 0.01%  FERFATE[
Investment Fund Redeemable at any time
7 1,000,907 1,018,521 100.00% 4.68%
ERATE
HE2021F HE20215E st AR A
EHEEER 123318 12R318  SMEESE
(AR¥F) SHEEHE MEERA HATE MESL (EEENEE  BiEHA
Investment Fair Value Percentage
Categories of Number of Cost as of as of in terms of
Financial Assets the Financial 31 December 31 December Total Financial Weightsto  Expected date
(RMB’000) Assets 2021 2021 assets at FVPL Total Assets  of expiration
BRENER 13 1,400,000 1,412,564 82.34% 6.40% 2022F6H6HE
202212828 H
Structured Deposit 06/06/2022-28/12/2022
BRENER 2 300,000 300,120 17.50% 1.36% 2023 12H27THE
202312528 H
Structured Deposit 27/12/2023-28/12/2023
KBRS 1 2,803 2,764 0.16% 001% BERFETEE[
Investment Fund Redeemable at any time
16 1,702,803 1,715,448 100.00% 7.77%
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25 RHIEHED - & &IBT4 25 LONG-TERM TIME DEPOSITS AND CASH

BR AND BANK BALANCES
2022 2021
AR®BTT ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RHEBHER Long-term time deposits 3,532,170 3,950,000
B MIRTT4SRR Cash and bank balances 3,122,038 2,128,271
IRTT M FHEIREE Total of cash at bank and on hand 6,654,208 6,078,271
MBS HREXENM= BT LFHERE A reconciliation of cash at bank and on hand to cash and
SHIBSEEYZHIRWT © cash equivalent for the purpose of cash flow statements is as
follows:
2022 2021
ARBTT AREBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RITRFEEIRE Cash at bank and on hand 6,654,208 6,078,271
B REEBBE=@EA Less: Long-term and short-term time
NEBREHEBRER deposits with original maturity
over three months (6,542,866) (5,781,275)
ZRHIRITEMR Restricted bank deposits (2,823) (11,423
BeRIBEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 108,519 285,573
R2022F 12831 H AEBEERIET As at 31 December 2022, the effective weighted average rate
MERERMEFLIIENKA377E on deposits of the Group placed with banks was 3.77% (2021:
(2021£F 1 3.91F) 3.91%) per annum.
R2022F 12831 H » XBRFBIEITER As at 31 December 2022, the restricted bank deposits of
A R#2,300,0007t (20214 : A R#& RMB2,300,000 (2021: RMB10,900,000) represented deposits
10,900,000 7T) FE1EA A T IXBEHREMEZ at bank pledged as security for issuance of letter of credit for
T E R RIEIR P E IR TEN © the purpose of purchase of equipments.
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RIAEMEMR - BRERIRITE
B% (%)

R2022F 128310 R EHIRITE
AR #523,0007 (2021 F @ AR
523,00070) 51 AR EE RS LK
T ERIRITIER ©

R2022F12B31H BT RFHERES

25 LONG-TERM TIME DEPOSITS AND CASH
AND BANK BALANCES (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2022, the restricted bank deposits of

RMB523,000 (2021: RMB523,000) represented deposits at
bank pledged as security for gas charge of the Group.

As at 31 December 2022, total of cash at bank and on hand

METI T ESEHE - were denominated in the following currencies:
2022 2021
AREFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
— AR -RMB 6,652,294 6,075,976
— =7 -UsD 941 1,559
— BT - HKD 949 712
— Hth — Others 24 24

ARBEMLIFRAINRERTZEHER
M EE - BRARBRBABIINERAR
ELPEIEINAR PRI B M Z I
FE B HIR R B IR B Pr AR R o

6,654,208 6,078,271

RMB is currently not a freely convertible currency in the
international market. The conversion of RMB into foreign
currency and remittance of RMB out of the PRC are subject to
the rules and regulations of exchange controls promulgated by
the PRC authorities.
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26 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

ACCOUNT
EE
Authorised
ZiEREE LN RAEHE
Number of
ordinary Share  Share capital
shares capital  equivalent to
FHET ARBFT
HKD’000 RMB’000
R2022F1B1BE At 1 January 2022 till
2022F 12831 H 31 December 2022 50,000,000,000 500,000 440,240
BRETRERE
Issued and fully paid
RHHE gz Exirs  ROEER At
Share Share
Number of Share capital premium
shares capital  equivalent to account Total
TET ARt AR®TR ARETE
HKD’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R2022F1B1HE At 1 January 2022 til
202212831 H 31 December 2022 4,319,334,000 43,193 39,764 4,829,899 4,869,663
EE
Authorised
ZiEkRE e [N &Ny
Number of
ordinary Share Share capital
shares capital equivalent to
FET ARETTT
HKD’000 RMB’000
2021 F1B1HE At 1 January 2021 till
2021E12831H 31 December 2021 50,000,000,000 500,000 440,240
BETRAE
Issued and fully paid
e Fg A s RS &t
Share Share
Number of Share capital premium
shares capital equivalent to account Total
TEn  ARBTT ARETRT AREBTT
HKD’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R2021E1B1HE At 1 January 2021 till
2021 12831H 31 December 2021 4,319,334,000 43,193 39,764 4,829,899 4,869,663

H—¥EPEIEEER/A T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Hth{# 27 OTHER RESERVES
MARE ATEGRE EEE &t
Contribution Fair value Statutory
surplus reserves reserves Total

ARBTT  AREBETR ARBTT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

R2021 1818248  Balance at 1 January 2021 1,144,299 (24,882) 2,034,153 3,153,570

BATESARMEE Fair value gains on financial

WA T ERE assets at fair value through
— RIS other comprehensive income,
net of tax - 23 - 23
BHERATE AEM  Transfer of loss on disposal of
SEWGENRAKE equiity investments at fair value
NEBERERERF through other comprehensive
income to retained earnings - 24,859 - 24,859
HREENREEN Remeasurement on post-

BEEE employment benefit obligations - 343 - 343
BOELTHE Appropriation to statutory reserves - - 364,907 364,907
112021 128 31 H 24 Balance at 31 December 2021 1,144,299 343 2,399,060 3,543,702
R2022E1 81248  Balance at 1 January 2022 1,144,299 343 2,399,060 3,543,702
HERBENREN Remeasurement on post-

BistE employment benefit obligations - 1,262 - 1,262
BRE LT HE Appropriation to statutory reserves - - 313,149 313,149
1420224 12 B 31 B2 #58% Balance at 31 December 2022 1,144,299 1,605 2,712,209 3,858,113
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27 Hithf#E (&)

(@)

(b)

BARER

FATBNPABBREEZIEARER
PLEHmZAAABRERAE ARE
MEPEBETZEAMRFRZEE
R EREEL D IRBIAEERFER

RIBFAEREFREENE » 2E
BHFRAI DK TAABNERTA
Ao

EE R

FRELA R AR B REPESEMAY
ANE EHETFE AR DK
AIE S BBVAE M BRI |
wAREER (EREUTFEENRE
BER) PRE-ERNEERE -
FrEAREREBT RS E BBIMmIEaR

ERIIBBELEMANEREEM
PRIIBIPEIN B AR » EEITE
ERRRE &N KR » AR A E &
MFEZA0% B EZERF AR
T BEZREBHLABRE A DORA
8] Z M EAN50% 4 Lk o tE5h o 1t
ERFAEEEFENRRE T
s BB 1 PRI 1R a8 A1) 1 A B T2 e
TEARBRERBRHFLABET ° FA
PO EREREFMRIBIPE
MBAR  THSBEFIHER
TE TR B A E PRI R E A A K
TEfER

FEEBEBAEERERNBHEAS
SR ~ BR ATV EELE I
MABER o

H—¥EPEIEEER/A T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

27 OTHER RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(@)

(b)

Contribution surplus

Contribution surplus of the Company mainly represent
the net balance of contributions from and distributions
to the equity holder of the Company prior to the listing of
shares of the Company pursuant to the reorganisation
for the purpose of the Listing.

According to the law and regulation of the Cayman
Islands, such contribution surplus is distributable to the
equity holders of the Company.

Statutory reserves

The PRC laws and regulations require companies
registered in the PRC to provide for certain statutory
reserves, which are appropriated from the net profit as
reported in their respective statutory financial statements
after offsetting accumulated losses from prior years and
before profit distributions to equity holder. All statutory
reserves are created for specific purposes.

PRC subsidiaries incorporated as wholly-foreign owned
enterprises and domestic companies are required to
appropriate 10% of statutory net profits to statutory
surplus reserves, upon distribution of their post-tax profits
of the current year, until the statutory surplus reserve is
not less than 50% of its registered capital. In addition, at
the discretion of the respective boards of directors, these
companies may allocate a portion of their post-tax profits
to the staff welfare and bonus reserve and discretionary
surplus reserve. PRC subsidiaries incorporated as sino-
foreign equity joint venture companies may allocate a
portion of their statutory post-tax profits to the statutory
reserves at the discretion of the respective boards of
directors.

The statutory surplus reserves shall only be used to make
up losses of the companies, to expand the companies’
production operations, or to increase the capital of the
companies.
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28 MEfTEZIRM 28 TRADE PAYABLES
2022 2021
AREFTT AR®ETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FETE SR Trade payables
-%=hH —to third parties 2,004,296 1,656,116
- RAE 75 (PY5E33(0) — to related parties (Note 33(0)) 670,751 461,932
2,675,047 2,118,048
HEBRFAEEZERPEEA30K The credit terms granted by suppliers to the Group are usually
FO0 Ko 2022 12 B31 H» BN E 30 to 90 days. At 31 December 2022, the ageing analysis
SERMPNBFENE DB ZRE 2N of trade payables based on the date of demand note is as
e follows:
2022 2021
ARBTT AREKTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FETE SR Trade payables
-30KUA — Within 30 days 2,144,316 1,650,360
-31290XK —31-90 days 451,248 392,868
-91& 180k —-91-180 days 32,732 16,543
-181 & 365K — 181 to 365 days 18,989 19,765
-—FEME — Over 1 year 27,762 38,512
2,675,047 2,118,048
FIBRENEZRFIGUARKEE - F All the trade payables are denominated in RMB. Their carrying
EZ7RMEREREEH 2 AFEESE ° amounts approximated their fair values as at the balance sheet
dates.
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29 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

2022 2021
AREFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RIFREESRSZNESER Accruals for promotion and
advertising expenses 557,989 640,592
B TE R EF Salary and welfare payables 374,875 412,353
BERXINERE Deposits from customers 414,736 435,191
RERBRENTIE Payables for purchase of equipment 166,310 171,058
HhEARIE R EsHE R Other payables and accruals 896,389 677,623
2,410,299 2,336,817
B IERNEAER Less: non-current portion (277,139) (268,400)
BOHAER Current portion 2,133,160 2,068,417
Hth eI RIB R ETE A Non-current portion of other payables
BIFERNEAER D - and accruals:
BREIZNNEE Deposits from customers 278,591 267,763
BB EN (@) Post-employment benefits (a) (1,452) 637
277,139 268,400

RBARER ) HLAth FE T RRIB R FE 5T & A9 U
ARBE -REZRABRARE

HZAFEEE -

F—1 ¥R EERAR AT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

fair values as at the balance sheet dates.
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29 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

(CONTINUED)

BRI RER — EREEMETE (a) Post-employment benefits — defined benefit
plan
TRETAEBN BHRFOAERE The table below outlines where the Group’s post-
BESrEREHNEE o employment amounts and activity are included in the
financial statements.
2022 2021
AREBTFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
MTIIEENEEAER Balance sheet obligations for:
&%
— TRERKERT — Defined pension benefits (1,452) 637
BESERAN (BE) B (Assets)liabilities in the
balance sheet (1,452) 637
MTIIEEWEE G EIE  Statement of profit or loss charge
RIEERNZHA included in operating profit for:
— ERERHREREF — Defined pension benefits 77 3
77 3
MTINEENENE : Remeasurements for:
— EBRRAKREEF — Defined pension benefits 1,578 429
1,578 429

MBEEEEN A ARTZ H
BRERRRBAAE S FERE B
ERRFS A LU A B MR RBI B S

AEENEREMNEARSENEGE
BIF - AEEERF I GEMETT
BRZEMNNGE  REREBRT
RSt BAEERAE °

The income statement charge included within operating
profit includes current service cost, interest cost, past
service costs and gains and losses on settlement and
curtailment.

The Group operates defined benefit pension plans in
Taiwan. The Group engaged independent valuer to carry
out a valuation on post-employment benefits. Projected
unit credit cost method was applied in the valuation.
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29 HME(RRIAREStER (8)

(@

BRREN — EEEMNEE
(&

TEENaEFENEREESHE

29 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
(CONTINUED)

(a) Post-employment benefits — defined benefit
plan (Continued)

The net defined benefit liabilities and fair value of the

ENAFESIWT : Pension Fund assets were as follows:
2022 2021
AR®FT AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
TREEMNEFENIRE Present value of defined
benefit obligations 11,376 13,121
BARESBEENRFE Fair value of Pension Fund assets (12,828) (12,484)
EREGA (BE) BEFE  Net defined benefit (assets)/liabilities (1,452) 637

BARESNTEEENEHENIR > U
2022 F 121 HIEAMHEZER
H AR EEEERRAOARE
NE) (FBEE) (RENBILIEEE
TEEEN) BT T R —RIEEME
EREEMNEFNIRE - RN
RFE A A R B RIS A BB FE 51
BUBMNZEZ - AT ZBEME
FRAMNEZERRUWT :

() RBEERFHISERE

ABTETHEEMGE REZE2022
F12B31HIEFERMN T 1.25%
BIRLIRE (2021 4F 1 0.65%) ° FffM
HE—PREHE2022F12831H
BFEH T B 1 R %X 42.00% (2021
F 1 2.00%) °

(i) 1EBEAFEALIEE
(1) JECE

AENFERITEEREMLEDRM
THEoMERERK -

H—¥EPEIEEER/A T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

The most recent actuarial valuations of the Pension Fund
and present value of the defined benefit obligations were
carried out with 31 December 2022 as the valuation
reference date by ClientView Management Consulting
Co., Ltd. (“Actuary”), an independent qualified actuary
in Taiwan. The present value of the defined benefit
obligations, and the related current service cost and past
service cost were measured using the projected unit
credit method. The principal assumptions used for the
purpose of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

(i)  Discount rate and expected rate of salary
increase

For the purpose of actuarial valuation, a discount rate
of 1.25% for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021:
0.65%) was adopted. It was further assumed that the
expected rate of salary increase for the year ended 31
December 2022 was 2.00% (2021: 2.00%).

(i)  Rate of employment termination

(1) Death rate

The 5th life table as adopted by the insurance industry in
Taiwan was used in the actuarial valuation.

*  Annual Report 2022 £k
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29 HthERIEREER (8)

200

(@

HERRETN — EEREMNEE
(&)

(i) 1EIERIEAZIEER (4B)
2) BERE

BHEETERNERTERSE
o BB R A S R AT AT
ERERTE -

6 EBHhE

REAERBERNRKE 5817
Bz EsHBREMNERSRBER
REFE EREEAETRMAT T
SRR

BRRZABEHREERFRRSE
B URBETSmEERANES
GRE8mETIRIKN ©

FHR RIRE
75 15%
Z+1 R E 64 5% 3%
655% 100%

W BEX

WIRMBVIRIE R BIETHAI10% ©

29 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
(CONTINUED)

(GY)

Post-employment benefits — defined benefit
plan (Continued)

(i)  Rate of employment termination (Continued)
(2)  Resignation rate

The resignation rate used in the actuarial valuation was
decided with reference to the past resignation records of
the Group and the database of the Actuary.

(3)  Retirement rate

Based on the past retirement rate of the Group, the
employee movements as published by the Directorate —
General of Budget, Accounting and Statistics, Executive
Yuan of Taiwan, and the database of the Actuary, the
following retirement rates were adopted in the actuarial
valuation:

It was assumed that Z was the earliest retirement age
of the relevant employees. It was also assumed that
employees who did not retire upon reaching 65 years old
would retire when they reach 68 years old.

Age Retirement rate
Z 15%
Z+1to 64 3%
65 100%

(4)  Disability rate

The disability rate being 10% of the death rate was
adopted.

BEARBEEREZROTHY The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:
2022 2021

ARIR= Discount rate 1.25% 0.65%

BHTERREX Expected rate of salary increase 2.00% 2.00%

H— 1 EPEZEIRA R AT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Y= 30 BORROWINGS
2022 2021
ARETFT AREBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FRHRIRITEE  |mIRE Short-term bank borrowings, unsecured 767,756 112,300
KEBZEEBRN —FEREE - The Group’s borrowings were repayable within one year.
EEZEEEHEERNEER 2 ATEHE The carrying amounts of the borrowings approximated their fair
oINS EHE - values as at the balance sheet dates, and were denominated
in the following currencies:
2022 2021
ARBTT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR RMB 767,756 112,300
REEEH ZMEFHEERFEFIIM0M The weighted average effective interest rates at the respective
T balance sheet dates were set out as follows:
2022 2021
IRITEE » EmIKE Bank borrowings, unsecured
— AR -RMB 3.29% 3.48%
KEBEHER TIRENZBITEERE ! The Group has the following undrawn bank borrowing facilties:
2022 2021
ARBTT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R EAIE At floating rate:
— —FRNEH — Expiring within one year 3,189,962 4,567,334
— —F D LI - Expiring beyond one year 4,040,971 1,120,112

7,230,933 5,687,446
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31 SEEEZRE 31 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
2022 2021
AREFTT AR®ETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
PRPTEMATET Profit before income tax 1,730,829 2,141,842
M RIBEH 2 HBE Adjustments for:
— LIBRENRZREFNE — Gains on investments accounted
(f35E18) for using equity method (Note 18) (26,142) (34,970)
— WE. BENMREBITE — Depreciation of property, plant
(fF5E14) and equipment (Note 14) 1,023,585 1,110,333
— FRBEERE (fE15) — Depreciation of right-of-use
assets (Note 15) 92,256 92,876
— REYEINE (fI5E16) — Depreciation of investment
properties (Note 16) 19,213 18,781
— B\ EEEE (WHE17) — Amortisation of intangible assets
(Note 17) 5,986 7,096
— HEYE. BmENKEDN — Gains on disposal of property,
F1Z (FIEE7) plant and equipment (Note 7) (3,211) (6,735)
—HEBRAREE NS — Gains on disposal of right-of-use
(FF5E7) assets (Note 7) (1,000) (16,316)
— BAFEFANEGNEE — Gains on disposal of financial
SREEZHE FI5E7) assets at FVPL (Note 7) (35,347) (44,289)
— FEMREREIRFE — Provision of inventories to net
B (fsE21) realisable value (Note 21) 13,894 23,130
— B E ZRFURERE — Provision for impairment of
trade receivables 6,385 4,338
— BRFEFANIBENERM — Change in value of financial
HEZEEEH (MsE7) assets at FVPL (Note 7) (17,494) (12,645)
— MEmRXZ (W:E10) — Interest expenses (Note 10) 60,676 31,550
— ER (FI18) /K18 (MsE10) - Foreign exchange (income)/losses
(Note 10) (150) 165
2,869,480 3,315,156
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31 BEEEZRE (B 31 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
(CONTINUED)
2022 2021
AREFT ARBTFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EEESHE) Changes in working capital:
— FEWE SRR ZEHRIE M — Increase in trade and bills
receivables (177,732) (72,360)
— FERRIE ~ e R EAM — Increase in prepayments,
FE W R IE 1 0 deposits and other receivables (142,557) (139,222)
— Hfh3EBNHBE IR IEIE I — Increase in other non-current
receivables (10,456) (1,303)
— FEIEm — Increase in inventories (143,918) (472,144)
— T E S ARFUIEM — Increase in trade payables 556,999 238,321
— HthENHRIBRESTER — Increase/(decrease) in other
1@, Cab) payables and accruals 69,732 (657,124)
— BHEE R /1 — (Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities (975,208) 806,375
— Hfh3ERNHAFE T FIBE M — Increase in other non-current
payables 8,739 30,922
— ZIRFIERIT IR AV A0 — Increase in restricted bank
deposits - (23)
SEESFZIRE Cash generated from operations 2,055,079 3,048,598

“F—1 P EERARAF Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2022 3§
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BZE2022F 12331 HIEEE  For the year ended 31 December 2022

31 EEEEZIRE (B

RRERERT  HEVE -BERR
B REVE EAREERDESF
EHEBEZFISRIARE !

31 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

(CONTINUED)

In the statements of cash flows, proceeds from disposal of
property, plant and equipment, investment properties, right-of-

use assets and assets classified as held for sale comprise:

2022 2021
AREFT AR®TFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REVEE Net book amount 8,008 21,564
HEYZE - BERRE Gains on disposal of property,
EREEEZ I HE7) plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets (Note 7) 4,211 23,051
HEaGRL Decrease in lease liabilities (1,673) (288)
E AR =R IE R Decrease in other payables - (12,000)
HEWZE  BEREE Proceeds from disposal of property,
T REREREEE plant and equipment, land use rights
ZFT8FIE and right-of-use assets 10,546 32,327

2’] O F— 2R EEAEAPR/A S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2022F 12831 HIEEE  For the year ended 31 December 2022

SEELEZRE (B 31 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
(CONTINUED)
REIFYEIEFEEN S 25 EAREE DT © This section sets out an analysis of the movements in net debt
for each of the periods presented.
HEa’ = 4t
Lease
liabilities = Borrowings Total
AREFT AR®ETT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
*2020F12H31H As at 31 December 2020 45,316 487,072 532,388
REME - Cash flows:
EEEEFIES A Inflow from financing activities - 8,078,799 8,078,799
MEEEIRES N Outflow from financing activities (44,961) (8,453,571) (8,498,532)
RERREE Recognition of right-of-use
assets 37,352 - 37,352
USSR ERREE Derecognition of right-of-use
assets (288) - (288)
42021 E12H31H As at 31 December 2021 37,419 112,300 149,719
HEmnes . Cash flows:
MEEESIRERA Inflow from financing activities - 13,352,981 13,352,981
MEEESIRESMEH Outflow from financing activities (38,823)  (12,697,525)  (12,736,348)
REREEE Recognition of right-of-use
assets 104,817 - 104,817
BUHME R EE Derecognition of right-of-use
assets (1,673) - (1,673)
420225128 31H As at 31 December 2022 101,740 767,756 869,496

F—1 ¥R EERAR AT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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BZE2022F 12331 HIEEE  For the year ended 31 December 2022

32 ik 32 COMMITMENTS
(a) BEXREE Capital commitments
REBMERAEUT ! The Group’s capital commitments are as follows:
2022 2021
AREBTFT ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ME - BEAZRE Property, plant and equipment
— BETAMEREE — Contracted but not provided for 508,282 464,887
(b) EEHERIE (b) Operating lease commitments

212

FTEEFERBEBENA -

FERRBER=ZERE+EREM
ZARHEEEHEREZEMR
RNEREE - ZEHEWARRHR

R~ FHRIRRR BRI - BT
EMEEEAER -
FEFECHZFHERIERAES

o T EERREEERS
E—PENBRINE 15

MEZEEEERENT

The Group is the lessee:

The Group leases various offices and warehouses
under non-cancellable operating leases expiring within
3 months to 10 years. The leases have varying terms,
escalation clauses and renewal rights. On renewal, the
terms of the leases are renegotiated.

The Group has recognised right-of-use assets for these
leases, except for short-term and low-value leases, see
Note 15 for further information.

The operating lease commitments for properties are as
follows:

2022 2021
AREBTFT ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
SYES Properties
— —FRNEHAZEE — Lease expiring within one year 5,706 4,865

4 — e ZEREIEE AR AF Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢  Annual Report 2022 3§
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(b)

EEEERIE (8)
FTEEEALBEN -

AEERBEN D BIEREEHEER
= NHERBEYE  BBERRE
ZERNBETEBFRARERE -
ERRBENEERERE TAE
B ARRERHREEEEERNT

_ | R AMISERME
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE20225F 12831 HIEEE  For the year ended 31 December 2022

32 COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Operating lease commitments (Continued)

The Group is the lessor:

The Group leases out investment properties, plant
and equipment under non-cancellable operating lease
agreements. The leases have various terms and renewal
rights. The future aggregate minimum rental receipts
under these non-cancellable operating leases are as
follows:

2022 2021

AREFT ARE®TFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

TBE—F Not later than 1 year 66,720 112,648
B —F BB AE Later than 1 year and

not later than 5 years 55,976 62,174

BiBHF Later than 5 years 23,074 31,116

145,770 205,938
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33 RABEA RS

214

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

KREHZRETERAB AR —TLERD The ultimate holding company of the Group is & — 1225
BRAE (Mm—hZ) » BHREEZR A R A 3 (Uni-President Enterprises Corporation®) (“UPE”),
ML EERSXZMBRAE L™ a company incorporated in Taiwan and listed on the Taiwan
ZRB e RRNBERERABR—EZM Stock Exchange Corporation. The directors of the Company
BARRAKAEBRZAEPERBENT are of the view that the subsidiaries of UPE, the joint ventures
AR VERA R 75 © and associates of the Group are regarded as related parties.
() HiRAEGASETHRS ! (@) Transactions with related parties:

SR A ETHRZAT - The following transactions are carried out with related
parties:
2022 2021
s ARBTFT ARETFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FEM R R mIiE e Sales of raw materials and
finished goods: (i)
—H—1EZHMBAB - Subsidiaries of UPE 207,264 172,713
— KREEZEEDRE — Joint ventures and
K& AT associates of the Group 9,732 7,239
216,996 179,952
MR R Al SRR Purchase of raw materials
and finished goods: (i)
— h—b - UPE 20,920 14,785
— Hm—1EZHBAT - Subsidiaries of UPE 5,063,768 4,389,328
— rEEZEERE — Joint ventures and
i A= /N=I| associates of the Group 683,735 589,438
5,768,423 4,993,551
MImARTS RS © Logistics service expense: ()
— HR—1EZHBAE - Subsidiaries of UPE 118 320

4 — e ZEREIEE AR AF Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢  Annual Report 2022 3§
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2022F 12831 HIEEE  For the year ended 31 December 2022

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(CONTINUED)
SRR A ETHRS - (@) (a) Transactions with related parties: (Continued)
2022 2021
hES AREFTT ARETT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FEEARRTE A - Consultation service income: (i)
—#H—EZWEBAB - Subsidiaries of UPE 54,864 62,885
— REBZEEDE — Joint ventures and
K& AT associates of the Group 5,946 7,687
60,810 70,572
FAZUA - Rental income: (ii)
— 1 MBAT - Subsidiaries of UPE 73,813 72,707
— KREFEZEERE - Joint ventures and
o8 A =/NC associates of the Group 1,647 1,647
75,460 74,354

*

* R BB ANAREEEES
R A EMEET

The English name represents the best effort by the
management of the Company in translating the Chinese

name.

(i)

LI E R R R AL iR
SRR Rt B AR 5 1R
AR 5 Z RRRHETT ©

BEEEEMEZRA » WRE
STHIEE TIPS LR 8 Z AR RRURER ©

Notes:

(i) The above sales and purchases of raw materials and
finished goods, receipt of logistics service and provision
of consultation service are carried out in accordance with
the terms of the underlying agreements.

(i) Rental income represents income from lease of
properties and is charged in accordance with the terms
of agreements made between the parties.

it R EE A IR /AF) Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. « Annual Report 2022 4§ 21 5
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33 R RS (8) 33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)
(b) EARABG S 45ER - (b) Balances with related parties:
R2022FE 128310 AEREH The Group has the following significant balances with its
Rl S BT E ARG related parties as at 31 December 2022:
2022 2021
ARETRT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FE U RA R /5 8748 Balances due from related parties:
FEW & 2 AR (F5E22) - Trade receivables (Note 22):
—HR—EZHRBAT - Subsidiaries of UPE 18,993 17,331
B RIB R E AR U R IE Prepayments and other receivables
(FzE23) : (Note 23):
— —1bE - UPE 56 -
—H—hEZHBRT — Subsidiaries of UPE 189,325 117,959
— REEZEELEN — Joint ventures and associates
R l/NE] of the Group 12,493 17,024
201,874 134,983
220,867 152,314
& BBt 75 BR&E - Balances due to related parties:
FETE 5 8RR (£ 28) - Trade payables (Note 28):
— Hm—1bE - UPE 2,905 1,674
—H—EZHBAT — Subsidiaries of UPE 609,223 420,187
— REEZEELEN — Joint ventures and associates
= l/NE] of the Group 58,623 40,071
670,751 461,932
HtEARIBERIESER Other payables and accruals
(Fz¥29) : (Note 29):
—H—EZRBAT - Subsidiaries of UPE 32,813 38,301
— JCE -JCE 5,482 5,428
709,046 505,661
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(b) E2RAEE S A5ER @ (I8)

()

SRR S SRR A IR RERA
BREREE -

P W R FE A A Bk 75 A5 R RO BR D (B £
HREBERZ AFERE -

_ | R AMISERME
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE20225F 12831 HIEEE  For the year ended 31 December 2022

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Balances with related parties: (Continued)

The balance with related parties are unsecured, interest
free and repayable on demand.

The carrying amounts of the balances due from and
due to related parties approximated their fair value as at
balance sheet dates.

FEEEASHMN - (c) Key management compensation:
2022 2021
AREFTT ARE®TT
RMB’000 RMB’000
e~ B4R HAmER Salaries, bonus and other welfares 14,923 19,604
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34 XNEIEEEERKRH#EESE 34 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(@) ALABEEBER (@) Balance sheet of the Company
2022 2021
AREBTT ARBTx
RMB’000 RMB’000
BE ASSETS

EREBEE Non-current assets
R—RMBABZKE Investment in a subsidiary 7,976,325 7,976,325
R—KEEAB 2 #m Interest in an associated company 1,664 1,512
M2~ BB KRB Property, plant and equipment 1 4

7,977,990 7,977,841

MENEE Current assets
FE{SRIBE R ELAth FE U sk I8 Prepayments and other receivables 419 382
FEUWLHY B A B 7R IE Amounts due from subsidiaries 7,384 112,829
RWERIREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 866 1,706
8,669 114,917
BEHE Total assets 7,986,659 8,092,758
iy EQUITY
[N Share capital 39,764 39,764
17 R ERR Share premium account 4,829,899 4,829,899
HihfE s Other reserves 1,381,076 1,381,076
RERF] Retained earnings 1,734,563 1,836,545
arEs Total equity 7,985,302 8,087,284
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34 AT EEEBERKLE#EES 34 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE

(48)

(@

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(CONTINUED)

KATREEBGER (B) (a) Balance sheet of the Company (Continued)
2022 2021
ARBTRT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
afE LIABILITIES
nBaE Current liabilities
HthEARIERETER Other payables and accruals 1,357 1,474
= Borrowings - 4,000
1,357 5,474
mam Total liabilities 1,357 5474
HmKkaEEEE Total equity and liabilities 7,986,659 8,092,758
KRBIBEEBEREN2023F38 The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the
SHEZEZSHE WHUTES Board of Directors on 8 March 2023 and were signed on
RREE o its behalf by the following Directors.
BE% EETES
LO Chih-Hsien LIU Xinhua
HITES BITES

Executive Director

Executive Director

fi— (e % R EIRIR A R4 E) Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. « Annual Report 2022 448 219
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34 XNEIEEEERKRH#EESE 34 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE
(48) MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(CONTINUED)

(b) ERBEEES (b) Reserve movements of the Company
BARR ATERE BERA ast
Contribution Fair value Retained
surplus reserves earnings Total

ARBTT  ARETR ARBTT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

20211810 Balance at 1 January 2021
245 1,381,078 (24,884) 1,785,841 3,142,035
EERF Profit for the year - - 1,697,876 1,697,876

BATEF AEMEE Fair value losses on
WRzeHEEY financial assets

NTEEE at FVOCl - 23 - 23
BEHERAFES A Transfer of loss on
HizmWmz disposal of equity
BREEZEBR investments at fair
EREBRA value through other
comprehensive income
to retained earnings - 24,859 (24,859) -
EX 202028 E  Dividends relating to
2020, paid - S (1622313 (1,622,313)

2021 F12831H Balance at 31 December 2021

bd -1 1,381,078 @) 1,836,545 3,217,621
EERF Profit for the year - - 1,705,385 1,705,385
BX 2021 €2 B8 Dividends relating to 2021, paid - - (1,807,367)  (1,807,367)

2022F12831H Balance at 31 December 2022
ZHEEER 1,381,078 @) 1,734,563 3,115,639

22@ R EEE A R/A T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢  Annual Report 2022 3R
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35 EFERAKEG 35 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS
(@ EFERRBITHAEZMNE (a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
EEEhREETBABZHMES The remuneration of every director and the chief
(I executive is set out below:
BRI
s ] MIETEAL BEZH Hitvzlr  ZzEEHR st
Employer’s
contribution
toa
retirement
Discretionary Housing Other benefit
EENRT Name of Director Fees Salary Bonuses  Allowance  Allowance scheme Total

AEBTR ARBTR ARETR AREBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR
RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

202F 2022
HOES Executive directors
BRARE Mr. Lo Chi-Hsien
(BER) 56 452 2,552 - 11 - 301
HERE Mr. Liu Xinhua
(B1%2) 48 1,344 1,274 240 - 63 2,069
FaES Non-executive
directors
BESEE Mr. Su Tsung-Ming
(BF=38) 48 - - - - - 8
BEELE Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui
(REE) 48 - - - - - 48
BUEATES  Independent
non-executive
drrectors
REBEE Mr. Chen Sun-Te
(B2E) 251 - - - 2 - 280
BLERT Dr. Fan Ren-Da,
Anthony (E{-%) 251 - - - 2 - 280
BEERE Mr. Lo Peter
(REE) 251 - - - 2 - 280
BERTE Mr. Chen Johnny
(BE%) 251 - - - 17 - 268
1,204 1,796 3,826 240 115 63 7,244

fi— (e % R EIRIR A R4 E) Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. « Annual Report 2022 448 201
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35 EEEMRED (B) 35 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)
(a) EFEARSTBRABZME (@) (a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

(continued)

BEEFERESITHRABZFHEHS The remuneration of every director and the chief
LI executive is set out below:
RREREE
we ¢ NERL  REREE O HMEE ZEIEX st
Employer's
contribution
toa
retirement
Discretionary Housing Other benefit
EEHY Name of Director Fees Salary Bonuses  Alowance  Alowance scheme Total

AEBTT ARBTT ARETT ARBTR AREBTR ARETR ARETR
RMBOOO ~ RMBOOO ~ RMBOOO ~ RVBOOO ~ RVBOOO ~ RMBOOO  RMBOOO

20215 2021
YIEER Executive directors
BRERE Mr. Lo Chin-Hslen
(BER) 51 44 3,993 - 10 - 4,468
mERLE Mr. Liu Xinhua
(B5E) 4 1,344 2,309 240 - 57 3,994
FHES Non-executive
directors
ey Mr. Su Tsung-Ming
H=H) 44 - - - - _ 4
BREELE Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui
(REE) 44 - - - - - 4
BUFHITEE  Independent
non-executive
directors
et Mr. Chen Sun-Te
(B2 230 - - - 2 - 253
BLEEL Dr. Fan Ren-Da,
Anthony (EZE) 230 - - - 2 - 253
RE2%E Mr. Lo Peter
(BZE) 230 - - - 2 - 253
Shik Mr. Chen Johnny
(BEZ) 230 - - - 13 - 243
1,103 1,758 6,302 240 2 57 9,552
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35 EFEEMRED (&)

(@

(b)

EENRERTERAEZME (&)

HE2022F K2021F12H31H
FEE » T FHAESENEIBTE
AT IRIBERREBNBRIZET °

R & & 2022 F 52021 %12 A 31
HIEFEE  SIEAABEERER
FERETAMNENZEE > AR F
N EEEAESEZABEEAN
BEAREEN P INERFZZBTIES
BEER A1 o

EXED

ARBWEMAAER 2 EFHFT LA
ABAEENETHEEERER (T
maEERNEE  BERNAFES
RE AT ERERRBHARER
ZERRG  RFRGH

F—1 ¥R EERAR AT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

35 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

(@)

(b)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
discretionary bonuses paid to the relevant Directors were
determined based on the financial performance of the
Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
no arrangement was in place under which a director
of the Company waived or has agreed to waive any
emoluments and no emoluments were paid by the
Company to any of the directors as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office.

Interests of Directors

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.
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36 KMIEATE 36 SUBSIDIARIES
TXHHARABTR2022FE12831H 2 The following sets out the details of the principal subsidiaries of
FEWBAREEIE the Company as at 31 December 2022.

HERELER/
SES S R EE BETRARRS PRI TEEE/TEhY
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2022 2021
EiEE Directly owned
G-mNERERAR BEHE 923,180,000 7 100% 100% KEAR/HEHE
200664298
Uni-President Asia Cayman Islands, USD923,180,000 Investment holding/Cayman Islands
Holdings Ltd. 29 June 2006
HiEHE Indirectly owned
G—0% (hE) BEERAR HE L 1,103,770,000 %7 100% 100% HEER/HE
1998438108
B % (PE)REERAR Shanghai, PRC. USD1,103,770,000 Investment holding/PRC
(Uni-President Enterprises 10 March 1998

(China) Investments Ltd.")

HBE—CERRERAT HESEAE 37,500,000 %7 100% 100% LERFESHRESR/FE
199218131
NES-CERRERAF Urumg, PRC. USD37,500,000 Manufacturing and sale of beverages,
(Uni-President Enterprises 13 January 1992 food/PRC

(Xinjiang) Food Co., Ltd.")

RBF—rEBRERAT FREL R 65,000,000 %7 100% 100% HERHENRRER/HE
199348148
B —CERRERAR Chengdu, PRC. USD65,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of beverages
(Chengdu President 14 April 1993 and food/PRC

Enterprises Food Co., Ltd.*)

BElG—t28RBRAR HERL 96,000,000 7% 100% 100% 4ERBERNKER/TE
199358144
EA—£8RERAR Kunshan, PRC. USD96,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of beverages
(Kunshan President 14 May 1993 and food/PRC

Enterprises Food Co., Ltd.")

REf—CERRERAT HERE 59,600,000 %7 100% 100% LEREESHRESR/TE
199378 7H
RESf—CERRERAT Wuhan, PRC. USD59,600,000 Manufacturing and sale of beverages
(Wuhan President Enterprises 7 July 1993 and food/PRC

Food Co., Ltd. *)

BlGE—CEERAT REEM 75,000,000 %7 100% 100% EEREERHRER/FE
19941251
EMNG—EERAR Guangzhou, PRC. USD75,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of beverages
(Guangzhou President 5 December 1994 and food/PRC
Enterprises Corp.”)
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HZE2022F 12831 HIEEE  For the year ended 31 December 2022

36 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

ERBIER/
YNGIE:S WERAH BETRARRE FrisiiE TEER/TEhY
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2022 2021
BRE—CEERAR REER 39,900,000 %7 100% 100% FERBENNRER/HE
1995465158
AESR—CEERAR Shenyang, PRC. USD39,900,000 Manufacturing and sale of beverages
(Shenyang President 15 June 1995 and food/PRC
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*)
BRFE—CEERAR REAR 60,000,000% 7 100% 100% HERBENNERER/HE
1998525231
BES—EERAR Hefei, PRC. USD60,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Hefei President Enterprises 23 February 1998 beverages and food/PRC
Co,, Ltd.")
RABE—CEBRAT HEREE 29,200,000 %7 100% 100% LERBESHRER/TE
1998528261
HEER—C%BRAT Harbin, PRC. USD29,200,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Harbin President 26 February 1998 beverages and food/PRC
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*)
$RGE—-FRERAT HEER 52,900,000 %7 100% 100% LERBESHRER/TE
2001528208
TRG—BmERAT Beijing, PRC. USD52,900,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Beijing President 20 February 2001 beverages/PRC
Enterprises Drinks
Co., Ltd.)
BER—CEERAR HEHE 44,000,000% 7 100% 100% AERBESHRER/HE
2001555181
BER—EERAT Nanchang, PRC. USD44,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Nanchang President 18 May 2001 beverages and food/PRC
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*)
BMG—LEBRAT HEEM 20,000,00057% 100% 100% LERBESHRER/TE
2001575190
BNA—EERAR Fuzhou, PRC. USD20,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Fuzhou President 19 July 2001 beverages and food/PRC
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*)
BHFE—EEERAF REIL 37,000,000 7% 100% 100% EERBERNRER/TH
2002565251
BMGE—LEERAT Zhengzhou, PRC. USD37,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Zhengzhou President 25 June 2002 beverages and food/PRC

Enterprises Co., Ltd.*)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BZE2022F 12331 HIEEE  For the year ended 31 December 2022

36 MIBAE (&) 36 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
HERELER/
YGIE:S WERAH BETRARKRS PRSI TEER/TEhY
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2022 2021
— (LB BEBRAT FE LB 8,600,000%7T 100% 100% EBMKERESR/HE
2005108178
— (LB BEBRAT Shanghai, PRC. USD8,600,000 Trading of beverages and
(President (Shanghai) 17 October 2005 food products/PRC
Trading Co., Ltd.*)
GLEBERMERAT =5 1,000,00037 & 1 100% 100% ANEREE/8%E
2006125281
GEBEERNERAF Taiwan NTD1,000,000 Human resource management/Taiwan
(Tong Ren Corp. Limited.”) 28 December 2006
ERG—tERRERAR HERH 30,000,000 %7 100% 100% EEREESHRER/FE
200711 H8H
ERf—28mBERAT Kunming, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Kunming President 8 November 2007 beverages and food/PRC
Enterprises Food Co., Ltd.*)
SREFERAT B 1,711,920 %7 100% 100% KEZR/EE
200856558
SYELERAT Hong Kong USD1,711,920 Investment holding/Hong Kong
(Champ Green Capital 5 June 2008
Co., Limited.)
BESA—FKERAR HEES 4,150,000 %7 100% 100% EEREESHRESR/TE
2009F2820H
EES—FKBRAF Bama, PRC. USD4,150,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Bama President Mineral 20 February 2009 beverages/PRC
Water Co., Ltd.")
G-LEEEERBRAT e 5,065,435,600 7T 100% 100% %REZRKRES
2009 4830H
G- CEEERRERAR Hong Kong HKD5,065,435,600 Investment holding and trading
(Uni-President Hong Kong 30 April 2009
Holdings Co., Ltd.)
STOEEELH (LH) HE L 150,000 %7 100% 100% ERHH
BRAH 200958128
SEROEEERH (L) Shanghal, PRC. USD150,000 Management Consulting
BRAF 12 May 2009

(Champ Green (Shanghal)
Consulting Co., Ltd.")
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36 MIEBAT (4B)

36 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

ERBIER/
YNGIE:S WERAH BETRARRE FrisiiE TEER/TEhY
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2022 2021
ROF—CEERAR REED 30,000,000% 7 100% 100% FERBENNRER/HE
201059818
D EERAR Changsha, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Changsha President 1 September 2010 beverages and food/PRC
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*)
ABE-LERESNE HRERE AR 1,000,007 100% 100%  BERE/HE
BRAT 2010585246
RS- R Chengdu, PRC. RMB1,000,000 Catering services/PRC
BRAR 24 August 2010
(Chengdu Unifies The Skillful
Noodle Restaurant Dining
Cutture Limited Company’)
HLG—rEBRAT HEET 25,000,000 %7 100% 100% FERBERNRES/DE
2010E10B8 281
HIG—CE£ERAT Zhanjiang, PRC. USD25,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Zhanijiang President 28 October 2010 beverages and food/PRC
Enterprises Co., Ltd.")
BER—TEERAF HERE 30,000,000 7% 100% 100% 4ERBERNKER/TE
2010£11816H
BER—CEXERAT Nanning, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Nanning President 16 November 2010 beverages and food/PRC
Enterprises Co., Ltd.")
RER—EERAT HERE 20,000,000%7% 100% 100% FERBERNRES/DE
2010E1282H
RER—CXERAT Changchun, PRC. USD20,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Changchun President 02 December 2010 beverages/PRC
Enterprises Co., Ltd.")
MREg—CEERAT HER 20,000,000%7% 100% 100%  ERRIER#E/HE
2010E 128151
MRsA—tEERAR Akesu, PRC. USD20,000,000 Wholesale of forage and
(Akesu President 15 December 2010 fertilizer/PRC
Enterprises Co., Ltd.")
FNFE—EEERAT HERM 30,000,000 7% 100% 100% FERBERNRES/HE
2011515280
EMGE—LEERAT Taizhou, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Taizhou President 28 January 2011 beverages and food/PRC

Enterprises Co., Ltd.")
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36 MIBAE (&) 36 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

HERELER/
YGIE:S WERAH BETRARKRS PRSI TEER/TEhY
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2022 2021
BEF—CEARAT HEEE 33,600,000% 7% 100% 100% FBAREREAEERRE
20115258168 REE/TE
BES—EERAR Chongaing, PRC. USD33,600,000 Wholesale and retail of pre-packaged
(Chongaing President 16 February 2011 food and dairy products/PRC
Enterprises Co., Ltd.")
RRA—CEBRAT HERAR 20,000,000% 7% 100% 100% 4ERBERNKER/TE
201F2824H
BRG—-CEERAD Balyin, PRC. USD20,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Baiyin President 24 February 2011 beverages and food/PRC
Enterprises Co., Ltd.")
LE5-EERRERAT HELE AR #60,000,0007 100% 100% HEEE/TE
200385 18
LER—ZBRRERAT Shanghai, PRC. RMB60,000,000 Leasing business/PRC
(Uni-President Shanghai 1 August 2003
Pearly Century Co., Ltd.")
LER—EERANERAT HELE AR 20,000,0007 100% 100% KEER/TE
200375 18H
B EEEEHERAR Shanghai, PRC. RMB20,000,000 Investment holding/PRG
(Uni-President Shanghai 18 July 2003
Management Consulting
Co., Ltd.")
BRE—CEERAT HEEE 22,000,00057% 100% 100% LERBESHRER/FE
20113588
BEA—TEERAT Chengmai, PRC. USD22,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Hainan President 8 March 2011 beverages/PRC
Enterprises Co., Ltd.")
ERHEG—CEERAF HEERHE 35,000,000 7% 100% 100% LERBESHRER/TE
2010F 118150
RRHA—CEERAT Shijazhuang, PRC. USD35,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Shijiazhuang President 15 November 2010 beverages and food/PRC
Enterprises Co., Ltd.")
B CEERAT HELEH 30,000,000 57 100% 100% LERBESHRER/TE
2011F4518H
EER—TEERAT Jinan, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Jinan President 18 April 2011 beverages and food/PRC

Enterprises Co., Ltd.")
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36 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

ERBIER/
YNGIE:S WERAH BETRARRE FrisiiE TEER/TEhY
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2022 2021
ERF—CEERAR HEER 30,000,000% 7 100% 100% FERBENNRER/HE
011F7H6H
ERG—TEBRAT Guiyang, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Guiyang President 6 July 2011 beverages and food/PRC
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*)
RRG—C2BRABRAT FERR 4,800,000 %7 100% 100% £EBRK/FE
011E7H6H
B EBERKERAT Wuxue, PRC. USD4,800,000 Manufacturing mineral water/PRC
(Wuxue President Enterprises 6 July 2011
Mineral Water Co., Ltd.*)
LERERREZBRAT HE L 950,000% 7T 100% 100% BEERGRAZERNE HE
2011565281
LEHERRERERAF Shanghal, PRC. USD950,000 Wholesale of pre-packaged food
(President (Shanghai) 28 June 2011 and dairy products/PRC
Private Label Marketing &
Trading Co., Ltd.")
MNE—CEERAR FREN 85,000,000 %7 100% 100% 4ERBERNKER/TE
2011568218
MME—CEERAT Hangzhou, PRC. USD85,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Hangzhou President 21 June 2011 beverages and food/PRC
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*)
ENE—EERAR FRERIN 33,000,000 7% 100% 100% 4ERBERNKER/TE
201159828
BNA—CEERAR Xuzhou, PRC. USD33,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Xuzhou President 2 September 2011 beverages/PRC
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*)
588 (Bl BRAR HERL 10,000,000 %7 100% 100% BEERLHE/TE
2012435281
#-B8 R BRAT Kunshan, PRC. USD10,000,000 Wholesale of pre-packaged food
(President (Kunshan) 28 March 2012 products/PRC
Trading Co., Ltd.")
AER—CEERAR REAE 43,100,000% 7 100% 100% AERBESHRER/HE
201243890
ARG —tEERAT Henan, PRC. USD43,100,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Henan President 9 March 2012 beverages/PRC

Enterprises Co., Ltd.*)
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36 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

HERELER/
YGIE:S WERAH BETRARKRS PRSI TEER/TEhY
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2022 2021
MEG— P EBRAT HEIF 50,000,000 57 100% 100% HERHENRRER/HE
20127568
REA—CEERAT Shaanxi, PRC. USD50,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Shaanxi President 6 July 2012 beverages and food/PRC
Enterprises Co., Ltd.")
THG—PEERAT HEER 30,000,000 %7 100% 100% HERHENRRER/HE
2012F11A50
IBR—CXERAT Nanjing, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Jiangsu President 5 November 2012 beverages and food/PRC
Enterprises Co., Ltd.")
RALE—GZ (EM FRE S AR #180,000,0007 100% 100% HEBRK/FE
BRKBRAF 2013%F3A15H
REUG—T% (EH) BRK Jiin, PRC. RMB180,000,000 Manufacturing mineral water/PRC
BRAF 15 March 2013
(Changbaishan Mountain
President Enterprises (Jiin)
Mineral Water Co., Ltd. %)
G- (E) BEXEE HEEL AR¥60,000,0007 100% 100% EE/HE
BRAF 201354598
G—t% (RBL) BxHE Kunshan, PRC. RMB60,000,000 Real estate/PRC
BRAE 9 April 2013
(President Enterprises
(Kunshan) Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.)
EER-EERAT R 16,000,000 7% 100% 100% HERHENNRRS/ HE
2013E4 A 22H
BES-EERAT Yinchuan, PRC. USD16,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Ningxia President 22 April 2013 beverages/PRC
Enterprises Co., Ltd.’)
AR OR—EEERAE HETAES 30,000,000% 7% 100% 100% HERHENNRRS/HE
201345598
AELR—EEERAF Hohhot, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Uni-President Enterprises 9 May 2013 beverages and food/PRC

(Inner Mongolia) Co., Ltd.")
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36 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

ERBIER/
YNGIE:S WERAH BETRARRE FrisiiE TEER/TEhY
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2022 2021
UAG—CEERAE RS 30,000,000% 7 100% 100% FERBENNRER/HE
20139850
LRG—t£ERAR Jinzhong, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Shanxi President 5 September 2013 beverages/PRC
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*)
LEE—CEERAT HE L 40,000,000 %7 100% 100% BELERRY/TE
2001108148
LEG—2ERAT Shanghal, PRC. USD40,000,000 Wholesale of pre-packaged food
(Uni-President Enterprises 14 October 2001 products/PRC
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd )
WEEG -t EERNE RETEE 30,000,000% 7 100% 100% HERBENNRER/HE
REERAT 013511810
WEEG—CEERYA Hutubi, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
REARAR 1 November 2013 beverages/PRC
(Uni-President Enterprise
(Hutubi) Tomato Products
Technology Co., Ltd.")
Co,, Ltd.")
TER-rEHRRRERAR FELE 80,000,000% 7% 100% 100% 4ERBERNKER/TE
2014E5815H
LEG—CENNRRERAR Shanghal, PRC. USD80,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Uni-President Enterprises 15 May 2014 beverages and food/PRC
(Shanghai) Drink & Food
Co., Ltd.")
RER—-CEERAT HEXE 12,000,000 7% 100% 100% HERHBENR/HE
2014588150
R EERA Tianjin, PRC. USD12,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Uni-President Enterprises 16 August 2014 beverages/PRC
(Tiandin) Co., Ltd)
HaR—tEERAT HE#RE 6,000,000 7T 100% 100% HERBENH/HE
2015538100
WEHR—EERAR Hunan, PRC. USDS,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Uni-President Enterprises 10 March 2015 beverages/PRC

(Hunan) Co., Ltd")
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36 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

HERELER/
REEHE KA BETREERE FRr s e TEER/REhY
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2022 2021
BagHHIZERAT HEES AR #100,000,0007 100% 100% EERBESE/DE
20096598
EREHHIEERAR Yantai, PRC. RMB100,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Yantai Tongli Beverage 09 June 2009 beverages/PRC
Industries Co., Ltd")
G102 (EL) 2aBi HEEL 1,200,000%7% 100% 100% EEREEBRFH/TE
BRAR 199512278
G—0% (BL) sRiER Kunshan, PRC. USD1,200,000 Manufacturing and sale of
BRAF 27 December 1995 seasoning/PRC
(President Enterprises

(Kunshan) Food Products
Technology Co., Ltd.")

PREMURPEIKE - 68 &E BB
NAERERETERE NHASHEH
MLz —HKWBABLERRZER
BEAF -FRAERTEKRILZHE AT
BRIEEERE -

. BYEZBLARBDEEERNIFHX
HEAEEY -

A& =IE

R2023F383H  ARBEZEWB L
BalRm—1EBRAR (&% —)
BAEE LM EER O (T EE L)
ST M E R E R IR £
RERLERBRKEMEEA—BERE
HE—RUNSENMIR RBASA
Risg2s51EET (ZRXH)) o KE
BEEZRZESHEREHOARE
35141 BET °
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All subsidiaries located in the Mainland China, Taiwan
and Hong Kong are limited liability entities. One subsidiary
incorporated in the Cayman Islands is an exempted company
with limited liability. All subsidiaries established in the PRC are
wholly foreign owned enterprises.

*

The English name represents the best effort by management of
the Company in translating the Chinese name.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On 3 March 2023, & B4t — (b 2B PR A 8] (Hefei President
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*) (“Hefei President”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Group, and & JE ™ L #th & & .0 (Hefei
Land Reserve Centre*) (the “Land Reserve Centre”), entered
into a land use right disposal agreement pursuant to which
the Land Reserve Centre agreed to acquire, and Hefei
President agreed to dispose of a piece of land situated in Hefei
with the consideration of approximately RMB582.51 million
(the “Transaction”). And a disposal gain of approximately
RMB351.41 million was estimated by Group from the
Transaction.
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UNI-PRESIDENT CHINA HOLDINGS LTD.

(a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(—FREERSEMRINERAT)
(Stock Code B& 3 #m3%: 220)
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